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PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED FEBRUARY 28, 2013 

SALE DATE:  March 5, 2013 at 8:30 a.m. Pacific Time  Moody’s Rating:  A1 
NEW ISSUE - BOOK-ENTRY ONLY See “RATING” herein 

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing federal law and assuming compliance with applicable requirements of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), that must be satisfied subsequent to the issue date of the Series 2013 Bonds, interest 
on the Series 2013 Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is not an item of tax preference for 
purposes of the alternative minimum tax applicable to individuals.  However, while interest on the Series 2013 Bonds also is not an 
item of tax preference for purposes of the alternative minimum tax applicable to corporations, interest on the Series 2013 Bonds 
received by corporations is taken into account in the computation of adjusted current earnings for purposes of the alternative 
minimum tax applicable to corporations, interest on the Series 2013 Bonds received by certain S corporations may be subject to tax, 
and interest on the Series 2013 Bonds received by foreign corporations with United States branches may be subject to a foreign 
branch profits tax.  Receipt of interest on the Series 2013 Bonds may have other federal tax consequences for certain taxpayers.  See 
“TAX MATTERS.”   

$53,690,000 *

Central Washington University 
 

System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 

Dated:  Date of Delivery Due:  May 1, as shown on the inside cover 

The Central Washington University (the “University”) System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 (the “Series 2013 
Bonds”) will be issued as fully registered bonds under a book-entry only system and, when issued, will be registered in the 
name of Cede & Co., as the nominee of The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), in New York, New York.  DTC will act 
as securities depository for the Series 2013 Bonds.  Individual purchases of interests in the Series 2013 Bonds will be 
made in book-entry form only, in the principal amount of $5,000 each or any integral multiple thereof within a single 
maturity.  Purchasers of such interests will not receive certificates representing their interests in the Series 2013 Bonds.  
Principal and interest are payable directly to DTC by the fiscal agency of the state of Washington (currently The Bank of 
New York Mellon, in New York, New York) (the “Bond Registrar”), as the fiscal agent and paying agent for the Series 
2013 Bonds.   
Interest on the Series 2013 Bonds is payable semiannually on each May 1 and November 1, commencing November 1, 
2013.  Principal of the Series 2013 Bonds is payable on May 1 in each of the years shown on the inside cover.  Upon 
receipt of payments of principal and interest, DTC is obligated to remit such principal and interest to the DTC Participants 
for subsequent disbursement to the purchasers of beneficial interests in the Series 2013 Bonds, as described under the 
caption “THE SERIES 2013 BONDS” herein. 

Maturity Schedule on Inside Cover 

The Bonds are being offered at public sale by competitive bids to be received electronically through Parity®, 
pursuant to the Official Notice of Sale contained herein. 

The Series 2013 Bonds are subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities as described herein.   

The Series 2013 Bonds are special fund revenue obligations of the University payable from Gross Revenue of the System 
and the money and investments deposited into the System Revenue Bond Fund (“Bond Fund”), and are not general 
obligations of the University, the state of Washington, its agencies, instrumentalities or political subdivisions.  The 
University has no taxing power.  The Series 2013 Bonds, including principal thereof and interest and premium, if any, 
thereon, and any bonds heretofore or hereafter issued on a parity therewith, are secured by a first lien on the Gross 
Revenue of the System, and are payable from the money and investments in the Bond Fund.  See “SECURITY AND 
SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2013 BONDS.” 

This cover page contains certain information for quick reference only.  A full review should be made of the entire Official 
Statement.  The offering of the Series 2013 Bonds to potential investors is made only by means of the entire Official 
Statement. 

The Series 2013 Bonds are offered when, as and if executed and delivered, and are subject to receipt of the legal opinion of Foster 
Pepper PLLC, Seattle, Washington, Bond Counsel to the University, and certain other conditions.  It is expected that the Series 2013 
Bonds will be available for delivery through the facilities of DTC in New York New York, or to the Bond Registrar on behalf of DTC 
by Fast Automated Securities Transfer on or about March 28, 2013 (the “Date of Delivery”). 

                                                           
* Preliminary, subject to change. 

 



 

$53,690,000 (1) 
Central Washington University 

System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 

 
Due 

May 1 
 

Amounts (1) 
Interest  

Rate 
Price or 
Yield 

CUSIP 
No.(2) 

2014 $   200,000    
2015 1,950,000    
2016 1,955,000    
2017 2,035,000     
2018 2,090,000     
2019 2,150,000     
2020 2,215,000     
2021 2,280,000     
2022 2,355,000     
2023 2,440,000     
2024 2,525,000     
2025 2,620,000     
2026 2,710,000     
2027 2,820,000     
2028 2,935,000     
2029 3,055,000     
2030 3,180,000     
2031 3,320,000     
2032 3,460,000     
2033 3,600,000     
2034 3,755,000     

(1) Preliminary; subject to change. 
(2) The CUSIP numbers herein are assigned and provided by CUSIP Global Services.  These numbers are not 

intended to create a database and do not serve in any way as a substitute for CUSIP Global Services.  CUSIP 
numbers are provided herein for the convenience of reference only.  CUSIP numbers are subject to change.  
The Bondholders are responsible for verifying the CUSIP numbers for the Bonds.  The University takes no 
responsibility for the accuracy of such CUSIP numbers. 
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No quotations from or summaries or explanations of the provisions of laws or documents herein purport to be complete, and 
reference is made to such laws and documents for full and complete statements of their provisions.  This Official Statement is 
not to be construed as a contract or agreement between the University and the purchasers or owners of any of the Series 2013 
Bonds.  The cover page hereof and appendices attached hereto are part of this Official Statement. 

No dealer, broker, sales representative, or other person has been authorized by the University to give any information or to 
make any representations other than as contained in this Official Statement in connection with the offering made hereby and, if 
given or made, such information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the University.  The 
information and expressions of opinions herein are subject to change without notice, and neither the delivery of this Official 
Statement nor any sale made hereunder will, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in 
the information set forth herein since the date hereof.  This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the 
solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of the Series 2013 Bonds by any person, in any jurisdiction in which it 
is unlawful for such persons to make such offer, solicitation or sale. 

Certain statements contained in this Official Statement reflect not historical facts but forecasts and “forward-looking 
statements.”  The words “estimate,” “project,” “anticipate,” “expect,” “intend,” “believe” and similar expressions are intended 
to identify forward-looking statements.  The achievement of certain results or other expectations contained in forward-looking 
statements involves known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results, performance or 
achievements described to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by 
such forward-looking statements.  Except as described in the continuing disclosure undertaking of the University, the University 
does not plan to issue any updates or revisions to those forward-looking statements if or when their expectations or events, 
conditions or circumstances on which such statements are based occur. 

THE SERIES 2013 BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, 
AND THE BOND RESOLUTION HAS NOT BEEN QUALIFIED UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939, AS 
AMENDED, IN RELIANCE UPON EXEMPTIONS CONTAINED IN SUCH ACTS.  THE REGISTRATION OR 
QUALIFICATION OF THE SERIES 2013 BONDS IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF 
SECURITIES LAWS OF THE STATES IN WHICH THE SERIES 2013 BONDS HAVE BEEN REGISTERED OR 
QUALIFIED AND THE EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION OR QUALIFICATION IN OTHER STATES CANNOT BE 
REGARDED AS A RECOMMENDATION THEREOF.  NEITHER THESE STATES NOR ANY OF THEIR AGENCIES 
HAVE PASSED UPON THE MERITS OF THE SERIES 2013 BONDS OR THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF 
THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT.  ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY MAY BE A CRIMINAL OFFENSE. 

The inactive textual reference to the websites identified herein are not hyperlinks and do not incorporate the identified websites 
by reference.  The websites are not a part of this Official Statement, and investors should not rely on information presented in 
the websites in determining whether to purchase the Bonds. 

Pursuant to Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12, the University will deem this Preliminary Official Statement 
“final” as of its date, except for the omission of information dependent upon the pricing of the issue and the completion of the 
purchase contract, such as offering prices, interest rates, selling compensation, aggregate principal amount, aggregate principal 
amount per maturity, delivery date, and other terms of the Series 2013 Bonds dependent on the foregoing matters. 
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OFFICIAL NOTICE OF SALE 

$53,690,000 * 
Central Washington University 

System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that electronic bids will be received by Central Washington University (the “University”), for 
purchase of the above described bonds (the “Series 2013 Bonds”) at  

8:30 a.m. Pacific Time on Tuesday March 5, 2013. 

The Series 2013 Bonds will be sold on an all-or-none basis.   

Bids must be submitted electronically as described herein.   

Modification; Cancellation; Postponement.  Bidders are advised that the University may modify the terms of this Official 
Notice of Sale prior to the time set for receipt of bids.  Any such modifications will be provided to The Bond Buyer Wire 
(available on TM3, the Thomson Municipal Market Monitor, at http://www.tm3.com) (the “News Service”) prior to the time 
scheduled for sale.  In addition, the University may cancel or postpone the date and time for the receipt of bids for the Series 
2013 Bonds at any time prior to the opening of the bids.  Notice of such cancellation or postponement will be communicated on 
behalf of the University through the News Service as soon as practicable following such cancellation or postponement.  If a 
postponement occurs, bids will be received at the time and in the manner set forth above on any date as the University will 
determine.  As an accommodation to bidders, telephonic or facsimile notice of the postponement of the sale will be given to any 
bidder requesting such notice from the University’s financial advisor, SDM Advisors, Inc., telephone: (360) 445-0138 or by 
e-mail at: advisors@SDMadvisors.com.  Failure of any bidder to receive such telephonic, facsimile or News Service notice will 
not affect the legality of the sale. 

Each bidder (and not the University or its financial advisor) is responsible for the timely delivery of its bid.  The official time 
will be determined by the University and not by any bidder or Qualified Electronic Bid Provider (defined below). 

Description of the Series 2013 Bonds 

The Series 2013 Bonds will be dated the date of their initial delivery, will be issued in denominations of $5,000 or any integral 
multiple thereof within a single maturity and will bear interest at such rate or rates as the University shall fix at the time of sale, 
payable semiannually on each May 1 and November 1, beginning November 1, 2013, to their maturity or earlier redemption.  
Principal will be payable on the dates and in the amounts shown below, except as may be adjusted as described herein. 

Maturity Dates 
(May 1) 

 Principal 
Amounts* 

 Maturity Dates 
(May 1) 

 Principal 
Amounts* 

2014  $   200,000   2025  $2,620,000  
2015  1,950,000   2026  2,710,000  
2016  1,995,000   2027  2,820,000  
2017  2,035,000   2028  2,935,000  
2018  2,090,000   2029  3,055,000  
2019  2,150,000   2030  3,180,000  
2020  2,215,000   2031  3,320,000  
2021  2,280,000   2032  3,460,000  
2022  2,355,000   2033  3,600,000  
2023  2,440,000   2034  3,755,000  
2024  2,525,000      

*  Preliminary; subject to adjustment by the University as provided in this Official Notice of Sale. 

Adjustment of Principal Amount of Series 2013 Bonds and Bid Price  

The University reserves the right to increase or decrease the principal amount of the Series 2013 Bonds by an amount not to 
exceed 10 percent following the opening of the bids.  The University also reserves the right to increase or decrease the principal 
amount of any maturity by the greater of $100,000 or 15 percent of the principal amount of that maturity, rounded up to the 
next $5,000.  Adjustments in any principal amount in excess of the greater of $100,000 or 15 percent of the principal amount of 
that maturity, rounded up to the next $5,000, may be made with approval of the winning bidder.  The price bid by the successful 
bidder will be adjusted by the University to reflect an increase or decrease in the principal amount and maturity schedule for the 
Series 2013 Bonds, taking into account the interest rates, reoffering yields and underwriting spread contained in the initial 
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bid.  The apparent successful bidder will be provided with any adjustments, in writing, by 12:00 noon, Pacific Time, on the date 
of sale. 

Term Series 2013 Bonds 

Bidders have the option to designate part or all of the Series 2013 Bonds scheduled to mature on or after May 1, 2024, as term 
bonds subject to mandatory redemption at par, in the years and in the amounts set forth in the maturity schedule for the Series 
2013 Bonds.  Any term bonds so designated must consist of the total principal payments for two or more consecutive years and 
mature on the latest of such years.  If no term bonds are designated, the Series 2013 Bonds will mature in the amounts and on 
the dates set forth in the serial maturity schedule set forth above subject to any adjustments as provided herein.   

Redemption Provisions 

Optional Redemption.  The Series 2013 Bonds maturing on May 1 in the years 2014 through 2023 are not subject to 
redemption prior to their stated maturity dates.  The Series 2013 Bonds maturing on or after May 1, 2024, are subject to 
optional redemption, as a whole or in part (and if in part, with maturities to be selected by the University), on any date on and 
after May 1, 2023, at a price of par plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption. 

Mandatory Redemption.  If term bonds are designated, such term bonds will be subject to mandatory redemption as described 
under the heading “Term Bonds,” above. 

Purpose 

The Series 2013 Bonds are being issued for the purpose of paying the cost of advance refunding the University’s Housing 
System Revenue Bonds, Series 2004 with scheduled maturity dates on May 1, 2015, and thereafter, and the costs of issuance of 
the Series 2013 Bonds. 

Security   

The Series 2013 Bonds are special fund revenue obligations of the University payable from Gross Revenue of the System and 
the money and investments deposited into the System Revenue Bond Fund (the “Bond Fund”), and are not general obligations 
of the University, the state of Washington, its agencies, instrumentalities or political subdivisions.  The University has no taxing 
power.  The Series 2013 Bonds, including principal thereof and interest and premium, if any, thereon, and any Bonds heretofore 
or hereafter issued on a parity therewith, are secured by a first lien on the Gross Revenue of the System, and are payable from 
the money and investments in the Bond Fund. 

Book-Entry Only 

The Series 2013 Bonds will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), 
New York, New York.  DTC will act as securities depository for the Series 2013 Bonds.  Individual purchases will be made in 
book-entry form only, and purchasers will not receive physical certificates representing their interests in the Series 2013 Bonds 
purchased.  See Appendix D to the Preliminary Official Statement for the Series 2013 Bonds. 

Submission of Bids 

The University has deemed PARITY® as the Qualified Electronic Bid Provider for purposes of receiving electronic bids for the 
Series 2013 Bonds.  Bids for the Series 2013 Bonds are to be submitted electronically via the Qualified Electronic Bid 
Provider.  Electronic bids will be received via PARITY® until the time and date of sale, and no bid will be accepted after that 
time.  For further information about PARITY®, potential bidders may contact PARITY® at (212) 849-5021. 

If a bidder submits an electronic bid for the Series 2013 Bonds, such bidder thereby agrees to the following terms and 
conditions: 

(i) If any provision in this Official Notice of Sale with respect to the Series 2013 Bonds conflicts with information or 
terms provided or required by the Qualified Electronic Bid Provider, this Official Notice of Sale, including any 
amendments issued through the News Service, shall control.   

(ii) Each bidder shall be solely responsible for making necessary arrangements to access the Qualified Electronic Bid 
Provider for purposes of submitting its bid in a timely manner and in compliance with the requirements of this Official 
Notice of Sale.   

(iii) The University shall not have any duty or obligation to provide or assure access to the Qualified Electronic Bid 
Provider to any bidder, and the University shall not be responsible for proper operation of, or have any liability for, 
any delays, interruptions or damages caused by use of the Qualified Electronic Bid Provider or any incomplete, 
inaccurate or untimely bid submitted by any bidder through the Qualified Electronic Bid Provider.   
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(iv) The University is using the Qualified Electronic Bid Provider as a communication mechanism, and not as the 
University’s agent, to conduct the electronic bidding for the Series 2013 Bonds.  The Qualified Electronic Bid 
Provider is acting as an independent contractor, and is not acting for or on behalf of the University. 

(v) The University is not responsible for ensuring or verifying bidder compliance with any Qualified Electronic Bid 
Provider procedures. 

(vi) The University may regard the electronic transmission of a bid through the Qualified Electronic Bid Provider 
(including information regarding the purchase price for the Series 2013 Bonds and interest rates for any maturity of the 
Series 2013 Bonds) as though the information were submitted on an official bid form and executed on the bidder’s 
behalf by a duly authorized signatory. 

(vii) If the bidder’s bid is accepted by the University, this Official Notice of Sale and the information that is transmitted 
electronically through the Qualified Electronic Bid Provider shall form a contract, and the bidder shall be bound by the 
terms of such contract. 

(viii) Information provided by the Qualified Electronic Bid Provider to bidders shall form no part of any bid or of any 
contract between the successful bidder and the University unless that information is included in this Official Notice of 
Sale. 

Bid Details and Parameters 

Interest Rates Bid.  Bids for the Series 2013 Bonds may specify any number of interest rates in multiples of one-eighth or one-
twentieth of 1 percent (1/8 or 1/20 of 1 percent), or both.  All bonds of the same maturity must bear interest at the same rate.   

Premium and Discount.  No bid offering to pay an amount less than 99 percent or more than 125 percent of the par value of the 
Series 2013 Bonds will be considered.  Each maturity must be reoffered at a yield that will produce a price of not less than 
98 percent. 

Good Faith Deposit.  Bidders for the Series 2013 Bonds shall deliver a good faith deposit in the amount of $550,000 to the 
University.  The good faith deposit may be paid in one of the following ways: 

(i) By federal funds wire transfer delivered no later than two hours following the successful bidder’s receipt of the verbal 
award.  Wiring instructions will be provided to the successful bidder at the time of the verbal award. 

(ii) By certified or bank cashier’s check made payable to the order of the University, delivered to the Treasurer of the 
University prior to the opening of the bids. 

When the Series 2013 Bonds have been awarded to the successful bidder, any deposits of unsuccessful bidders received in the 
form of certified or bank cashier’s checks will be returned.  The University reserves the right to invest the deposit of the 
successful bidder of the Series 2013 Bonds pending payment for the bonds, and the successful bidder will not receive credit for 
any earnings on such investment.  The deposit will be applied to the purchase price of the Series 2013 Bonds. 

The deposit of the successful bidder will be retained by the University as liquidated damages, and not as a penalty, should such 
bidder fail to accept the Series 2013 Bonds when tendered for delivery, or fail to complete payment therefor in accordance with 
the terms of the bid and this Official Notice of Sale.  Such retention will constitute a full release and discharge of all claims by 
the University against the successful bidder.  The University’s actual damages may be higher or lower than the amount of such 
good faith deposit.  Such amount constitutes a good faith estimate of the University’s actual damages.  Each bidder waives the 
right to claim that actual damages arising from such default are less than such amount. 

Selection of the Winning Bid 

The apparent winning bid for the Series 2013 Bonds will be determined by 9:00 a.m. Pacific Time on the date of sale.  Formal 
award of the Series 2013 Bonds will be made after approval by the Board of Trustees at a special meeting to be held at 
12:30 p.m. Pacific Time on the date of sale of the Series 2013 Bonds.  The Series 2013 Bonds will be sold to the bidder 
submitting a bid in conformance with this Official Notice of Sale that produces the lowest true interest cost to the University, 
and complies with certain parameters set forth in the Bond Resolution, including a maximum allowable true interest cost and 
minimum net present value savings.  The true interest cost will be the rate necessary, when using a 360-day year and semiannual 
compounding, to discount the debt service payments from the payment dates to the date of the Series 2013 Bonds and to the 
price bid.   

The successful bidder for the Series 2013 Bonds will be bound to purchase the Series 2013 Bonds in the principal amount, at 
such price, and with such interest rates as are specified in its bid, unless there is an adjustment in the principal amounts of the 
Series 2013 Bonds, in which case the successful bidder shall be bound to purchase the Series 2013 Bonds in the adjusted 
principal amounts at the revised bid amount, as described above under the heading “Adjustment of Principal Amount of Series 
2013 Bonds and Bid Price.”  
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The University reserves the right to reject any or all bids and to waive any irregularity in any bid. 

Bond Insurance 

The University has not applied for bond insurance for the Series 2013 Bonds.  The delivery of the Series 2013 Bonds shall not 
be conditioned upon the issuance of any such insurance.  The University will not pay any costs associated with supplementing 
the Official Statement, nor will the University enter into any additional agreements, with respect to the provision of any such 
bond insurance purchased by the underwriter submitting the winning bid.  The Official Statement may not include disclosure of 
any insurance purchased by the successful bidder, although the University and its financial advisor will cooperate with the 
successful bidder to provide an addendum relating to insurance upon successful delivery of the Series 2013 Bonds.  Failure of 
the insurance provider to issue its policy shall not justify failure or refusal by the successful bidder to accept delivery of or pay 
for any of the Series 2013 Bonds. 

Delivery of Series 2013 Bonds 

The Series 2013 Bonds will be delivered to DTC, or to the Bond Registrar on behalf of DTC by Fast Automated Securities 
Transfer, against payment of the purchase price to the University in immediately available federal funds, plus accrued interest to 
the date of delivery (if any), less the amount of the applicable good faith deposit.  Promptly after notification of award of the 
Series 2013 Bonds, the purchaser of the Series 2013 Bonds shall provide to the University such information as bond counsel to 
the University deems necessary to determine the yield on the Series 2013 Bonds for purposes of Section 148 of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  The successful bidder for the Series 2013 Bonds must actually reoffer all of such Series 
2013 Bonds to the general public (excluding bond houses, brokers or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of 
underwriters or wholesalers). 

The Series 2013 Bonds will be delivered in “book-entry only” form in accordance with the letter of representations from the 
University to DTC.  As of the date of the award of the Series 2013 Bonds, each successful bidder must either participate in 
DTC or clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with an entity that participates in DTC. 

CUSIP Numbers 

It is anticipated that CUSIP identification numbers will be printed on the Series 2013 Bonds; however, neither the failure to 
print CUSIP numbers on any Bond nor any error with respect thereto will constitute cause for failure or refusal by the purchaser 
thereof to accept delivery of and pay for the Series 2013 Bonds.  The University will obtain CUSIP numbers and all expenses 
for printing CUSIP numbers on the Series 2013 Bonds shall be paid for by the University, but the CUSIP Service Bureau 
charge for assignment of those numbers shall be the responsibility of and shall be paid for by the purchaser. 

Bond Counsel Opinion 

The University will furnish to the purchaser of the Series 2013 Bonds the bond counsel opinion of Foster Pepper PLLC, Bond 
Counsel, in substantially the form attached to the Preliminary Official Statement in Appendix C.   

Continuing Disclosure 

The University will enter into an undertaking for the benefit of the owners of the Series 2013 Bonds to provide certain financial 
information and operating data and notice of certain events to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board pursuant to the 
requirements of paragraph (b)(5)(i) of Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12 (the “Rule”).  See “CONTINUING 
DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING” in the Preliminary Official Statement.   

Closing Documents 

As a condition to the obligation of the purchaser to accept delivery of and pay for the Series 2013 Bonds, the purchaser will be 
furnished a certificate of the Treasurer of the University, dated as of the date of closing, certifying that: 

 (i) as of the date of the Official Statement furnished concerning the Series 2013 Bonds, the Official Statement (other than 
information therein regarding DTC and its book-entry only system and information provided by the successful bidder 
regarding reoffering prices and yields) did not contain an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material 
fact required to be stated to make the statements, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not 
misleading, and  

 (ii) to his knowledge, since the date of the Official Statement, there has been no material adverse change in the financial 
condition or affairs of the University other than as disclosed or contemplated in the Official Statement. 

Official Statement 

The Preliminary Official Statement is in a form deemed final by the University for the purpose of the Rule, and is subject to 
revision, amendment and completion in a final Official Statement which the University will deliver at its own expense, to the 
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successful bidder, in sufficient quantities to permit the bidder to comply with the Rule, not later than seven business days after 
the University’s acceptance of the successful bids.  

Representations and Agreements of Successful Bidder 

By submitting its bid, the successful bidder agrees to file, or cause to be filed, the final Official Statement with a nationally 
recognized municipal securities information repository designated by the Securities and Exchange Commission within one 
business day following the receipt of the Official Statement from the University. 

Each successful bidder also agrees: 

 (i) to provide to the University, in writing, promptly after notification that they are the successful bidder, pricing and other 
related information necessary for completion of the final Official Statement and the final tax certification, 

 (ii) to provide, on or before delivery of the Bonds, a certificate in form and substance acceptable to Bond Counsel relating to 
the initial reoffering prices for the Bonds, and certifying that a bona fide offering of the Bonds has been made to the 
public; 

 (iii) to disseminate to all members of the underwriting syndicate, if any, copies of the final Official Statement, including any 
amendments or supplements prepared by the University, and 

 (iv) to take any and all actions necessary to comply with applicable Securities and Exchange Commission and Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board rules governing the offering, sale and delivery of the Series 2013 Bonds to ultimate 
purchasers, including without limitation, the delivery of a final Official Statement to each investor who purchases Series 
2013 Bonds. 

Additional Information 

Additional information may be obtained from the University’s financial advisor, SDM Advisors, Inc., P.O. Box 2469, Mount 
Vernon, Washington 98273 (telephone: (360) 445-0138; e-mail:  advisors@SDMadvisors.com).  The Preliminary Official 
Statement may be obtained from i-Deal Prospectus, a service of i-Deal LLC, at www.i-dealprospectus.com (212) 849-5021. 

CENTRAL WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 

 

By:
       Treasurer of the University 

  /s/  George Clark   
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$53,690,000 *

Central Washington University 
 

System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 

This Official Statement of Central Washington University (the “University”), a public institution of higher education of the state 
of Washington (the “State”), is provided for the purpose of setting forth information in connection with the issuance by the 
University of its System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 (the “Series 2013 Bonds”).   

The Series 2013 Bonds are special revenue fund obligations of the University, payable solely from the Gross Revenue of the 
System and money and investments in the Bond Fund.  The “System” consists of (a) the housing and dining system of the 
University; (b) the services and activities system; (c) the bookstore system of the University; and (d) the parking system of the 
University; all as the same will be added to, improved and extended from time to time.  See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF 
PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2013 BONDS,” and “THE SYSTEM,” herein. 

Capitalized terms used in this Official Statement are to have the meanings assigned to them in the Bond Resolution (as defined 
below), a copy of which is attached as Appendix E.  This Official Statement speaks only as of its date and the information 
contained herein is subject to change.  All summaries herein of documents, provisions and agreements are qualified in their 
entirety by reference to the actual instruments, copies of each of which are available for inspection at the offices of the 
University. 

THE SERIES 2013 BONDS 

General Description 

The Series 2013 Bonds will be dated as of the Date of Delivery, will be issued in denominations of $5,000 or any integral 
multiple thereof within a single maturity and series, and will bear interest from their dated date (or the most recent date to which 
interest has been paid thereon).  Interest on the Series 2013 Bonds will be payable semiannually on each May 1 and 
November 1, commencing November 1, 2013.  The Series 2013 Bonds will bear interest at the rates and will mature on the 
dates and in the amounts set forth on the inside cover of this Official Statement subject to prior redemption as described herein.  
Interest will be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. 

Authorization of the Series 2013 Bonds 

The Series 2013 Bonds are authorized by the University pursuant to Resolution No. 02-03 adopted by the Board of Trustees of 
the University (the “Board”) on May 10, 2002, as amended by Resolution No. 04-01 adopted by the Board on May 26, 2004, 
and as further amended by Resolution No. 10-10 adopted by the Board on October 1, 2010, all as incorporated into the Restated 
Master Resolution No. 12-02 adopted by the Board on February 3, 2012 (the “Master Resolution”), and Resolution No. 12-18, 
adopted by the Board on December 7, 2012 (the “Series Resolution,”), in accordance with the provisions of Sections 
28B.10.300 through 28B.10.330, inclusive, of the Revised Code of Washington (“RCW”).  The Master Resolution and Series 
Resolution together are referred to as the “Bond Resolution.” 

The University has outstanding parity bonds payable from Gross Revenue of the System (the “Gross Revenue”), designated the 
Central Washington University System Revenue Bonds, Series 2004 (the “Series 2004 Bonds”), the Central Washington 
University System Revenue Bonds, Series 2008 (the “Series 2008 Bonds”), the Central Washington University System Revenue 
Bonds, 2010, Series A and Series B (the “Series 2010 Bonds”), and the Central Washington University System Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, 2012 (the “Series 2012 Bonds”).  A portion of the Series 2004 Bonds will be redeemed and/or defeased with 
proceeds of the Series 2013 Bonds, as described herein.  After issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds, and corresponding 
redemption and/or defeasance of a portion of the Series 2004 Bonds, the portion of the Series 2004 Bonds that is not defeased, 
Series 2008 Bonds, Series 2010 Bonds and Series 2012 Bonds will be together known as the “Outstanding Parity Bonds.”  See 
“Outstanding Parity Bonds” herein.   

Form of Bonds 

The Series 2013 Bonds will be issued in fully registered form and, when issued, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., 
as registered owner and nominee of The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”).  DTC will act as securities depository for the 
Series 2013 Bonds.  Individual purchases will initially be made in book-entry form only.  Purchasers (“Beneficial Owners”) will 
not receive certificates representing their beneficial ownership interest in the Series 2013 Bonds so purchased.  See Appendix D 
– “Book-Entry Transfer System.” 

                                                           
* Preliminary, subject to change. 
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Registrar 

The University has adopted the system of registration for the Bonds approved by the Washington State Finance Committee (the 
“Committee”).  Pursuant to chapter 43.80 RCW, the Committee designates one or more fiscal agencies (“Fiscal Agency”) for 
bonds issued within the State.  The Committee has designated The Bank of New York Mellon, New York, New York as the 
Fiscal Agency.  The Fiscal Agency initially will act as registrar (the “Bond Registrar”) under the terms of the Bond Resolution. 

In order to meet payment requirements for interest on and principal of the Series 2013 Bonds as the same becomes due and 
payable, the University will remit money to the Bond Registrar.  The Bond Registrar will remit payment to DTC in accordance 
with the terms of the DTC procedures as then in effect.  Principal of the Series 2013 Bonds will be paid to Registered Owners 
upon presentation and surrender of the Series 2013 Bonds at maturity or upon earlier redemption to the office of the Bond 
Registrar.   

Neither the University nor the Bond Registrar will have any responsibility or obligation to DTC participants or the persons for 
whom they act as nominees with respect to the Series 2013 Bonds for the accuracy of any records maintained by DTC or any 
DTC participant, the payment by DTC or any DTC participant of any amount in respect of the principal of or interest on the 
Series 2013 Bonds, any notice that is permitted or required to be given to Registered Owners under the Bond Resolution 
(except such notices as are required to be given by the University to the Bond Registrar or to DTC), the selection by DTC or 
any DTC participant of any person to receive payment in the event of a partial redemption of the Series 2013 Bonds, or any 
consent given or other action taken by DTC as the Registered Owner.  For so long as any Series 2013 Bonds are held in fully 
immobilized form, DTC or its successor depository will be deemed to be the Registered Owner for all purposes, and all 
references to the Registered Owners will mean DTC or its nominee and will not mean the Beneficial Owners. 

Procedure in the Event of Termination of Book-Entry Transfer System 

If the University is unable to retain a qualified successor to DTC or the University has determined that it is in the best interest of 
the University not to continue the book-entry system of transfer or that interests of Beneficial Owners of the Series 2013 Bonds 
might be adversely affected if the book-entry system of transfer is continued, the University shall execute, authenticate and 
deliver Series 2013 Bonds in fully registered form, in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof within a 
maturity.  Thereafter, (i) interest on the Series 2013 Bonds will be paid by check or draft mailed to the Registered Owners at the 
addresses for such Registered Owners appearing on the Bond Register on the 15th day of the month preceding the interest 
payment date, and principal of the Series 2013 Bonds will be payable upon presentation and surrender of such Series 2013 
Bonds by the Registered Owners at the principal office of the Bond Registrar; provided, however, that if so requested in writing 
by the Registered Owner of at least $1,000,000 principal amount of Series 2013 Bonds, interest will be paid by wire transfer on 
the date due; and (ii) the Series 2013 Bonds will be transferable as provided in the Bond Resolution. 

Redemption Provisions 

Optional Redemption for the Series 2013 Bonds.  The Series 2013 Bonds maturing in the years 2014 through 2023 are not 
subject to redemption prior to their stated maturity.  The Series 2013 Bonds maturing on and after May 1, 2024, are subject to 
optional redemption, as a whole or in part, on any date on or after May 1, 2023, at a price of 100 percent of the principal 
amount plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption. 

[Mandatory Redemption.  The Series 2013 Bonds maturing on May 1 in the years 20___ and 20____ are Term Bonds and are 
subject to mandatory redemption, in part randomly within a maturity, on or after on May 1 in the years and amounts set forth 
below at a price of 100 percent of the principal amount plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption. 

20___ Term Bonds  20___ Term Bonds 
Year Amount  Year Amount 

     
     

(1)   (1)  
(1) Stated maturity. 

To the extent that the University has optionally redeemed or purchased any Term Bonds prior to the scheduled mandatory 
redemption of such Term Bonds, the University may reduce the principal amount of the Term Bonds to be redeemed in like 
aggregate principal amount.  Such reduction may be credited against one or more scheduled mandatory redemption amounts 
determined by the University.] 

Selection of Bonds to be Redeemed.  If less than all of the Series 2013 Bonds of a maturity are called for redemption, they shall 
be selected randomly in the manner determined by the Bond Registrar, or, for so long as the Series 2013 Bonds are held in fully 
immobilized form by DTC, in accordance with DTC’s operational arrangements.   
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Notice of Redemption.  While the Series 2013 Bonds are held in fully immobilized form by DTC and are registered in the name 
of Cede & Co. or its registered assigns, any notice of redemption will be given only in accordance with DTC’s operational 
arrangements.  The University will not provide notice to any Beneficial Owners of Series 2013 Bonds.  If the Series 2013 
Bonds cease to be in book-entry only form, the University will cause notice of any intended redemption to be given at least 
20 days, but not more than 60 days, prior to the redemption date by first class mail, postage prepaid, to the Registered Owner of 
any Series 2013 Bond to be redeemed at the address of the Registered Owner appearing in the Bond Register; provided, 
however, that for so long as the Series 2013 Bonds.  

Defeasance 

If money and/or Government Obligations, as defined in the Bond Resolution, maturing at such times and bearing interest to be 
earned thereon in amounts sufficient to retire any or all of the Series 2013 Bonds in accordance with their terms are set aside 
irrevocably in a special trust account to effect such retirement and are pledged for such purpose, then no further payments need 
to be made to pay or secure the payment of such Series 2013 Bonds, and such Series 2013 Bonds thereafter will be deemed not 
to be outstanding.   

Open Market Purchase 

The University has reserved the right and option to purchase any or all of the Series 2013 Bonds in the open market at any time 
at any price (which price may include accrued interest to the date of purchase).    

USE OF PROCEEDS 

The Series 2013 Bonds are being issued for the purpose of advance refunding the Series 2004 Bonds scheduled to mature on 
May 1, 2015, and thereafter, to achieve a reduction in debt service, and paying costs of issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds.   

Sources and Uses of Funds 

The proceeds of the Series 2013 Bonds are estimated to be applied as follows:   

Sources of Funds  
Par Amount of Series 2013 Bonds  
Transfer from the Bond Fund  
Net Reoffering Premium/(Discount)  
Total Sources of Funds  

Uses of Funds  
Deposit to Refunding Escrow   
Estimated Costs of Issuance (1)  
Total Uses of Funds  

(1) Issuance costs include underwriter’s discount, legal fees, financial advisor’s fees, refunding trustee fee, escrow verification 
fee, and other costs incurred in connection with the issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds. 
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Refunding Plan 

Proceeds of the Series 2013 Bonds, together with other funds of the University, will be deposited in an escrow account to be 
held by U.S. Bank National Association, as Refunding Trustee, and will be invested in direct non-callable obligations of the 
United States until the redemption date for the Series 2004 Bonds originally scheduled to mature May 1, 2015 through 2024, 
2028 and 2034 (the “Refunded Bonds”).  The escrow deposit will be sufficient to pay interest on the Refunded Bonds through 
their first call date of May 1, 2014, and to redeem the Refunded Bonds on that date, at a price equal to 100 percent of the 
principal amount thereof. 

The Refunded Bonds are shown in the table below. 

System Revenue Bonds, Series 2004 

Maturity Principal Amount Interest Rate CUSIP No. 
May 1, 2015 $  1,575,000 5.250% 155839AK9 
May 1, 2016 1,660,000 5.375 155839AL7 
May 1, 2017 1,750,000 5.375 155839AM5 
May 1, 2018 1,850,000 5.375 155839AN3 
May 1, 2019 1,945,000 5.375 155839AP8 
May 1, 2020 2,050,000 5.375 155839AQ6 
May 1, 2021 2,160,000 5.375 155839AR4 
May 1, 2022 2,280,000 5.500 155839AS2 
May 1, 2023 2,405,000 5.500 155839AT0 
May 1, 2024 2,535,000 5.500 155839AU7 

May 1, 2028 11,520,000 5.000 155839AV5 

May 1, 2034 22,105,000 5.000 155839AW3 

Verification of Mathematical Calculations 

The Arbitrage Group, Inc. a firm of independent public accountants (the “Verification Agent”), will deliver to the University, 
on or before the Date of Delivery, its verification report indicating that it has verified, in accordance with attestation standards 
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the mathematical accuracy of (a) the mathematical 
computations of the adequacy of the cash and the maturing principal of and interest on the Acquired Obligations, to pay when 
due, the maturing principal of and interest on the Refunded Bonds, and (b) the mathematical computations of yield used by 
Bond Counsel to support its opinion that interest on the Series 2013 Bonds will be excluded from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes. 

SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2013 BONDS 

The Series 2013 Bonds are special fund obligations of the University, payable from Gross Revenue of the System and money 
and investments in the Bond Fund, to be held by the University separate and apart from all other funds and accounts of the 
University. All amounts pledged to be paid into the Bond Fund represent an equal and prior lien and charge upon the Gross 
Revenue of the System superior to all other charges of any kind or nature whatsoever, except for the lien and charge hereafter 
made to pay and secure the payment of the principal of and interest on Parity Bonds. 

The “System” means (a) the existing housing and dining system of the University; (b) the services and activities system 
(including without limitation the student union building and recreation center); (c) the bookstore system of the University; and 
(d) the parking system of the University; all as the same will be added to, improved and extended through the use of the 
proceeds of the sale of System revenue bonds and as such System may be added to, improved and extended, for as long as any 
System revenue bonds are outstanding.  The System also includes, but is not limited to, any other facilities financed pursuant to 
the Master Resolution.  

Pledge of Gross Revenue 

Pursuant to the Master Resolution, a Bond Fund has been created in the office of the Treasurer of the University for the purpose 
of paying and securing the payment of the Series 2013 Bonds, the Outstanding Parity Bonds and any Future Parity Bonds 
(together, defined as the “Parity Bonds”).  The Bond Fund is a trust fund for the registered owners of the Parity Bonds.  The 
University will irrevocably obligate and bind itself for as long as any of the Series 2013 Bonds remain outstanding to set aside 
and pay into the Bond Fund from Gross Revenue or other money in the Revenue Fund, on or prior to the respective dates the 
same become due, such amounts as are required to pay the principal of and interest on the Series 2013 Bonds.  All amounts 
pledged to be paid into the Bond Fund with respect to the Series 2013 Bonds represent an equal and prior lien and charge upon 
the Gross Revenue superior to all other charges of any kind or nature whatsoever, except that the Series 2013 Bonds will have a 
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lien and charge upon such Gross Revenue on parity with the lien and charge of the Outstanding Parity Bonds and any Future 
Parity Bonds.   

“Gross Revenue” means all income and revenue derived from time to time by the University from any source whatsoever, from 
the ownership and operation of the System, including Direct Subsidy Receipts (if pledged to the System in a Series Resolution), 
grants, rentals, fees and any other charges that now are or hereafter may be charged to all or any segment of the student 
population, if pledged to the System, and including interest income, but not including the proceeds of any borrowing by the 
University and the earnings thereon (other than earnings on proceeds deposited in reserve funds); income and revenue which 
may not legally be pledged for revenue bond debt service; state or federal grants or substitutes therefor allocated to capital 
projects; payments made under Credit Facilities (if any) issued to pay or secure the payment of a particular series of bonds; 
proceeds of insurance or condemnation proceeds other than business interruption insurance or income from investments 
irrevocably pledged to the payment of bonds issued or to be refunded under any refunding bond plan of the University. 

The “Revenue Fund” means collectively, the following special funds of the University:  (a) the “Housing and Food Services 
Fund;” (b) the “Associated Student Fund;” (c) the “University Store Fund;” (d) the “Parking Fund;” and (e) and any other 
special fund created in the office of the Treasurer for the receipt of Gross Revenue.   

Flow of Funds 

The University has pledged in the Bond Resolution to deposit all Gross Revenue into the Revenue Fund as collected.  The 
Revenue Fund is held separate and apart from all other funds and accounts of the University, and the Gross Revenue deposited 
therein will be used only for the following purposes and in the following order of priority: 

First, to make all payments, including sinking fund payments, required to be made into the debt service account(s) of any bond 
redemption fund to pay the principal of and interest and premium, if any, on any Parity Bonds; 

Second, to make all payments required to be made into any debt service reserve fund(s), if any, that may be established to 
secure the payment of any Parity Bonds; 

Third, to pay Operating Expenses; 

Fourth, to make all payments required to be made into any other revenue bond redemption fund and debt service account or 
reserve account created therein to pay and secure the payment of the principal of and interest on any revenue bonds or other 
revenue obligations of the University having a lien upon the Gross Revenue and the money in the Revenue Fund junior and 
inferior to the lien thereon for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Parity Bonds, and to make all deposits of 
Rebate Amounts to the Rebate Fund; 

Fifth, to make all payments required to be made into any fund or account created by a Series Resolution; 

Sixth, to make necessary additions, betterments, improvements and repairs to or extensions and replacements of the System and 
make deposits into the Renewal and Replacement Fund as considered appropriate by the University; and  

Seventh

Rate Covenant 

, to retire by redemption or purchase in the open market any outstanding revenue bonds or other revenue obligations of 
the University as authorized in the various resolutions of the Board authorizing their issuance, and to carry out other lawful 
purposes of the University. 

The University has covenanted and agreed for as long as any of the Parity Bonds remain outstanding that it will at all times 
establish, maintain and collect rates, fees and charges in the operation of the System that will produce Net Revenues in each 
fiscal year at least equal to the greater of (i) 100 percent of Maximum Annual Debt Service (the “Coverage Requirement”), or 
(ii) amounts required to be deposited during such fiscal year into bond funds and reserve funds established for Outstanding 
Bonds, but excluding from each of the foregoing, payments made from refunding debt and capitalized debt service.  “Net 
Revenues” means Gross Revenue less any part thereof that must be used to pay Operating Expenses.  “Operating Expenses” 
means the current expenses incurred for operation or maintenance of the System, as defined under Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (“GAAP”), including an allocable share of insurance expenses and other administrative expenses of the 
University directly related to the operation of the System, excluding any allowances for depreciation or amortization or interest 
on any obligations of the System incurred in connection with and payable from Gross Revenue. 

Additional Covenants of the University 

The University has made the following covenants in the Bond Resolution. 

(i) To comply with the Coverage Requirement as set forth above. 

(ii) To duly and punctually pay principal of and interest on the Bonds at the times and places provided, and to perform and 
observe any and all covenants, undertakings and provisions of the Bond Resolution. 
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(iii) To keep and maintain the System in good repair, working order and conditions, and to operate the same and the 
businesses in connection therewith in an efficient manner and at a reasonable cost. 

(iv) In the event any portion of the System which contributes in some measure to the Gross Revenue is sold by the 
University or is condemned, the University is to apply the net proceeds of the sale or condemnation to capital 
expenditures for the System which will contribute in some measure to the Gross Revenue or to retirement of the Bonds 
then outstanding. 

(v) To keep all facilities of the System insured, if such insurance is obtainable at reasonable rates and upon reasonable 
conditions, against such risks and in such amounts as the Board or the Designated University Representative deems 
necessary for protection of the University and the owners of the Bonds. 

(vi) To at all times keep in full force and effect policies of public liability and property damage insurance to protect the 
University against anyone claiming damages, if it is obtainable at reasonable rates and upon reasonable conditions and 
in such amounts as the Board deems necessary for protection of the University and the owners of the Bonds. 

(vii) To keep and maintain proper books of account and accurate records of all of its revenue received, and of all costs of 
administration and maintenance and operation of its business, in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles.  On or before 120 days after each fiscal year, to prepare an operating statement of the business of the 
System for the preceding fiscal year, showing detail of the Gross Revenue and expenses of the System, and containing 
a status of all fund and accounts pertaining to the operating of its business. 

No Debt Service Reserve Account for the Series 2013 Bonds  

The University will not establish a Debt Service Reserve Account for the Series 2013 Bonds.  The owners of Series 2013 
Bonds will have no rights with respect to any Debt Service Reserve Account currently in existence or to be created in the future, 
unless specifically pledged to secure the Series 2013 Bonds.   

Renewal and Replacement Fund  

A Renewal and Replacement Fund has been established in the Bond Resolution for the purpose of paying extraordinary 
operating and maintenance expenses, making capital replacements, expansion, additions, repairs and renewals of the System 
and to pay principal of and interest on any bonds to the extent other funds are not legally available.  The University will make 
deposits into the Renewal and Replacement Fund from time to time as considered appropriate and maintain a balance therein.  
There is currently a balance of $6,167,134 in the Renewal and Replacement Fund. 

Future Parity Bonds 

The University has reserved the right to issue one or more series of Future Parity Bonds by means of a series resolution for any 
purpose of the University permitted by law and the Master Resolution, provided that the University complies with the terms and 
conditions for the issuance of Future Parity Bonds set forth in the Master Resolution.  All bonds authorized to be issued under 
series resolutions will be Future Parity Bonds, having an equal lien and charge upon the Gross Revenue, upon fulfillment of the 
conditions of the Master Resolution, whether at the time of authorization or issuance of such Future Parity Bonds.  The 
University will not issue any series of Future Parity Bonds or incur any additional indebtedness with a parity lien or charge on 
Gross Revenue unless: 

(a) The University was not in default of its Rate Covenant for the immediately preceding fiscal year; and 

(b) The University has received either (1) or (2): 

(1) A certificate delivered by the Designated University Representative, based upon the appropriate audited annual 
financial reports of the System, to the effect that average annual Net Revenues, plus the net revenues from any 
other sources pledged as security for all outstanding Parity Bonds, during the two full fiscal years immediately 
preceding the date of issuance of such Parity Bonds, was equal to at least the Coverage Requirement on all Parity 
Bonds to be outstanding during the full fiscal year succeeding the date of issuance of such future Parity Bonds; but 
if such Parity Bonds are proposed to be issued at any time during any fiscal year when the audited financial report 
of the System for the preceding fiscal year is not available, then Net Revenues for the previous fiscal year is to be 
calculated, for purposes of meeting the requirements of this section, based upon the unaudited statement of revenue 
and expenses for any 12 successive calendar months in the 15 months immediately preceding the date of issuance 
of the Parity Bonds proposed to be issued, prepared by the Designated University Representative in accordance 
with GAAP; or 

(2) A certificate of the Designated University Representative to the effect that the estimated Net Revenues, plus the net 
revenues from any other sources pledged as security for all Outstanding Bonds during the three consecutive full 
fiscal years next succeeding the date of issuance of such proposed Parity Bonds (or, if new facilities or 
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improvements are to be constructed with any portion of the proceeds of such Parity Bonds, in the three full fiscal 
years following the fiscal year in which such new facilities or improvements are expected to be completed) will be 
equal to at least the Coverage Requirement on all Parity Bonds to be outstanding during such three full fiscal years.  
Computation of future Net Revenues of the then existing System, and other pledged revenues, is to be based on 
actual Net Revenues for the fiscal year immediately preceding the issuance of Parity Bonds, adjusted to reflect the 
schedule or rates and charges to become effective when the additional facilities become revenue producing, and 
after giving recognition to anticipated changes in Operating Expenses of the System.  Computation of the estimated 
net revenues of any facility or facilities under construction, to be constructed or acquired, or not in operation for the 
preceding full fiscal year is to be predicated upon reasonable utilization rates. 

(c) In accordance with the requirements of the Master Resolution, and in lieu of the requirements of (b) above, Parity Bonds 
may be issued solely for the purpose of financing the cost or estimated cost of completing a capital project where Parity 
Bonds have been issued under a series resolution to pay costs of such a project; provided, however, the aggregate 
principal amount of Parity Bonds issued to finance the completion of a project shall not exceed 15 percent  of the 
principal amount of Bonds originally issued or incurred to finance such project. 

Nothing in the Bond Resolution limits the University’s right to issue bonds, notes or other obligations, for any lawful System 
purpose, secured in whole or in part by liens against the Gross Revenue and the money and investments in the Revenue Fund 
that are junior and inferior to the lien against the Gross Revenue and money and investments in the Revenue Fund securing the 
payment of the Parity Bonds.  The University currently has no such subordinate lien bonds or other obligations outstanding. 

At the time of issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds, the University will be in compliance with the conditions for issuance of Parity 
Bonds as contained in the Master Resolution. 

THE SYSTEM 

The System includes the following facilities: 

The Housing and Dining System operates student residence halls and apartment options for approximately 3,200 students, 
including unmarried freshmen less than 20 years of age.  The Housing and Dining System includes 19 residence halls, 
4 apartment complexes with 398 units, and 4 dining centers, as well as administrative, warehouse and maintenance facilities.  
For the 2012-13 academic year the designed occupancy of the residence halls is  2,978, however, the System considers 
approximately 2,612 to be available for student occupancy.  Average annual occupancy for the 2011-12 academic year was 
2,319 and there were 688 contract holders in the apartments (there may be more than one student contract holder per apartment 
unit).  The Housing and Dining System includes a conference program, which provides approximately 4.0 percent of the 
Housing and Dining System’s annual revenue.  Residence hall room and board fees, based on double occupancy and a standard 
meal plan, are $9,200 per student for the 2012-13 academic year.  See “Tuition and Room and Board Charges” in Appendix A 
herein. 

The Services and Activities (“S&A”) System provides for the nonacademic needs of the Associated Students of the University, 
including programs such as student government, radio station, student clubs, recreation opportunities, various student service 
programs, and operations of a student union and recreation center building.  Revenues are provided through student services 
and activities fees (“S&A fees”) authorized under State law and approved by the Board.  The University’s S&A fee is currently 
$231 per quarter for all full-time students and under State law may be adjusted annually in an amount up to the percentage 
increase in tuition.  In addition, certain students enrolled on the Ellensburg campus pay mandatory fees for support of the 
student union and recreation center.  These fees are $69 per quarter for the student union and $102 per quarter for the recreation 
center. 

The Bookstore System derives revenue from sales of a full line of academically related products and services through retail 
outlets at the Ellensburg campus and the six University centers and through an on-line website.  The Bookstore System also 
offers a variety of insignia items to foster school spirit and market the University. 

The Parking System provides parking spaces for over 4,000 vehicles and services to the campus community, maintains the 
parking infrastructure and flow of traffic on campus and enforces parking rules.  Revenues consist of fees paid for parking 
permits, which the University issues to students, employees and customers on a daily to annual basis, and fines collected from 
parking tickets issued. 
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Historical Operations of the System 

The System generates Gross Revenue from the four sources described above.  The following table provides the historical 
operations of the System for the five most recent fiscal years. 

Central Washington University System 
Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance (1) 

 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 
Gross Revenue      
Services and Activities  $13,253,713  $12,441,404  $12,161,217  $10,766,709  $10,312,005  
University Store 9,603,869   10,202,361  9,582,170  8,578,381  7,832,266  
Parking 1,027,555   1,108,149  1,043,371  1,047,956  937,813  
Housing and Dining   27,555,019    28,573,970    28,398,100    25,243,319  
Total Gross Revenue 

  22,788,956  
$51,440,156  $52,325,883  $51,184,858  $45,636,365  $41,871,040  

Operating Expenses      
Services and Activities  $  8,966,502  $  8,325,306  $  8,097,231  $  7,260,816  $  6,410,775  
University Store 9,464,942   9,315,245  8,882,270  8,064,425  7,567,604  
Parking 1,016,236   1,024,457  956,000  692,115  778,674  
Housing and Dining 22,558,681   21,421,338  21,247,615  18,906,139  18,022,469  
Depreciation     3,439,014      3,454,132      2,848,985      2,808,511  
Total Operating Expenses 

    2,804,214  
$45,445,375  $43,540,478  $42,032,101  $37,732,006  $35,583,736  

Net Revenue $  5,994,781  $  8,785,406 $  9,152,757  $  7,904,359  $  6,287,304  

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)      
Investment Income $                -  $            783  $       82,541  $     200,373  $     401,550  
Interest on Indebtedness  (5,627,860)  (5,406,577)  (4,851,720)  (3,735,119)  (3,677,062) 
Loss on Disposition of Asset -  - -   (1,840) -  
Non-operation income net of expenses        534,075        282,391        419,300       (145,107) 
Net Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 

     (196,878) 
$ (5,093,785) $(5,123,403) $(4,349,879) $(3,681,693) $(3,472,390) 

Income (Loss) before Other Revenues, 
Expenses, Gains or Losses $     900,996  $  3,662,002 $  4,802,878  $  4,222,666  $  2,814,914  

Net Assets, Beginning of Year $46,792,156  $43,130,153 $38,327,275  $34,104,607  $31,289,693  
Net Assets, End of Year $47,693,152  $46,792,155 $43,130,153  $38,327,273  $34,104,607  
(1) Information is based on audited financial statements of the System.   

Central Washington University System 
Parity Bond Debt Service for the Years 2008 to 2012 

 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 

Parity Bond Debt Service (1) $7,269,606 $7,271,036 $7,267,561 $6,371,965 $4,963,561 
(1) Excludes capitalized interest paid from bond proceeds. 

Outstanding Parity Bonds 

The University has outstanding the following parity bonds payable from the System revenue (the “Outstanding Parity Bonds”), 
as of February 1, 2013.   

Name of Issue Original Principal Outstanding Principal (1) 
System Revenue Bonds, Series 2004 $64,080,000 $   2,930,000 
System Revenue Bonds, Series 2008 36,495,000 34,375,000 
System Revenue Bonds, 2010, Series A&B (Taxable Build America 
Bonds – Direct Payment) 

34,465,000 34,465,000 

System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 7,665,000 7,665,000 
(1) Excludes the Refunded Bonds. 
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Schedule of System Revenue Bond Debt Service 

 
Outstanding Parity Bonds (1) The Bonds  

Fiscal 
  

Federal Credit 
   

Total Debt 
Year Principal Interest (2) Payments (3) Total Principal Interest Service 
2013 $  3,190,000  $  3,961,364  $     (688,923) $    6,462,441  

   2014 3,320,000  3,911,405   (685,143) 6,546,262  
   2015 1,860,000  3,784,892   (680,957) 4,963,935  
   2016 1,745,000  3,733,430   (675,811) 4,802,619  
   2017 1,815,000  3,664,080   (675,812) 4,803,268  
   2018 1,885,000  3,591,880   (675,811) 4,801,069  
   2019 1,960,000  3,514,905   (675,812) 4,799,093  
   2020 2,620,000  3,434,780   (675,811) 5,378,969  
   2021 2,715,000  3,320,530   (653,237) 5,382,293  
   2022 2,810,000  3,200,849   (629,874) 5,380,975  
   2023 2,140,000  3,075,674   (605,812) 4,609,862  
   2024 2,215,000  2,979,476   (592,718) 4,601,758  
   2025 2,305,000  2,879,711   (579,218) 4,605,493  
   2026 3,195,000  2,773,591   (565,212) 5,403,379  
   2027 3,325,000  2,605,870   (530,745) 5,400,125  
   2028 3,475,000  2,429,107   (494,800) 5,409,307  
   2029 3,615,000  2,243,960   (457,263) 5,401,697  
   2030 3,775,000  2,049,095   (418,247) 5,405,848  
   2031 3,325,000  1,845,332   (377,524) 4,792,808  
   2032 3,480,000  1,666,544   (346,874) 4,799,670  
   2033 3,105,000  1,479,111   (314,766) 4,269,345  
   2034 3,250,000  1,303,420   (281,197) 4,272,223  
   2035 3,405,000  1,112,840   (246,169) 4,271,671  
   2036 3,570,000  913,243   (209,560) 4,273,683  
   2037 3,740,000  704,030   (171,248) 4,272,782  
   2038 3,920,000  484,953   (131,233) 4,273,720  
   2039 1,795,000  255,413   (89,394) 1,961,019  
   2040     1,880,000         130,660           (45,731) 
 

      1,964,929  
  Totals $79,435,000  $67,050,145  $(13,174,902) $133,310,243  

   (1) Excludes the Refunded Bonds 
(2) Reflects interest prior to the application of the 35 percent federal credit payments relating to the University’s $31,950,000 System 

Revenue Bonds, 2010, Series B (Taxable Build America Bonds – Direct Payment).   
(3) Public reports have stated that, pursuant to certain federal budget legislation adopted in August 2011, in the absence of further budget 

reduction actions, starting as early as March 2013, and continuing until Congress takes action, federal credit payments will be reduced 
as part of a government-wide “sequestration” of expenditures.  It has been reported that subsidy payments will be reduced by 
approximately 7.6 percent overall for the federal 2013 fiscal year (ending September 30, 2013).  The actual percentage reduction, if 
any, and how that percentage will apply to individual federal credit payments, will not be known unless and until sequestration is 
implemented. 

Debt Payment Record 

The University has promptly met all principal and interest payments on its bonds and has never defaulted on a payment of 
principal or interest on any of its bonds or other obligations when due.  No refunding bonds have been issued for the purpose of 
preventing an impending default. 

Future Financing 

The University does not anticipate the issuance of Future Parity Bonds within the next two years.  The University periodically 
reviews its outstanding bonds for refunding opportunities and may issue bonds for refunding purposes if market conditions 
warrant.   

LEGAL INFORMATION 

Litigation 

At the time of delivery of and payment for the Series 2013 Bonds, the University will deliver a certificate stating that there is no 
litigation then pending or threatened to restrain or enjoin the issuance, sale, execution or delivery of the Series 2013 Bonds, 
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application of the proceeds of the Series 2013 Bonds as contemplated by the Bond Resolution, in any way contesting or 
affecting the validity of the Series 2013 Bonds, any proceedings of the University taken with respect to the issuance or sale 
thereof, the pledge or application of any money or security provided for the payment of the University, the existence or powers 
of the University or the title of any officers of the University to their respective positions.  

The University reports litigation of a general nature, but after consideration and investigation has concluded that it has 
meritorious defenses, or such litigation is immaterial and/or will have no impact on timely repayment of the Series 2013 Bonds. 

Approval of Counsel 

Legal matters incident to the authorization, issuance, and sale of the Series 2013 Bonds by the University are subject to the 
approving legal opinion of Foster Pepper PLLC, Seattle, Washington, Bond Counsel.  The form of the opinion of Bond Counsel 
with respect to the Series 2013 Bonds is attached as Appendix C.  The opinion of Bond Counsel is given based on factual 
representations made to Bond Counsel, and under existing law, as of the date of initial delivery of the Series 2013 Bonds, and 
Bond Counsel assumes no obligation to revise or supplement its opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that may 
thereafter come to its attention, or any changes in law that may thereafter occur.  The opinion of Bond Counsel is an expression 
of its professional judgment on the matters expressly addressed in its opinion and does not constitute a guarantee of result.  
Bond Counsel will be compensated only upon the issuance and sale of the Series 2013 Bonds. 

Limitations on Remedies  

Any remedies available to the owners of the Series 2013 Bonds upon the occurrence of an event of default under the Resolution 
are in many respects dependent upon judicial actions which are in turn often subject to discretion and delay and could be both 
expensive and time-consuming to obtain.  If the University fails to pay principal of or interest on the Series 2013 Bonds, there 
can be no assurance that available remedies will be adequate to fully protect the interest of the Registered Owners of the Series 
2013 Bonds. 

In addition to the limitations on remedies contained in the Bond Resolution, the rights and obligations under the Series 2013 
Bonds and the Bond Resolution may be limited by and are subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, fraudulent 
conveyance, moratorium and other laws relating to or affecting creditors’ rights, to the application of equitable principles, and 
to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases.  The opinion to be delivered by Foster Pepper PLLC, as Bond 
Counsel, concurrently with the issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds, will be subject to limitations regarding bankruptcy, 
insolvency and other laws relating to or affecting creditors’ rights.  A complete copy of the proposed form of opinion of Bond 
Counsel is set forth in Appendix C. 

TAX MATTERS 

Exclusion From Gross Income.  In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing federal law and assuming compliance with 
applicable requirements of the Code, that must be satisfied subsequent to the issue date of the Series 2013 Bonds, interest on 
the Series 2013 Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is not an item of tax preference for 
purposes of the alternative minimum tax applicable to individuals. 

Continuing Requirements.  The University is required to comply with certain requirements of the Code after the date of 
issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds in order to maintain the exclusion of the interest on the Series 2013 Bonds from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes, including, without limitation, requirements concerning the qualified use of Series 2013 
Bond proceeds and the facilities financed or refinanced with Series 2013 Bond proceeds, limitations on investing gross 
proceeds of the Series 2013 Bonds in higher yielding investments in certain circumstances, and the requirement to comply with 
the arbitrage rebate requirement to the extent applicable to the Series 2013 Bonds.  The University has covenanted in the Series 
Resolution to comply with those requirements, but if the University fails to comply with those requirements, interest on the 
Series 2013 Bonds could become taxable retroactive to the date of issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds.  Bond Counsel has not 
undertaken and does not undertake to monitor the University’s compliance with such requirements. 

Corporate Alternative Minimum Tax.  While interest on the Series 2013 Bonds also is not an item of tax preference for 
purposes of the alternative minimum tax applicable to corporations, under Section 55 of the Code, tax-exempt interest, 
including interest on the Series 2013 Bonds, received by corporations is taken into account in the computation of adjusted 
current earnings for purposes of the alternative minimum tax applicable to corporations (as defined for federal income tax 
purposes).  Under the Code, alternative minimum taxable income of a corporation will be increased by 75 percent of the excess 
of the corporation’s adjusted current earnings (including any tax exempt interest) over the corporation’s alternative minimum 
taxable income determined without regard to such increase.  A corporation’s alternative minimum taxable income, so 
computed, that is in excess of an exemption of $40,000, which exemption will be reduced (but not below zero) by 25 percent of 
the amount by which the corporation’s alternative minimum taxable income exceeds $150,000, is then subject to a 20 percent 
minimum tax. 
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A small business corporation is exempt from the corporate alternative minimum tax for any taxable year beginning after 
December 31, 1997, if its average annual gross receipts during the three-taxable-year period beginning after December 31, 
1993, did not exceed $5,000,000, and its average annual gross receipts during each successive three-taxable-year period 
thereafter ending before the relevant taxable year did not exceed $7,500,000. 

Tax on Certain Passive Investment Income of S Corporations.  Under Section 1375 of the Code, certain excess net passive 
investment income, including interest on the Series 2013 Bonds, received by an S corporation (a corporation treated as a 
partnership for most federal tax purposes) that has Subchapter C earnings and profits at the close of the taxable year may be 
subject to federal income taxation at the highest rate applicable to corporations if more than 25 percent of the gross receipts of 
such S corporation is passive investment income. 

Foreign Branch Profits Tax.  Interest on the Series 2013 Bonds may be subject to the foreign branch profits tax imposed by 
Section 884 of the Code when the Series 2013 Bonds are owned by, and effectively connected with a trade or business of, a 
United States branch of a foreign corporation. 

Possible Consequences of Tax Compliance Audit.  The Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) has established a general audit 
program to determine whether issuers of tax-exempt obligations, such as the Series 2013 Bonds, are in compliance with 
requirements of the Code that must be satisfied in order for interest on those obligations to be, and continue to be, excluded 
from gross income for federal income tax purposes.  Bond Counsel cannot predict whether the IRS would commence an audit 
of the Series 2013 Bonds.  Depending on all the facts and circumstances and the type of audit involved, it is possible that 
commencement of an audit of the Series 2013 Bonds could adversely affect the market value and liquidity of the Series 2013 
Bonds until the audit is concluded, regardless of its ultimate outcome. 

Bonds Not

The University is a governmental unit that, together with all subordinate entities, reasonably anticipates issuing more than 
$10,000,000 of tax exempt obligations (other than private activity bonds and other obligations not required to be included in 
such calculation) during the current calendar year, and has 

 “Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations” for Financial Institutions.  Section 265 of the Code provides that 100 percent 
of any interest expense incurred by banks and other financial institutions for interest allocable to tax-exempt obligations 
acquired after August 7, 1986, will be disallowed as a tax deduction.  However, if the tax-exempt obligations are obligations 
other than private activity bonds, are issued by a governmental unit that, together with all entities subordinate to it, does not 
reasonably anticipate issuing more than $10,000,000 of tax-exempt obligations (other than private activity bonds and other 
obligations not required to be included in such calculation) in the current calendar year, and are designated by the governmental 
unit as “qualified tax-exempt obligations,” only 20 percent of any interest expense deduction allocable to those obligations will 
be disallowed. 

not

Reduction of Loss Reserve Deductions for Property and Casualty Insurance Companies.  Under Section 832 of the Code, 
interest on the Series 2013 Bonds received by property and casualty insurance companies will reduce tax deductions for loss 
reserves otherwise available to such companies by an amount equal to 15 percent of tax-exempt interest received during the 
taxable year. 

 designated the Series 2013 Bonds as “qualified tax exempt 
obligations” for purposes of the 80 percent financial institution interest expense deduction.  Therefore, no interest expense of a 
financial institution allocable to the Series 2013 Bonds is deductable for federal income tax purposes. 

Effect on Certain Social Security and Retirement Benefits.  Section 86 of the Code requires recipients of certain Social Security 
and certain Railroad Retirement benefits to take receipts or accruals of interest on the Series 2013 Bonds into account in 
determining gross income. 

Other Possible Federal Tax Consequences.  Receipt of interest on the Series 2013 Bonds may have other federal tax 
consequences as to which prospective purchasers of the Series 2013 Bonds may wish to consult their own tax advisors. 

INITIATIVE AND REFERENDUM 

Under the State Constitution, the voters of the State have the ability to initiate legislation through the power of initiative and 
referendum.  Initiatives and referenda are submitted to the voters upon receipt of petitions signed by at least eight percent 
(initiatives) and four percent (referenda) of the number of voters registered and voting for the office of Governor at the 
preceding regular gubernatorial election.  Qualifying initiatives to the voters are submitted at the next state general election and 
must be approved by a majority of voters to be enacted into law.  Initiatives to the Legislature are submitted to the Legislature 
at its regular session each January.  Once submitted, the Legislature must either adopt the initiative as proposed, reject the 
proposed initiative (in which case the initiative must be placed on the ballot at the next state general election) or approve an 
amended version of the proposed initiative (in which case both the amended version and the original proposal must be placed 
on the next state general election ballot).  Any initiative approved by a majority of voters may not be amended or repealed by 
the Legislature within a period of two years following enactment, except by a vote of two–thirds of all the members elected to 
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each house of the Legislature; after two years, the law is subject to amendment or repeal by the Legislature in the same manner 
as other laws. 

In recent years there have been a number of initiatives filed in the State, including initiatives targeting fees and taxes imposed 
by local jurisdictions or subjecting local jurisdictions to additional requirements.  The University cannot predict whether this 
trend will continue, whether any filed initiatives will receive the requisite signatures to be certified to the ballot, whether such 
initiatives will be approved by the voters, whether, if challenged, such initiatives will be upheld by the courts, and whether any 
future initiative could have a material adverse impact on the University. 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

Basic Undertaking to Provide Annual Financial Information and Notice of Listed Events.  To meet the requirements of 
paragraph (b)(5) United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) Rule 15c2-12 (“Rule 15c2-12”), as 
applicable to a participating underwriter for the Series 2013 Bonds, the University will undertake (the “Undertaking”) for the 
benefit of holders of the Series 2013 Bonds to provide or cause to be provided, either directly or through a designated agent, to 
the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”), in an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB accompanied by 
identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB: 

(i) Annual financial information and operating data of the type included in this Official Statement as generally described 
below (“annual financial information”); and 

(ii) Timely notice (not in excess of ten business days after the occurrence of the event) of the occurrence of any of the 
following events with respect to the Series 2013 Bonds:  (1) principal and interest payment delinquencies; (2) non-
payment related defaults, if material; (3) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 
(4) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; (5) substitution of credit or liquidity 
providers, or their failure to perform; (6) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the IRS of proposed final 
determinations of taxability, Notice of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701 – TEB) or the material notices or 
determinations with respect to the tax status of the Series 2013 Bonds; (7) modifications to rights of holders of the 
Series 2013 Bonds, if material; (8) bond calls (other than scheduled mandatory redemptions of Term Bonds), if 
material, and tender offers; (9) defeasances; (10) release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the 
Series 2013 Bonds, if material; (11) rating changes; (12) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the 
University, as such “Bankruptcy Events” are defined in Rule 15c2-12; (13) the consummation of a merger, 
consolidation, or acquisition involving the University or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the 
University, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an 
action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if 
material; and (14) appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, if material. 

The University also will provide to the MSRB timely notice of a failure by the University to provide required annual financial 
information on or before the date specified below. 

Type of Annual Financial Information Undertaken to be Provided.  The annual financial information that the University 
undertakes to provide will consist of (a) annual financial statements prepared (except as noted in the financial statements) in 
accordance with applicable generally accepted accounting principles promulgated by the Government Accounting Standards Board 
(“GASB”), as such principles may be changed from time to time, which statements shall not be audited, except, however, that if and 
when audited financial statements are otherwise prepared and available to the University they will be provided; and (b) the tables 
entitled “Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance,” “Schedule of System Revenue Bond Debt Service,” 
“Annual Average Enrollment,” “Enrollment Statistics;” and “Budgeted versus Actual Enrollment” will be provided to the MSRB 
not later than the last day of the ninth month after the end of each fiscal year of the University (currently, a fiscal year ending June 
30), as such fiscal year may be changed as required or permitted by State law, commencing with the University’s fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2013. 

The annual financial information may be provided in a single or multiple documents, and may be incorporated by specific 
reference to documents available to the public on the internet website of the MSRB or filed with the SEC. 

Amendment of Undertaking.  The Undertaking is subject to amendment after the primary offering of the Series 2013 Bonds 
without the consent of any holder of any Bond, or of any broker, dealer, municipal securities dealer, participating underwriter, 
rating agency or the MSRB, under the circumstances and in the manner permitted by Rule 15c2-12. 

The University will give notice to the MSRB of the substance (or provide a copy) of any amendment to the Undertaking and a 
brief statement of the reasons for the amendment.  If the amendment changes the type of annual financial information to be 
provided, the annual financial information containing the amended financial information will include a narrative explanation of 
the effect of that change on the type of information to be provided. 
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Termination of Undertaking.  The University’s obligations under the Undertaking shall terminate upon the legal defeasance of 
all of the Series 2013 Bonds.  In addition, the University’s obligations under the Undertaking shall terminate if those provisions 
of Rule 15c2-12 which require the University to comply with the Undertaking become legally inapplicable in respect of the 
Series 2013 Bonds for any reason, as confirmed by an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel or other counsel familiar 
with federal securities laws delivered to the University, and the University provides timely notice of such termination to the 
MSRB.   

Remedy for Failure to Comply with Undertaking.  If the University or any other obligated person fails to comply with the 
Undertaking, the University will proceed with due diligence to cause such noncompliance to be corrected as soon as practicable 
after the University learns of that failure.  No failure by the University or other obligated person to comply with the 
Undertaking will constitute a default in respect of the Series 2013 Bonds.  The sole remedy of any holder of a Bond will be to 
take such actions as that holder deems necessary, including seeking an order of specific performance from an appropriate court, 
to compel the University or other obligated person to comply with the Undertaking.   

Continuing Disclosure Undertakings of the University.  The University has entered into prior undertakings under the Rule 
15c2-12 with respect to its obligations and is in compliance with its obligations thereunder.  

OTHER BOND INFORMATION 

Rating 

Moody’s Investors Service (“Moody’s) has assigned a rating of A1 to the Series 2013 Bonds.  Such rating reflects only the view 
of the rating agency.  There is no assurance that the rating will continue for any given period of time or that it will not be 
revised downward or withdrawn entirely by Moody’s if, in the judgment of the agency, circumstances so warrant.  An 
explanation of the significance of the rating may be obtained from Moody’s, 7 World Trade Center, 250 Greenwich Street, 
New York, New York 10007, (212) 553-0300.  Any such downward revision or withdrawal of the rating may have an adverse 
effect on the market price of the Series 2013 Bonds.   

Financial Advisor 

SDM Advisors, Inc. has served as financial advisor to the University relative to the preparation of the Series 2013 Bonds for 
sale, timing of the sale and other factors relating to the Series 2013 Bonds.  The financial advisor has not audited, authenticated 
or otherwise verified the information set forth in this Official Statement or other information provided relative to the Series 
2013 Bonds.  SDM Advisors, Inc. makes no guaranty, warranty or other representation on any matter related to the information 
contained in the Official Statement.  The financial advisor is an independent financial advisory firm and is not engaged in the 
business of underwriting, marketing, trading or distributing municipal securities.  A portion of the financial advisor’s 
compensation is contingent upon sale of the Series 2013 Bonds and delivery thereof to the underwriter. 

Underwriting 

The Series 2013 Bonds are being purchased by ____________ (the “Underwriter”) at a price of $_______.  The Series 2013 
Bonds will be re-offered at a price of $___________.  The Underwriter may offer and sell the Series 2013 Bonds to certain 
dealers (including dealers depositing Series 2013 Bonds into investment trusts) and others at prices lower than the initial 
offering prices set forth on cover hereof, and such initial offering prices may be changed from time to time by the Underwriter.  
After the initial public offering, the public offering prices may be varied from time to time. 

Official Statement 

Statements in this Official Statement, including matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so stated, are intended as such and 
not as representations of fact.  This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract or agreement between the University 
or the Underwriter and the Owners of the Series 2013 Bonds.  The preparation and distribution of this Official Statement has 
been authorized by the University. 

At the time of the delivery of the Series 2013 Bonds, one or more officials of the University will furnish a certificate stating that 
to the best of his knowledge and belief at the time of the sale or delivery of the Series 2013 Bonds, this Official Statement did 
not and does not contain any untrue statements of material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the 
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading in any material respect. 

The preparation and distribution of this Official Statement has been authorized by the University. 

CENTRAL WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 

By:      
 George Clark, Vice President for Business and Financial Affairs 
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Appendix A 
Central Washington University 

The University 

General Information 

Central Washington University (the “University”) was established in 1890 as Washington State Normal School, and then 
successively became Central Washington College of Education in 1937, Central Washington State College in 1961 and Central 
Washington University in 1977.  The University’s main campus is located in Ellensburg, in the central part of the state of 
Washington (the “State”), approximately 110 miles east of Seattle and 170 miles west of Spokane.  Additionally, the University 
supports eight University Centers, which are co-located with community colleges in Des Moines, Edmonds, Everett, Kent and 
Pierce County in Western Washington, and Moses Lake, Wenatchee and Yakima in Eastern Washington, where students can 
complete their baccalaureate degrees.  A dual-admission program allows community college students to be admitted to the 
University at the same time they are admitted to a community college, to streamline the admissions, advising and transfer 
processes.  Enrollment at the University Centers for fall 2012 represents approximately 14 percent of state-funded full time 
equivalent enrollment and 16 percent of state-funded headcount enrollment for the University. 

Academic Programs 

The University offers over 150 major courses of study in over 40 departments within its four colleges:  the College of Arts and 
Humanities, the College of Education and Professional Studies, the College of the Sciences and the College of Business.  The 
University also offers eleven pre-professional programs in dentistry, dietetics, engineering, law, medicine, nursing in public 
health, occupational therapy, optometry, pharmacy, physical therapy, and veterinary studies, at the undergraduate level.  
Seventeen departments offer a total of 27 graduate degree programs.  Other academic units of the University include the 
Library, the Office of Continuing Education, the Office of Undergraduate Studies, the Office of Graduate Studies and Research, 
International Studies & Programs and the William O. Douglas Honors College. 

Accreditation 

The University is accredited by the Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities (the “NWCCU”).  Based upon an 
extensive self-study and an NWCCU evaluation visit, the University’s accreditation status was reaffirmed by the NWCCU in 
January 2010.  Selected programs of the University - most typically those associated with professional degrees - also hold 
specialized accreditation and program approval from numerous accrediting associations and program approval bodies. 

Governance 

The University is governed by an eight-member Board of Trustees (the “Board”), which has broad responsibilities to supervise, 
coordinate, manage and regulate the University, as provided by State law.  Trustees are appointed by the Governor for a term of 
six years, except a student Trustee, who is appointed to a one-year term.  In addition to other powers and duties, the Board 
employs the President; has full control of the University and its property of various kinds except as provided by law; with the 
assistance of the faculty, prescribes the course of study in the various schools and departments thereof, and publish such 
catalogues thereof as the Board deems necessary; establishes divisions, schools, or departments necessary to carry out the 
purposes of the University and not otherwise proscribed by law; may acquire real and other property; may purchase supplies 
and purchase or lease equipment and other personal property needed for the operation or maintenance of the University; and 
may promulgate such rules and regulations, and perform all other acts not forbidden by law, as the Board deems necessary or 
appropriate to the administration of the University.   

Members of the Board of Trustees 

 
Individual 

 
Professional Affiliation 

Year of Initial 
Appointment 

Year Current 
Term Expires 

Sid Morrison, Chair US Congressman, Retired 2003 9/30/2015 
Keith Thompson, Vice Chair U.S. Bank Executive 2007 9/30/2013 
Dan Dixon Vice President for External Affairs, Swedish 

Medical Services 
2009 9/30/2018 

Ron Erickson Co-founder, Chairman of ivi, Inc. 2010 9/30/2015 
Chris Liu Director, Washington State Office of Minority 

and Women’s Business Enterprises 
2012 9/30/2018 

Kate Reardon Communications Director, City of Everett  2009 9/30/2017 
Annette Sandberg President, TransSafe Consulting 2009 9/30/2014 
Lindsey Sires Student  2012 6/30/2013 
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Chair and Vice Chair of the Board of Trustees   

Sid Morrison, Chair, was first appointed to the Board in 2003 with a current term ending in 2015.  Mr. Morrison was appointed 
State Secretary of Transportation from 1993 to 2001, after serving as a U.S. Representative from 1980 to 1992.  Previously he 
served in the State legislature from 1967 to 1973 and as a State senator from 1974 to 1980.  Now retired, Mr. Morrison serves 
on the executive board of Energy Northwest, a major northwest public power producer.  He earned his bachelor’s degree in 
agriculture from Washington State University. 

Keith Thompson, Vice Chair, was appointed to the Board in 2007 with a current term ending in 2013.  Mr. Thompson is a 
senior portfolio manager and managing director for U.S. Bank Private Asset Management, where he has worked since 1990.  
He previously worked for Kidder Peabody, worked in a general aviation business and was an officer in the U.S. Navy.  
Mr. Thompson has served on the board of the University Foundation for seven years, and serves on the finance committee for 
the Eastern Washington University Foundation.  Mr. Thompson earned his bachelor’s degree from the University. 

University Administration 

The University is administered by a President, who is appointed by the Board.  The President appoints administrative officers to 
assist in managing the University.  Brief resumes for the President and the current administrative officers follow. 

Dr. James L. Gaudino - President 

Dr. James L. Gaudino assumed the position of president at the University on January 1, 2009.  Before joining the University, 
Dr. Gaudino was the founding Dean of the College of Communication and Information (CCI) at Kent State University, a 
college that consists of the Schools of Communication Studies, Journalism and Mass Communication, Library and Information 
Science, and Visual Communication Design.  Dr. Gaudino was previously the Executive Director of the National 
Communication Association (NCA), a scholarly society of 7,000 members that works to improve instruction and to produce 
research on topics of both intellectual and social significance related to human communication.  While working at NCA, Dr. 
Gaudino also served as an adjunct professor at George Mason University and George Washington University.  Prior to taking 
the position at NCA, he served on the faculty at Michigan State University’s Department of Advertising.  Dr. Gaudino’s 
research interests include public relations and public opinion formation.  He has authored or co-authored numerous chapters, 
articles, monographs, and convention presentations, including publication in the Journal of Broadcasting and Electronic 
Media, Annals of the American Academy of Political and Social Science, Journalism Educator, Communication Education, 
and the Newspaper Research Journal.   

Dr. Gaudino holds a doctorate in Communications from Michigan State University and a masters in management from Troy 
State University.  He is a graduate of the United States Air Force Academy and served in the US Air Force in California, 
Turkey, and Germany. 

Dr. Marilyn Levine – Provost and Vice President of Academic and Student Life 

Dr. Marilyn Levine was appointed Provost and Vice President of Academic and Student Life in 2011.  She came from Eastern 
Oregon University where she served as Dean of Arts and Sciences since 2005, after having served as Chair of Social Sciences 
at Lewis-Clark State College.  Dr. Levine was trained as a historian of Asia (China and Southeast Asia), with graduate degrees 
from the University of Chicago and the University of Hawaii.  She has published two books, over four dozen articles, and 
created a dozen web sites from research, teaching, professional, and community service.  She has obtained and administered 
more than three dozen grants to fund research, teaching, and community projects.  She has received almost two dozen awards 
and honors, including three awards for teaching excellence.   

Dr. Levine has served on numerous boards of directors including the Idaho Humanities Council.  She served as chair of the 
Council of Conferences for the Association for Asian Studies and executive secretary of the Western Conference of the 
Association for Asian Studies.  From 2003 to 2004 Dr. Levine served as co-president of the Women in Higher Education 
Roundtable.  In 2004, she served as President of H-NET, (Humanities and Social Sciences Online) the world’s largest society 
of teachers and scholars dedicated to utilizing the educational potential of the Internet.   Dr. Levine holds a bachelor’s degree in 
history from San Diego State University, a master’s degree in history from the University of Hawaii and a doctorate in history 
from University of Chicago.   

George Clark –Chief Financial Officer/Vice President, Business and Financial Affairs 

George Clark was appointed as Chief Financial Officer/Vice President for Business and Financial Affairs in 2011, and is 
responsible for the departments of finance and budget planning, facilities management, business auxiliaries, public safety, 
information technology, and institutional research.  With over 30 years of financial management expertise, Mr. Clark leads the 
University’s work on business and financial matters and assists in institutional policy development.  He serves as the chair of 
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the University budget and finance committee, is a member of the President’s Cabinet and the President’s Advisory Council, and 
serves as treasurer for the Board.  

Before joining the University Mr. Clark was the associate director of administration at the National Radio Astronomy 
Observatory in Charlottesville, VA.  He was responsible for all administrative and business functions.  He led the strategic 
planning for a $150 million annual operating and construction budget and supported a $1 billion construction program in 
northern Chile.  Prior to that he served as director of administration for the Institute for Astronomy/University of Hawaii and 
director of research/support finance for the University of Tennessee-Battelle and as chief financial officer for the University of 
Tennessee-Battelle Development Corporation. 

Mr. Clark is a certified public accountant with a bachelor’s degree in accounting and a master of business administration from 
the University of Washington 

Sherer M. Holter – Chief of Staff  

Sherer Holter was named the Chief of Staff in 2010, having served in the position on an interim basis since October, 2009.  
Ms. Holter joined the University in 2006 as Assistant Vice President for Human Resources.  Ms. Holter has extensive 
experience in executive management positions that include State government, higher education and as a chief executive officer 
responsible for a multimillion dollar operation.   

Ms. Holter’s prior experience includes ten years in operational positions to include the role of chief executive officer and over 
30 years in executive level human resources positions.  Ms. Holter owned a consulting firm and has authored and published a 
consumer’s guidebook.  Her career has included state and local government, private sector and not-for-profit organizations.  
Ms. Holter holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration and a master’s degree in education and business from the 
University of South Carolina.  She has a Juris Doctor from Western State University College of Law.   

State Oversight of Higher Education 

The State has had a single state postsecondary education planning agency since 1975, as required to qualify for Federal 
planning and other funds (though the State has had various councils or boards to assist in providing oversight of higher 
education since 1969).  From 1985 to 2012, that agency was the Higher Education Coordinating Board (the “HECB”).  In 2012, 
the State Legislature created an Office of Student Financial Assistance (the “SFA”) to administer all state and federal financial 
aid and the State’s advanced college tuition payment program, and created a Student Achievement Council (the “Council”) to 
provide planning, coordination, monitoring, and policy analysis for higher education in the State in cooperation and 
consultation with the State’s higher education institutions, their governing boards and other segments of postsecondary 
education, including proposing statewide goals and priorities for higher education, tracking progress, conducting research and 
analysis, identifying transition issues and solutions, protecting higher education consumers, directing the SFA, and advocating 
for higher education.  As of July 1, 2012, the State’s Office of Financial Management (“OFM”) was assigned responsibility for 
prioritizing capital projects for the higher education system.  Except for the student financial aid and capital projects functions 
discussed above, all HECB powers, duties, resources, staff, and records have been transferred to the Council. 

Faculty and Employees  

Faculty members of the University are distinguished in both academic and teaching excellence.  In Fall 2012, 85 percent of the 
University’s 445 full-time instructional faculty held Ph.D. or terminal degrees.  The University maintains a tenure system for its 
instructional faculty.  As of Fall 2012, 54 percent of full-time faculty is tenured and an additional 24 percent are on the tenure 
track.   

Instructional Faculty 

 Fall 2012 Fall 2011 Fall 2010 Fall 2009 Fall 2008 
Full-time Instructional Faculty 445 433 428 432 432 
Part-time Instructional Faculty 133 163 161 173 
Total Instructional Faculty 

169 
578 596 589 605 601 

Percentage of Full-time Faculty tenured 54% 54% 53% 53% 53% 
Percentage of Full-time Faculty with Ph.D. or 

Terminal Degree 85% 88% 87% 87% 87% 

The University currently employs 445 full-time and 133 part-time faculty members, and 846 permanent staff members 
(classified and exempt) in addition to faculty.  The University has 1,013 employees that are represented by one of the three 
labor unions including the Washington Federation of State Employees (two-year contract through June 30, 2013), Public 
School Employees of Washington (two-year contract through June 30, 2013); and United Faculty of Central (four-year contract 
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through August 31, 2013).  Collective bargaining agreements reached with labor unions require approval by the Board and the 
represented employees, and funding by the State Legislature.  Management considers relations with its employees to be good. 

Student Enrollment 

The University’s main campus draws 94 percent of its enrollment from within the State.  Five counties, King, Kittitas, Pierce, 
Snohomish, and Yakima, account for 66 percent of all students from the State attending the Ellensburg campus.  The University 
Centers are non-residential and draw primarily from their respective local areas.  The University’s main campus has historically 
had the highest share of its students enter directly from high school and is, therefore, characterized by a young student body 
with an undergraduate average age of twenty-one.  The average high school grade point average for freshmen enrolled in fall 
2012 is 3.1, and the freshmen to sophomore retention rate from fall 2011 to fall 2012 was 74 percent.  The overall 
undergraduate retention rate is 82 percent. 

The following table shows average annual enrollment, based on full time equivalent (FTE) and headcount, for the current 
(estimated) and past four academic years. 

Annual Average Enrollment  

 2012-13 (1) 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09 
Total Annual Average (FTE) 10,062 10,315 10,380 10,109 9,454 
Total Annual Average Headcount 11,059 11,125 11,215 10,953 10,241 

(1) Average annual enrollment for 2012-13 is estimated, and were derived by calculating the average percentage of Fall FTE and 
headcount enrollment in prior years and extrapolating for 2012-13. 
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The following table shows graduate and undergraduate enrollments, applications, and acceptances, based on fall quarter 
enrollment for the past five years. 

Enrollment Statistics (1) 

 Fall 2012 Fall 2011 Fall 2010 Fall 2009 Fall 2008 
Fall Quarter Enrollment (Headcount)      
Undergraduates      
   Full-time 9,256 9,435 9,628 9,315 8,728 
   Part-time   1,481   1,335   1,423   1,450 
Total Undergraduates 

  1,453 
10,737 10,770 11,051 10,765 10,181 

Graduates      
   Full-time 366 391 336 337 266 
   Part-time 165 159 226 255 
Total Graduates 

215 
531 550 562 592 481 

Total – Undergraduates and Graduates      
   Full-time 9,622 9,826 9,964 9,652 8,994 
   Part-time   1,646   1,494   1,649   1,705 
Total: Full-time and Part-time 

  1,668 
11,268 11,320 11,613 11,357 10,622 

      
Fall Quarter Enrollment (FTE) 9,841 10,066 10,430 10,239 9,610 

Freshmen Applications & Admissions      
Applications 4,521 4,553 4,859 4,960 5,013 
Admitted 3,623 3,568 3,948 4,098 3,960 
Percentage of Applicants Admitted 80% 78% 81% 83% 79% 
Enrolled 1,424 1,308 1,666 1,660 1,559 
Enrolled as Percentage of Admissions 40% 39% 42% 41% 39% 

Transfer Students Applications & Admissions      
Applications 2,605 2,721 2,703 2,409 2,189 
Admitted 2,218 2,226 2,230 2,086 1,795 
Percentage of Applicants Admitted 85% 82% 83% 87% 82% 
Enrolled 1,360 1,365 1,414 1,509 1,124 
Enrolled as Percentage of Admissions 61% 61% 63% 72% 62% 

(1) Fall quarter enrollment as reported to the Integrated Post-secondary Education Data System, under which one FTE equals 
15 undergraduate credits or 12 graduate credits.  Includes both state-funded and non-state-funded students. 

Tuition and Room and Board Charges 

The State Legislature authorizes its public institutions of higher education to set tuition rates.  The State Legislature granted 
flexibility to public universities to set tuition levels for resident undergraduates, without limitation through June 30, 2013, 
however granting a rate in excess of the budget bill will make the institution subject to the conditions and limitations provided 
in chapter 28B.15 as amended by ESSHB1975 (higher education opportunity act).  The new requirement also increased the 
amount of tuition-funded financial aid from 3.5 percent to 4.0 percent of tuition operating fee revenues.  The State Legislature 
also granted flexibility to public universities to set tuition levels for graduate and non-resident undergraduate students.  Prior to 
the 2011-13 biennium, the State Legislature prescribed a maximum allowable rate of tuition increase for various public 
institutions.  Tuition and fees are set by the Board annually upon recommendation of the President.  There are two components 
of fees: tuition (consisting of building fees and operating fees) plus service and activities (“S&A”) fees, which are approved 
based on recommendations from students, through a formal process.  The University increased tuition by 14 percent for fiscal 
years 2012 and 2013.  S&A and other mandatory fees were unchanged or were increased by various, lower, percentages. 

Resident and non-resident tuition, including State-mandated fees, and room and board rates for the current year and past four 
academic years are shown in the table below and have been approved by the Board.  Resident undergraduates represent 
approximately 90 percent of all students at the University.  
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Tuition And Room And Board Charges 

Academic Undergraduate Students Graduate Students Room and  
Year Resident Non-Resident Resident Non-Resident Board (1) 

2012-13 $7,941 $18,573 $8,484 $18,939 $9,240 
2011-12 7,050 17,721 8,112 18,069 9,042 
2010-11 6,201 16,842 7,689 17,172 8,901 
2009-10 5,517 15,780 7,353 16,383 8,460 
2008-09 4,841  14,714  6,958  15,558  7,154  

(1) Residence Hall Room and Board, based on double occupancy and standard meal plan. 

Comparative Tuition and Fees for Academic Year 2012-13 
Washington State Public Universities/Colleges 

 

Resident 
Undergraduate 

Resident 
Graduate 

University of Washington $11,305 $13,358 
Washington State University 11,386 11,736 
Central Washington University 7,941 8,484 
Western Washington University 7,503 7,545 
The Evergreen State College 7,812 7,929 
Eastern Washington University 7,371 9,698 

Source: University Organizational Effectiveness Department 
 

Student Financial Aid 

A summary of student financial aid delivered to students for the two most recent academic years is provided below. 

Student Financial Aid 
 2011-12 % of Total 2010-11 % of Total 
Funding Source     
Federal $  87,771,139 71% $  89,777,902  68% 
State 14,765,999 12  13,889,774  11 
Institutional 21,736,845 18  19,547,278  15 
Private donor/Other       6,971,422     6        8,712,254  
Total 

    7 
$131,245,405 100% $ 131,927,208  100% 

Programs     
Grants $  36,326,318 30% $  35,100,881 27% 
Scholarships 2,624,224 2 4,166,390 3 
Employment 9,718,853 8 11,228,568 9 
Loans 74,347,312 60 72,219,746 55 
Waivers       8,228,698     7       9,211,623 
Total 

    7 
$131,245,405 100% $131,927,208 100 

Beginning fiscal year 2012, the University was granted the authority to raise tuition and was required to reserve at least 
4 percent of tuition operating fee revenue for college-based student scholarships and assistance (up from 3.5 percent 
previously).  Although the State has reduced funding for the State Need Grant and State Work-study programs over the past few 
years, these programs continue to provide critical support to certain students. 

The majority of the University’s students have historically repaid their federal student loans in a timely manner, as evidenced by 
the University’s low fiscal year default rates for the past several years.  The University’s official default rate for the William D. 
Ford Federal Direct Loan program was 4.9 percent for 2010, which is the most current information available.  The University 
has been a long-standing participant in the Federal Quality Assurance Program, to assure that the delivery of student aid funds 
is conducted accurately, expediently, and with integrity.  
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UNIVERSITY FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Basis of Accounting 

The University’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) 
Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments, and 
GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for Public Colleges and 
Universities.  The financial statements include a management’s discussion and analysis, a balance sheet, a statement of 
revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets, a statement of cash flows, and notes to the financial statements.  The format 
provides a comprehensive, entity-wide perspective of the University’s assets, liabilities, net assets, revenues, expenses, changes 
in net assets, and cash flows.    

For financial reporting purposes, the University is considered a special-purpose government, engaged only in business-type 
activities.  Accordingly, the University’s financial statements have been presented using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are 
recorded when an obligation has been incurred.  Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.  All significant intra-agency transactions have been eliminated.    

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed in the 
financial statements of a special-purpose government engaged in business-type activities to the extent that those standards do 
not conflict with or contradict guidance of GASB.  Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector 
guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation.  The University has elected not 
to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 

Auditing 

The University’s Financial Statements and selected auxiliary units are audited annually by the State Auditor’s Office, which 
provides an opinion on the financial statements.  The most recent audit covers the 2012 financial statements; and is completed.  
The auditor’s opinion relative to the 2012 financial statements is attached at Appendix B, but the final audit report is currently 
in production and expected to be issued by March 7, 2013.  The University does not expect any material differences between 
the attached unaudited financial statements and the report.   

The State Auditor’s Office also performs accountability audits to provide reasonable assurance of the University’s compliance 
with legal requirements and to determine if adequate internal controls are in place.  Prior to fiscal year 2011, the State Auditor’s 
Office conducted compliance and accountability audits on an annual basis.  Beginning with fiscal year 2011 the State Auditor’s 
Office is conducting compliance and accountability audits for individual universities less frequently and changing to 
compliance and accountability reviews of consistent areas across the public institutions of higher education.   

In addition, the State Auditor’s Office performs an annual audit of federal grant expenditures for the State as required by the 
Single Audit Act.  This audit is performed on a statewide basis and includes major federal programs at the University if selected 
for audit. 

 
 



A-8 

Central Washington University 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets (1) 

 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 
REVENUES:      
Student Tuition and Fees  $102,588,537  $  92,780,902 $  80,820,378  $  68,467,604  $  63,022,254  
Less tuition discounts  (28,837,617) (23,773,719)  (21,160,785)  (16,116,384)  (13,822,799) 
Federal Grants and Contracts (2) 5,564,108  6,664,889 6,959,174  14,216,721  13,705,978  
State and Local Grants and Contracts 16,197,338  15,261,532 14,273,758  13,734,124  12,407,552  
Non governmental grants and contacts 6,824,308  7,494,040 7,377,121  7,336,064  8,002,238  
Sales and services of educational  

activities and other sources 4,029,787  4,081,947 3,997,632  4,164,158  4,580,797  
Interest earned on loans to students 153,209  84,693 120,003  94,799  85,660  
Auxiliary enterprise sales – Housing and 

Dining 27,555,019  28,574,753 28,451,553  24,554,284  22,478,623  
Other Auxiliary Sales 12,342,923  12,945,726 12,298,092  11,363,766  10,506,739  
Less auxiliary discount        (518,839)         (591,521)        (763,271)        (566,976) 
Total Operating Revenues 

        (504,955) 
 $145,898,773  $143,523,242 $132,373,655  $127,248,160  $120,462,087  

OPERATING EXPENDITURES      
Educational and General      
Instruction  $  74,991,310  $  70,363,188 $  68,931,247  $  69,180,031  $  65,213,191  
Research 2,225,856  2,540,812 2,538,984  2,319,690  1,945,018  
Public Service 1,524,220  965,739 876,891  940,498  593,073  
Academic Support 9,460,452  9,793,108 9,559,296  9,043,680  9,393,114  
Student Services 10,237,103  10,148,889 10,550,176  10,516,130  10,913,430  
Institutional Support (3) 8,564,900  15,127,385 15,704,525  15,003,624  16,357,036  
Operation and maintenance of plant (4) 11,724,164  14,525,342 12,765,994  19,675,506  18,226,614  
Scholarships and other student aid 18,248,526  22,362,887 20,243,349  16,844,431  15,504,127  
Auxiliary enterprise expenditures 41,614,081  39,605,842 38,570,262  34,484,624  32,430,261  
Depreciation      16,011,773      15,885,890     15,267,750     14,499,632  
Total Operating Expenditures 

    13,755,414  
 $194,602,385  $201,319,082 $195,008,474  $192,507,846  $184,331,278  

Operating income (loss) $ (48,703,612) $ (57,795,840) $ (62,634,819) $ (65,259,686) $ (63,869,191) 
Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)      
State appropriations  $  32,801,000  $  41,811,000 $  39,844,033  $  56,994,142  $  56,606,285  
State appropriations (ARRA) (5) -  - 6,975,000  - - 
Pell Grant (2) 16,492,313  16,761,236 13,589,456  - - 
Investment income 2,697,912  7,001,518 4,388,166  215,097  2,172,114  
Gifts to permanent endowments 495,308  359,060 312,268  498,092  1,420,114  
Interest on indebtedness  (5,933,903) (5,742,144)  (5,210,940)  (4,138,730)  (4,108,373) 
Non-operating income net of expenses          446,220           117,030          626,901         (606,589) 
Net non-operating revenues (expenses) 

     (1,391,625) 
 $  46,998,850  $  60,307,700 $  60,524,884  $  52,962,012  $  54,698,515  

Income or loss before other revenues, 
expenses, gains, or losses $   (1,704,762) $    2,511,860 $   (2,109,935) $ (12,297,674) $   (9,170,676) 

Capital appropriations $  13,834,769  $  12,503,408  $  10,088,489  $  22,348,533  $  22,961,489  
Increase (Decrease) in net assets     10,798,646       16,346,629       7,978,554      10,050,859  
Net assets, beginning of the year 

    13,790,813  
 $354,687,218  $338,340,589 $330,362,035  $320,311,176  $307,561,165  

Prior Period Adjustment                    -                       -                      -                      -  
Net assets, end of year 

     (1,040,802) 
 $365,485,864  $354,687,218 $338,340,589  $330,362,035  $320,311,176  

(1) Information is based on audited financial statements of the University.   
(2) Due to an accounting change, starting in 2010, the University reports Pell Grants as Non-operating Revenue, rather than Operating 

Revenue. 
(3) The primary reason for the decrease in Institutional Support in 2012 is that the University allocated a percentage of the 

support/administrative costs to self support units, which were previously funded with state appropriations.  
(4) The amounts expended for plant maintenance are heavily dependent on State capital appropriations and revenue distributions from the 

Normal School Permanent Fund.  During 2012 the expense for plant maintenance out of these two fund sources decreased by 
$3,602,869 from 2011.   

(5) Reflects Federal stimulus funding provided through State appropriation, due to the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act. 
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State Funding for the University   

The University is one of six public universities in the State, and has traditionally received significant State funding for 
operations and capital projects.  Due to economic and financial stress over recent years, the State’s level of funding has 
declined over the past three biennia.  The Board has responsibility under State law for submitting a biennial budget plan for 
operations, as well as a list of prioritized capital project needs for which it is seeking funding, to the Governor for submission to 
the State Legislature. 

State Funding for Operations.  The State Legislature determines a budgeted level of operating support each year for each 
public institution of higher education in the State.  The level of funding has declined in recent years.  Historically, the State has 
provided operating support for academic buildings, based on a formula relating to estimated square footage of academic 
facilities, although the amount funded under the formula has declined in recent years.  

State budget adjustments may be made during subsequent legislative sessions, which modify the level of State funding support 
for the University’s operating budget.  During the past three biennia, the State has made reductions to operating appropriations 
during the biennium, which required the University to make mid-year budget adjustments.  While the State Legislature 
decreased funding for the University in recent biennia, it also provided the University with greater authority to increase tuition.  
In addition to increasing student tuition in recent years, the University has reduced the number of employees, eliminated 
programs, merged and consolidated units, and taken other actions to reduce operating expenditures.     

The following table shows the history of State operating budget appropriations to the University for the five most recent 
biennia, which information reflects any subsequent State budget reductions. 

 
Historical State Appropriations for University Operating Budget (1) 

 

2011-13 
Biennium 

2009-11 
Biennium 

2007-09 
Biennium 

2005-07 
Biennium 

2003-05 
Biennium 

State Operating Appropriation $64,141,000 $93,915,000 $113,083,000 $98,579,000 $81,156,000 
(1) Appropriations include State General, State Education Legacy Trust Account, and General Fund Basic Account Federal Stimulus 

Funds. 

State Funding for Capital Projects.  The State has historically funded capital projects for construction or renovation of 
academic buildings and minor capital improvements for the University in its capital budget.  The University has historically 
funded capital projects for auxiliaries or student facilities with auxiliary revenues or special revenue bonds, which do not 
require State funding or approval.  Prior to each biennium, the University provides a prioritized list of capital projects for which 
it is seeking State funding to the Washington State Achievement Council and OFM.  The University also submits capital project 
proposals, which are scored by OFM and combined into a single prioritized list for four-year higher education institutions.  
Major capital projects (projects in excess of $5 million) are generally reviewed by the State Legislature over a cycle of three 
biennia, with funding of the costs of pre-design, design and construction appropriated in sequential biennia.  The following 
table shows the history of capital budget appropriations to the University for the five most recent biennia.   

 
Historical State Appropriations for University Capital Budget 

 2011-13 
Biennium 

2009-11 
Biennium  

2007-09 
Biennium 

2005-07 
Biennium 

2003-05 
Biennium 

State Capital Appropriations $20,449,000 $40,468,000 $50,842,200 $21,470,000 $34,736,000 

The University maintains a ten-year Capital Improvement Plan (“CIP”) for academic facilities, which have historically been 
State-funded, as well as a CIP for facilities in each of its auxiliary systems, which are funded by the University.  The University 
reviews and updates its CIPs on a biennial basis to reflect changes in University priorities and changes in available funding. 
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University Operating Budget 

The information below shows the University budget plans, including State legislative appropriations, for the 2009-11 and 
2011-13 biennia, which reflect adjustments made during the biennial period.  The biennial budget plans do not include auxiliary 
operations, which are separately budgeted. 

 Operating Budget  
($ in Thousands) 

Fund 2011-13 Biennium 2009-11 Biennium 
State General Fund $  64,069,000 $  88,659,000 
CWU Operating Fees Account      115,650,000      88,735,000  
Local Dedicated Revenue 37,116,000 30,809,000 
Grants and Contracts, Fund 145      82,607,000 
     Total Operating Funds 

     48,465,000 
$299,442,000 $256,668,000 

State Appropriations.  The State appropriated $64,069,000 and $88,659,000 of operating funds for the 2011-13 biennium and 
the 2009-11 biennium, respectively.  The State Legislature built the 2011-13 State appropriation budget based on an assumed 
14 percent tuition increase for in-state undergraduate students in each of fiscal years 2012 and 2013, although the University 
had discretion to determine the actual level of increase in tuition.  The State’s initial 2009-11 biennial budget provided funding 
of $93,915,000 for the University, which was subsequently decreased to $88,659,000.   

CWU Operating Fees Account.  Tuition Operating Fees represent the operating portion of the tuition and fees charged to 
students attending the University, and investment income on the operating fees.  Other than a set percentage of the operating fee 
that is mandated to be used for student financial aid (currently four percent), operating fees are budgeted and used by the 
University for operation of the University, at the discretion of the Board, after appropriation by the State Legislature. 

Local Dedicated Revenue.  Local Dedicated Revenue is used by the University to account for dedicated revenue sources, such 
as indirect cost reimbursement on sponsored research projects, institutional administrative fees, miscellaneous student fees and 
interest earnings, and self-sustaining program revenues, distance education, conferences, non-credit outreach courses, summer 
session tuition, and other sales of materials and services to University units or non-University customers.   

Grants and Contracts.  For the 2011-13 biennium, the University’s budgeted revenue from grants and contracts exceeded 
operating appropriations from the State for the first time.  Financial aid to students through scholarships provides an important 
component of grant-funded support to the University.  Pell Grants from the federal government and State Need Grants from the 
State provide support for tuition and housing to students from lower income families who might not otherwise be able to attend 
a university.  Revenue in this category, other than financial aid, scholarships and students loans, includes $4,026,183 in research 
funding. 

The Central Washington University Foundation 

The University is supported by a private not-for-profit corporation, the Central Washington University Foundation (the 
“Foundation”).  The Foundation is legally separate from the University, and acts as the University’s primary fundraising 
organization to supplement State and other funding.  In addition to funds raised directly by the Foundation, all unrestricted gifts 
to the University, with the exception of those involving a State match of funds, are received by the Foundation.  Under GASB 
39 criteria, the Foundation is an affiliated organization that meets the criteria for discrete presentation.  The Foundation 
maintains separately audited financial statements, and the Foundation’s financial condition and activities are presented as a 
discretely reported component unit in the University’s financial statements.  

During fiscal year 2012, the Foundation raised $1,405,315 in donations and earned approximately $884,867 in investment 
gains.  As of June 30, 2012, total net assets of the Foundation were $18,283,665, of which $11,381,966 were permanently 
restricted and $5,921,932 were temporarily restricted.  Funds are used primarily for direct academic support and scholarships.  
The University provides the Foundation with operational staff, and related office expenses, including office space, furniture and 
equipment necessary for its operations.  The Foundation provided $1,583,847 in scholarships and academic program support to 
the University in Fiscal Year 2012. 
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The following shows net assets held by the Foundation for each of the past five fiscal years. 

Net Assets Held By The Foundation 
For Years Ended June 30 (1) 

 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008  

Unrestricted $      979,767 $     914,766 $     (29,137) $     490,874 $     970,898 
Temporarily Restricted 5,921,932 6,230,390 4,556,186 3,900,691 5,217,048 
Permanently Restricted 11,381,966 10,891,147 10,494,239 10,125,097 9,600,481 
Total Net Assets $18,283,665 $18,036,303 $15,021,288 $14,516,662 $15,788,427 

(1) Information for years 2008 through 2011 is based on audited financial statements of the University.  Information for 2012 is unaudited. 

Investments 

The University manages cash and investments centrally, and pools University operating funds for investment purposes.  The 
University’s investment policy is structured to limit exposure to fair value losses by limiting the duration of the portfolio.  The 
University accounts for its investments at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools.  Changes in unrealized gain (loss) on the carrying value 
of investments are reported as a component of investment income in the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net 
assets.  The following table, which shows the University Investments at Fair Market Value, includes investments of the 
Foundation, which is reported as a component unit of the University. 

University Investments at Fair Market Value 

 December 31, 2012 (1) June 30, 2012 (2) June 30, 2011 (2) 
Local Government Investment Pool $47,422,346 $  26,975,269 $    3,655,750 
U.S. Government Securities  6,543,012 5,573,261 13,469,211 
State and Municipal Bonds 14,103,291 14,313,204 17,828,679 
Corporate Bonds 2,069,632 2,247,122 2,141,922 
Fixed Income Bonds 4,386,216 470,388 319,047 
Foreign Bonds 217,376 219,144 218,195 
Investments in Equity 13,473,305 15,634,068 15,834,697 
Certificates of Deposit 500,000 - 21,193,291 
Money Market Investments     1,043,591       1,201,824 
   Sub-total 

         823,720 
$89,758,769 $  66,634,280 $  75,484,512 

Bank Demand and Time Deposits 4,978,078 38,136,685 42,235,792 
Other        111,487          117,467 
     Total 

         124,308 
$94,848,334 $104,888,434 $117,844,612 

(1) Information is unaudited. 
(2) Information is based on audited financial statements of the University.  

State Normal School Permanent Fund 

The University is a beneficiary of the State’s Normal School Permanent Fund (the “Permanent Fund”), established under 
RCW 43.79.160 as a permanent endowment fund, the earnings from which are invested and used for the benefit of the State’s 
four regional universities, including Eastern and Western Washington Universities, The Evergreen State College, and the 
University.  The primary source of new principal for the Permanent Fund are revenues, primarily timber sales, from certain 
State lands granted to the State by the Federal government for state normal schools, and which are managed by the State’s 
Department of Natural Resources.  The principal and revenue of the Permanent Fund are invested by the State Treasurer’s 
Office.  For the year ending June 30, 2012, the University received $2,236,432 in earnings and distributions from the 
Permanent Fund, which is used for capital purposes of the University, after appropriation by the State Legislature. 

Risk Management 

In accordance with State policy, the University self-insures unemployment compensation for all employees.  Payments for State 
general fund employees are appropriated by the State.  The University assesses local funds a semi-monthly payroll expense for 
unemployment compensation for all local fund employees.  Charges for all local funds are based on employee earnings.  The 
percentage charged is based primarily upon the insured fund’s claims experience.  Payments made to State general fund 
employees and all local fund employees for the year ended June 30, 2012, were $85,412 and $109,218, respectively.  Cash 
reserves for the unemployment compensation for all local fund employees at June 30, 2012 was $390,572. 
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Pension Plans  

The University offers four contributory retirement plans that cover eligible faculty, staff, and administrative employees.  The 
Washington State Public Employees’ Retirement System (“PERS”) Plans 1, 2, and 3, Washington State Teachers Retirement 
System (“TRS”) Plans 1, 2, and 3, and the Law Enforcement Officers’ and Fire Fighters’ (“LEOFF”) Plan 2, are multiple-
employer, defined benefit, public retirement plans administered by the State.  The University Retirement Plan (the “CWURP”) 
is a defined contribution plan administered by the University.  Under each plan, the employee and employer contribute a 
percentage of the employee’s compensation.  An actuarial valuation of the PERS, TRS and LEOFF plans for University 
employees is not available on a stand-alone basis.  See Appendix B, Note 13, for additional discussion of the University’s 
pension plans 

CWURP.  The CWURP is a defined contribution pension plan with a supplemental payment, when required.  The CWURP plan 
covers faculty, professional staff, and certain other employees and is administered by the University.  The University’s Board is 
authorized to establish and amend benefit provisions.  Contributions to the plan are invested in annuity contracts or mutual fund 
accounts offered by the three plan sponsors. Benefits from fund sponsors are available upon separation or retirement at the 
employee’s option. Employees have at all times a 100 percent vested interest in their accumulations.  Employee contribution 
rates to CWURP are based on age, and range from 5 percent to 10 percent of salary.  The University matches employee 
contributions to this plan, and all required contributions have been made.   

The CWURP contributions for the year ending June 30, 2012, were $4,110,926 for employees and $4,110,26 for the 
University. 

PERS, TRS and LEOFF.  PERS 1 provides retirement and disability benefits, and minimum benefit increases beginning at age 
66 to eligible non-academic plan members hired prior to October 1, 1977.  PERS 2 and 3 provide retirement and disability 
benefits, and a cost-of-living allowance, to eligible non-academic plan members hired on or after October 1, 1977.  In addition, 
PERS 3 has a defined contribution component, which is fully funded by employee contributions.  PERS defined benefit plan 
benefits are vested after an employee completes five years of eligible service.  

TRS 1 provides retirement and disability benefits, a lump sum death benefit, and minimum benefits increases beginning at age 
65 to certain eligible faculty hired prior to October 1, 1977.  TRS 2 and 3 provide retirement benefits, and cost-of-living 
allowance to certain eligible faculty hired on or after October 1, 1977.  

In addition TRS 3 has a defined contribution component which is fully funded by employee contributions. Defined benefit plan 
benefits are vested after an employee completes five years of eligible service.  

LEOFF 2 provides retirement benefits and a cost of living allowance for eligible law enforcement officers.  LEOFF System 
benefits are vested after an employee completes five years of eligible service.  

The authority to establish or amend benefit provisions for PERS, TRS, and LEOFF plans resides with the Washington State 
Legislature.  The Washington System Department of Retirement Systems issues a publicly available financial report that 
includes financial statements and required supplementary information.  The report may be obtained by writing to the 
Washington System Department of Retirement Systems, P.O. Box 48380, Olympia, WA, 98504.  

The required contribution rates expressed as a percentage of covered payroll at September 1, 2012, were as follows: 

 Employee University 
PERS   
Plan I 6.00% 7.21% 
Plan II 4.64 7.21 
Plan III Various 7.21 
TRS   
Plan I 6.00% 8.05% 
Plan II 4.69 8.05 
Plan III Various 8.05 
LEOFF Plan II 8.46% 8.62% 
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The required contributions for the year ending June 30, 2012, were as follows: 

 Employee University 
PERS $1,401,456 $1,977,835 
TRS 60,828 69,108 
LEOFF 64,363 65,580 

Other Post Employment Benefit Obligations 

The CWURP has a supplemental payment component, which guarantees a minimum retirement benefit to eligible retirees based 
upon a one-time calculation at the employee’s retirement date.  While the University will continue making supplemental 
payments required for qualifying retirees, this feature of the CWURP no longer applies for new employees hired after June 30, 
2011.  The University makes direct payments to qualifying retirees when the retirement benefits provided by the fund sponsors 
do not meet the benefit goals (“Required Annual Payment”).  The supplemental payment component is financed on a pay-as-
you-go basis.  The Required Annual Payment changes from year to year, and was $696,000 in 2012.  Actuarial evaluations 
were performed in 2004, 2007, 2009 and 2011 to calculate the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability, which was estimated at 
$6,599,000, as of June 30, 2012.  The actuarial assumptions included an investment rate of return of 4.25 percent and projected 
salary increases ranging from 2 percent to 4 percent.  Approximately $47,836,146 of the University’s payroll was covered 
under this plan during fiscal year 2012. 

Health care and life insurance programs for employees of the State are administered by the Washington State Health Care 
Authority (the “HCA”).  The HCA calculates the premium amounts each year that are sufficient to fund the State-wide health 
and life insurance programs on a pay-as-you-go basis.  These costs are passed through to individual state agencies based upon 
active employee headcount; the agencies pay the premiums for active employees to the HCA.  The agencies may also charge 
employees for certain higher cost options elected by the employees.  

State retirees may elect coverage through state health and life insurance plans, for which they pay less than the full cost of the 
benefits, based on their age and other demographic factors.  

The health care premiums for active employees, which are paid by the agency during employees’ working careers, subsidize the 
“underpayments” of the retirees.  An additional factor in the Other Post Employment Benefits (“OPEB”) obligation is a 
payment that is required by the State Legislature to reduce the premiums for retirees covered by Medicare (an “explicit 
subsidy”).  This is also passed through to State agencies via active employees rates charged to the agency. There is no formal 
State or University plan that underlies the subsidy of retiree health and life insurance.   

An actuarial study performed by the Office of the State Actuary calculated the total OPEB obligation of the State at 
November 1, 2011.  The actuary calculated the OPEB obligation based on individual state employee data, including age, 
retirement eligibility, and length of service.  The probability of an employee of a given age and length of service retiring and 
receiving OPEB benefits is based on statewide historical data.  The actuary’s allocation of the overall statewide liability related 
to the University was approximately $37 million, with the annual required contribution (“ARC”) of approximately $3.7 million.  
The ARC represents the amortization of the liability for fiscal year 2012 plus the current expense for active employees, which is 
reduced by the current contributions of approximately $639,000.  The University’s net OPEB obligation at June 30, 2012 was 
approximately $16 million.  This amount is not included in the University’s financial statements.  The State’s combined annual 
financial report can be obtained at:  http://www.ofm.wa.gov/cafr/. 

Funding Status of State Retirement Systems 

While the University’s contributions in fiscal year 2012 represented its full current liability under PERS, TRS and LEOFF, any 
unfunded pension benefit obligations within the systems could be reflected in future years at higher contribution rates.  The 
website of the Office of the State Actuary includes information regarding the values and funding levels of these retirement 
plans. 

According to the 2011 Actuarial Valuation Report (the “Report”) prepared by the Office of the State Actuary, as of June 30, 
2011, PERS Plans 2 and 3 and LEOFF Plan 2 had no unfunded actuarial accrued liability.  According to the Report, the total 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability of PERS Plan 1 is $3.684 billion and of TRS Plan 1 is $1.773 billion, each as of June 30, 
2011.  The assumptions used by the State Actuary in calculating unfunded liability are an 7.90 percent annual rate of investment 
return, 3.75 percent general salary increases and 3.00 percent inflation.  Liabilities were valued using the “Projected Unit 
Credit” cost method and assets valued using the actuarial value of assets, which defers a portion of the annual investment gains 
or losses over a period of up to eight years. 

Assets for one plan may not be used to fund benefits for another plan; however, all employers in PERS and all employers in 
TRS are required to make contributions at rates (percentage of payroll) determined by the Office of the State Actuary every two 
years for the purpose of amortizing within a rolling 10-year period the unfunded actuarial accrued liability in PERS Plan 1 and 
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TRS Plan 1, respectively.  The State Legislature in 2009 established certain maximum contribution rates that began in 2009 and 
continue until 2015 and certain minimum contribution rates that are to become effective in 2015 and remain in effect until the 
actuarial value of assets in PERS Plan 1 and in TRS Plan 1 equal 100 percent of their respective actuarial accrued liability.  
These rates are subject to change by future legislation enacted by the State Legislature to address future changes in actuarial and 
economic assumptions and investment performance.   

In 2011, the State Legislature ended the future automatic annual increase, which is a fixed dollar amount multiplied by the 
member’s total years of service, for most retirees in PERS Plan 1 and TRS Plan 1.  This action is expected to reduce the 
unfunded accrued actuarial liability in PERS Plan 1 and TRS Plan 1, although litigation challenging this legislation has been 
filed. 

 
 



Appendix B 
Audited Financial Statements of the University 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
The most recent audit covers the 2012 financial statements; and is completed.  The auditor’s opinion relative to the 2012 
financial statements is attached, but the final audit report is currently in production and expected to be issued by March 7, 
2013.  The University does not expect any material differences between the attached unaudited financial statements and the 
report. 
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March 1, 2013 

 

 

 

TO MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

OF CENTRAL WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY: 

 

Attached is the annual financial report of Central Washington University. It has been prepared from the university's 

accounting records and reflects Central Washington University's financial position as of June 30, 2012, and the 

results of its operations for the year then ended. 

 

Central Washington University maintains its accounts in accordance with the guidelines established by the 

Washington State Office of Financial Management and the state of Washington. To the greatest extent possible, this 

report has been prepared in compliance with the accounting principles suggested by the American Institute of 

Certified Public Accountants and the National Association of College and University Business Officers. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

George H. Clark 

CFO/Vice President for 

Business and Financial Affairs 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

 

Introduction 
 

The following Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides an overview of the financial position and 

activities of Central Washington University for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, with comparative 2011 and 

2010 financial information. This discussion provides an objective and easily readable analysis of the university’s 

financial performance for the year. The information has been prepared by management and should be read in 

conjunction with the financial statements and accompanying notes to the financial statements, which follow this 

section. 

 

Central Washington University (CWU) is one of six state-assisted, four-year institutions of higher education in 

Washington. A regional comprehensive university, CWU offers baccalaureate and graduate degrees in more than 

100 academic programs to over 10,000 students. Throughout its history, the university has distinguished itself in 

many ways, most notably through quality teaching and academic programs, student-centered orientation, and 

commitment to research, outreach, and international experiences for faculty and students, and provision of life-long 

learning opportunities to the citizens of Washington. The university is comprised of the College of Arts and 

Humanities, College of the Sciences, College of Education and Professional Studies, and College of Business. 

CWU's faculty, numbering more than 500, compiles an impressive record of teaching, scholarship, and service. The 

main campus is located in Ellensburg, a community of approximately 18,000 that enjoys one of the finest living 

environments of the Pacific Northwest. In the shadow of the Cascade Mountains and only minutes from the 

Wenatchee National Forest, Ellensburg is situated in the Kittitas Valley, an agricultural region 110 miles east of 

Seattle, the cultural heart of Washington State.  
 

The university is governed by a Board of Trustees appointed by the governor with the consent of the Senate. One 

member is a full-time student of the university. By statute the Board of Trustees has full control of the university and 

its property of various kinds, except as otherwise provided by law. 

 

Using the Financial Statements 
 

The university’s financial reports include the Statement of Net Assets; the Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and 

Changes in Net Assets; and the Statement of Cash Flows. The Statement of Net Assets provides information about 

the university at a moment in time, at year-end. The Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets 

and the Statement of Cash Flows provide information about operations and activities over a period of time. 

Together, these statements, along with the notes to the financial statements, provide a comprehensive way to assess 

the university’s financial health as a whole. 

 

These financial statements utilize the accrual basis of accounting; i.e., all of the current year’s revenues and 

expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or payments are made. Full accrual financial 

statements are intended to provide a view of the university’s financial position similar to that presented by most 

private-sector companies. These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting 

Standards Board (GASB) principles, which establish standards for external financial reporting for public colleges 

and universities. Current GASB standards require that financial statements be presented on a consolidated basis in 

order to focus on the university as a whole.  

 

 

Financial Highlights for Fiscal Year 2012 
 

The university recorded an increase of net assets of $10,798,646 in fiscal year 2012. The university’s administration 

continues to effectively manage costs while maintaining solid enrollment figures. The state’s economy appears to 

have stabilized with current revenue projections showing slight increases in the next couple of years. With the 

economy showing signs of improvement, the university’s fiscal year 2012 operating appropriations were not 

reduced, but actually increased for the first time since fiscal year 2009. This increase was a result from the 

correction of an error by the state legislature in calculating prior year allotments and not necessarily tied to improved 

revenue forecasts.    
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With the combined effects of a slight increase to the 2012 appropriations and tuition revenue increases the university 

was fortunate to increase available resources that will allow certain projects to be started and completed that were 

previously put on hold due to budget constraints. The majority of these projects that were put on hold involved 

implementing information technology system upgrades, which when fully operational will provide for greater 

operating efficiencies in the future. 

 

Operating revenues typically are not sufficient to cover all of the university’s operating expenses, which result in an 

operating loss. Non-operating revenues, including state operating and capital appropriations, Pell grant revenue, 

investment income and gifts, usually offset the operating loss resulting in an increase in net assets of the university. 

Listed below are a few key financial results from fiscal year 2012. 

 

 

 Assets increased by $9,946,378. 

 Liabilities decreased by $852,268. 

 Capital assets, net, totaled $401,253,569, an increase of $19,303,044 over fiscal year 2011. 

 Net assets increased by $10,798,646 to $365,485,864. 

 

 

 

Key Financial Results for FY 2012 Compared to FISCAL YEARS 2011 

AND 2010 (in thousands) 

 

 2012 2011 2010 

Total operating revenues $145,899 $143,523 $132,374 

Operating expenses 194,602 201,319 195,008 

 Operating Loss (48,703) (57,796) (62,634) 

    

State appropriations 32,801 41,811 39,844 

State appropriations (ARRA) - - 6,975 

Investment income (loss) 2,698 7,002 4,388 

Gifts 495 359 312 

Capital appropriations 12,503 13,835 10,088 

Pell grant revenue 16,492 16,761 13,589 

Interest on indebtedness (5,933) (5,742) (5,211) 

Non-operating income net of expenses 446 117 627 

 Total net non-operating revenues 59,502 74,143 70,612 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 10,799 16,347 7,978 

 Net assets, beginning of year 354,687 338,340 330,362 

  Net assets, end of year $365,486 $354,687 $338,340 

 

 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
 

The Statement of Net Assets presents the financial position of the university at the end of the last two fiscal years 

and includes all assets and liabilities of the university, including the Central Washington University Foundation. 

This statement represents assets available to continue operations of the institution and how much the institution 

owes vendors, employees, investors and debt service obligations. Total assets increased during the fiscal year ending 

June 30, 2012, by $9,946,378 to $530,571,665. Total liabilities decreased during the fiscal year ending June 30, 

2012, by $852,268 to $165,085,801.  

 

Current assets consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, accounts receivables, and 

inventories. The amount of current assets at June 30, 2012, was $72,159,461, an increase of $26,403,045 from 2011. 

The increase in current assets was predominantly in cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable. Cash and 

cash equivalents increased by $23,564,964 to $58,175,460 in 2012. The primary reason for the increase was due to 

extremely low short-term interest rates in the governmental bond market.  
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As a result the university increased its’ balance in the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) by $23,319,519 to 

$26,975,269 in 2012 (Note 2). As the short-term investment rates increase the university will invest appropriately to 

maximize earnings and will also maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet current operations and to fund 

major projects.  

 

Also contributing to the increase in current assets was accounts receivable, which increased by $2,747,162 to 

$10,301,866 in 2012. This increase is attributable to mainly two areas of operation: tuition and fees and federal, state 

and local grants, which increased by $1,562,221 and $1,031,066 respectively. 

 

During 2011 the amounts in cash and cash equivalents increased by $10,241,023 over 2010 with the university again 

choosing to limit investing in short-term low yielding investments in order to take advantage of more attractive long-

term investment opportunities as they became available.   

 

Non-current assets are primarily composed of investments, student loans receivable, cash or investments restricted 

for capital projects and capital assets, net of depreciation. Fiscal year 2012 non-current assets decreased by 

$16,456,667 to $458,412,204. The university’s two major capital construction projects, Barto Hall and Hogue Hall, 

were still being completed during fiscal year 2012. These two projects were the main factors that contributed to the 

increase of $19,303,044 in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation. The increase to capital assets, net of 

depreciation was offset by decreases in cash & investments restricted for capital projects and investments, which 

decreased by $20,374,161 and $16,146,981. The decrease in cash & investments restricted for capital projects 

directly correlates to the spending of bond proceeds to complete the new Barto residence hall.  

 

Investments decreased in fiscal year 2012 largely due to the extremely low interest rates being offered on 

governmental bonds, which the university primarily invests in. As noted above cash & cash equivalents increased 

due to this very reason, while the university waits for longer term investment options to become available in the 

market. 

 

The amount of capital assets, net of depreciation at June 30, 2011, was $381,950,525, which was an increase of 

$6,893,356 from 2010. The majority of the increase was from the continued progress on the construction of the new 

Barto residence hall and also from the remodel/addition of Hogue Hall. 

 

Current liabilities include accounts payable, accrued payroll liabilities, deferred revenues, deposits payable, and the 

current portion of bonds/leases payable. Current liabilities typically fluctuate from the timing of processing accounts 

payable and deposits payable, changes in the current year bond/leases payment schedule, and the current portion of 

accrued liabilities. Current liabilities at June 30, 2012, were $23,769,880, an increase of $2,167,247 from 2011. Two 

areas that contributed to the overall increase were accrued liabilities and leases/bonds payable, which increased by 

$945,811 and $960,000 respectively. The current portion of accrued liabilities increased by $945,011 in 2012 over 

2011, principally from student loan activity and the timing of reimbursements from the federal government. The 

increase in leases/bonds payable was due to the first principal payment on the Series 2010 bonds scheduled to be 

made in fiscal year 2013 (Exhibit IV). Fiscal year 2011 current liabilities decreased by $2,049,833 from fiscal year 

2010 mainly from accounts payable and salaries & wages payable.  

 

Non-current liabilities mainly include compensated absences, supplemental retirement liabilities, and long-term debt 

obligations (Notes 9, 11, 12 and 13). Non-current liabilities will vary from year to year primarily from adjustments 

to non-current compensated absence liabilities and as the university makes its scheduled debt service payments. 

Non-current liabilities decreased by $3,019,515 to $141,315,921 at June 30, 2012. The decrease is from the 

university making its’ scheduled principal payments on long-term debt obligations. Non-current liabilities increased 

by $32,161,855 over 2010 due to the issuance of $34,465,000 in revenue bonds to finance the construction of Barto 

residence hall. 

 

The difference between total assets and total liabilities is net assets (equity), and it is an indicator of the university’s 

overall financial condition. A summary and comparison of the university’s assets, liabilities, and net assets as of 

June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 is shown below. 

 

Net assets are divided into four major categories. 
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 Investment in Capital Assets Net of Related Debt: Equity in property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure, 

net of accumulated depreciation, and outstanding debt obligations related to those capital assets. 

 Restricted Assets Non-Expendable: Funds on which a donor or external party has imposed restrictions.  

 Restricted Assets Expendable: Resources which the university is legally or contractually obligated to spend in 

accordance with restrictions placed on the funds. 

 Unrestricted Net Assets: All other funds available to the university for general and educational obligations and 

may be expended for any lawful purpose. The university will often internally designate these assets for specific 

purposes. 

 

 

As of June 30, 2012, net assets totaled $365,485,864, an increase of $10,798,646 over the June 30, 2011, balance of 

$354,687,218. Every net asset category increased in 2012 with the exception of the loans category in the restricted 

assets expendable section. Restricted expendable net assets in the loans category decreased by $856,547 in 2012 

over 2011. This decrease is from the university awarding more financial aid grants in 2012 from its tuition/grant 

fund to assist students meeting specific criteria to remain enrolled at Central Washington University.  

 

Investment in Capital Assets Net of Related Debt increased during fiscal year 2012 by $1,724,545 to $268,608,128. 

The university continues to work toward the completion of two major capital projects, Hogue Hall and Barto Hall. 

Work has also begun on a few new capital projects including Science Building phase II, infrastructure/utility 

upgrades, renovation of Samuelson Building, and the beginning design phase of a new Nutrition, Exercise and 

Health Sciences building.  

 

Unrestricted Net Assets increased by $8,932,012 from $52,982,413 to $61,914,425 in 2012. University 

administration and senior management have been pro-active in their strategic planning and budget development 

during these past few years of heavy state appropriation reductions. Those aggressive plans include increased effort 

on both recruitment and retention of students, identifying operational efficiencies and ensuring implementation of 

those efficiencies. The primary areas with growth in unrestricted net asset balances continue to be the general 

university tuition fund, summer session activities and university auxiliary units.  

 

 

  

Statement of Net Assets      

 2012  2011  2010 

Assets      

     Current assets  $72,159,461  $45,756,416  $36,501,924 

     Non-current assets 57,158,635  92,918,346  62,607,543 

     Capital assets, net of depreciation 401,253,569  381,950,525  375,057,169 

          Total assets 530,571,665  520,625,287  474,166,636 

      

Liabilities      

     Current liabilities  23,769,880  21,602,633  23,652,466 

     Non-current liabilities  141,315,921  144,335,436  112,173,581 

          Total liabilities  165,085,801  165,938,069  135,826,047 

      

Net Assets      

     Investment in capital assets, net of related debt 268,608,128  266,883,583  265,462,539 

     Restricted: nonexpendable  14,817,293  14,345,684  13,948,776 

     Restricted: expendable  20,146,018  20,475,538  19,005,954 

     Unrestricted  61,914,425  52,982,413  39,923,320 

          Total net assets  365,485,864  354,687,218  $338,340,589 
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As of June 30, 2011, net assets totaled $354,687,218, an increase of $16,346,629 over the June 30, 2010, balance of 

$338,340,589. Every net asset category increased in 2011 with the exception of the other category in the restricted 

assets expendable section.  Investment in Capital Assets Net of Related Debt increased during the fiscal year by 

$1,421,044 to $266,883,583, primarily due to two major projects, Hogue Hall and Barto Hall. Total Restricted 

Assets, expendable and nonexpendable, increased by $1,866,492 to $34,821,222 as a result of increased earnings on 

endowment investments and an increase in the university’s short-term loan fund. Unrestricted Net Assets increased 

by $13,059,093, from $39,923,320 to $52,982,413 in 2011. This increase was largely due to three main operational 

areas of the university, tuition, summer session and auxiliary operations.  

 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets provides information about the operating 

performance of the university and the effects of non-operating transactions over a one-year period of time. The 

statement classifies activities as either “operating” or “non-operating.” This distinction results in an operating loss 

because state operating and capital appropriations are classified as non-operating revenues, but are budgeted and 

utilized for operations. Below is a condensed comparison of the university’s revenues, expenses, and changes in net 

assets for the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010. 

 

Summary Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets 

 2012  2011  2010 

Operating revenues $145,898,773  $143,523,242  $132,373,655 

Operating expenses (194,602,385)  (201,319,082)  (195,008,474) 

     Operating loss (48,703,612)  (57,795,840)  (62,634,819) 

      

Non-operating revenues 65,436,161  79,884,613  75,824,313 

Non-operating expenses (5,933,903)  (5,742,144)  (5,210,940) 

   Net non-operating revenues (expenses) 59,502,258  74,142,469  70,613,373 

      

Increases in net assets 10,798,646  16,346,629  7,978,554 

Net assets beginning of year  354,687,218  338,340,589  330,362,035 

       Net assets end of year $365,485,864  $354,687,218  $338,340,589 

 

 

The graph shows revenues by source (both operating and non-operating), which are used to fund the operations of 

the university and its programs for the year ended June 30, 2012. 
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The following table provides a comparison of total revenues for the years ended 2012, 2011, and 2010. 

Revenues by Source (in 

thousands) 
   

 2012 2011 2010 

Tuition & Fees                                    $73,751   35% $69,007   31% $59,660 29% 

Grants & Contracts                               28,586 14% 29,420 13% 28,610 14% 

Auxiliary Services                                39,379 19% 40,929 18% 39,986 19% 

Operating Appropriations                     32,801 15% 41,811 19% 46,819 22% 

Capital Appropriations                         12,503 6% 13,835 6% 10,088 5% 

Pell Grant                                             16,492 8% 16,761 8% 13,589 7% 

Investment Income                                2,698 1% 7,002 3% 4,388 2% 

Other Revenues & Gifts                          5,125 2% 4,643 2% 5,058 2% 

      Total $211,335 100% $223,408 100% $208,198 100% 
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35% 

Grants & Contracts 
14% 

Auxiliary Services  
19% 

Operating 
Appropriations 

15% 

Capital 
Appropriations 

6% 
Pell Grant 

8% 

Investment Income 
1% 

Other Revenue & 
Gifts 
2% 

FY 2012 Revenues by Source 

B-11



 

 

Operating and Non-operating Revenues 

 

Operating revenues are comprised primarily of tuition and fees, grant and sponsored program revenue, revenues 

generated from auxiliary enterprises, and other general support operations. Non-operating revenues consist of state 

operating appropriations, Pell grant revenue, and investment income. Other non-operating revenues include state 

capital appropriations and increases to permanent endowments. 

 

Operating revenues in fiscal year 2012 totaled $145,898,773, an increase of $2,375,531 from 2011. Only three 

categories of operating revenues showed positive increases in 2012. Student tuition and fees (net), state and local 

grants and contracts and interest earned on student loans. Student tuition and fees (net) increased by $4,743,737 over 

2011. The university continues its’ focus to increase enrollment levels in spite of implementing tuition rate increases 

of 14% in 2012 and 2011, due to state appropriation budget cuts. As shown in the table above tuition and fee 

revenues increased by 4% of the total revenue to 35%, conversely state operating appropriations decreased by 4% 

to15% from 2011. The table below presents a five year look at the decrease in state appropriations as a percentage of 

total revenues. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

State and local grants and contracts increased in 2012 by $935,806 over 2011 primarily from increased Washington 

State Need Grants awarded to CWU students, which accounted for $977,144 of the overall increase. Interest earned 

on student loans increased by $68,516 over 2011 as a result of more students paying their loans, which resulted in 

lower student loans receivable balances at June 30, 2012 as compared to June 30, 2011. 

 

Operating revenues in fiscal year 2011 totaled $143,523,242, an increase of $11,149,587 from 2010. Tuition and 

fees accounted for $9,347,590, or 83.8% of the increase. All other areas contributing to operating revenue remained 

stable with slight increases in each category.  

 

Non-operating revenues in 2012 were $65,436,161, which was a decrease of $14,448,452 from 2011. As indicated 

earlier the state of Washington’s economy continues to recover out of the recession, which has placed a huge strain 

on all state budgets. Fiscal year 2012 operating appropriations decreased to $32,801,000 from $41,811,000 in 2011. 

While this 22% decrease was twice the amount of state appropriation cut the university received in 2011 it could 

have been slightly worse. During the 2012 legislative session the university was told to expect anywhere from an 

additional two to five million dollars in supplemental budget cuts, but due to positive revenue forecasts and the 

correction of a base funding calculation the state was actually able to increase the budget for fiscal year 2012. This is 

good news and provides hope for more predictable, stable funding from the state legislature in the future.  
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The other non-operating source of revenue, which declined in fiscal year 2012 was investment income. Investment 

income decreased by $4,303,606 to $2,697,912 in 2012. Three major sources of investment income saw dramatic 

declines these include the Central Washington University Foundation’s endowment fund, the university’s 

endowment fund and the university’s share of earnings in the Normal School Permanent Fund (Note 6). 

 

Non-operating revenues in 2011 were $79,884,613, which was an increase of $4,060,300 from 2010. As mentioned 

earlier the state of Washington’s economy was recovering from the recession, but at an extremely slow pace in 

2011, which resulted in a $5,008,033 reduction to state operating appropriations. Capital appropriations increased by 

$3,746,280 to $13,834,769 in fiscal year 2011. Other increases to non-operating revenues in fiscal year 2011 were 

from Pell grant revenue and investment income, which increased $3,171,780 and $2,613,352 respectively over fiscal 

year 2010.   

 

Operating and Non-operating Expenses 

 

Total operating expenses decreased by $6,716,697 to $194,602,385 in 2012. Fiscal year 2012 operating expenses by 

function varied widely from 2011. The majority of increases occurred in instruction, public service and auxiliary 

enterprises. Instruction expenses increased to $74,991,310 an increase of $4,628,122 over 2011. Direct instruction 

expenses increased due to a combination of an increase in the number of faculty to address class workloads and also 

from an administrative fee implemented in fiscal year 2012. Public service expenses increased over 2011 by 

$558,481 to $1,524,220 in 2012. This increase is attributable to a new federal grant award where the university as 

part of the program requirements provides a public outreach program to local communities with the goal being to 

inform and prepare future students to addend a university.  The university’s auxiliary enterprise expenditures 

increased by $2,008,239 to $41,614,081in fiscal year 2012.  Auxiliary enterprise expenses increased largely due to 

implementation of an internal administrative fee.  

 

Conversely the university had three major functions of operating expenses, institutional support, operation and 

maintenance of plant and scholarship and other student aid decrease in 2012. Institutional support expenses 

decreased by $6,562,485 to $8,564,900 in fiscal year 2012. The primary reason for the decrease was the university 

allocated a percentage of the administrative overhead expenses to the functional areas of the university. The 

university has allocated a percentage of the support/administrative costs to self support units, which were previously 

funded with state appropriations. These services are no longer fully funded with the current budget levels.  

 

Operation and maintenance of plant expenses decreased in fiscal 2012 by $2,801,178 to $11,724,164. The amounts 

expended for plant maintenance are heavily dependent on capital appropriations and revenue distributions from the 

Norman School Permanent Fund. These two revenue sources are intended for preservation and maintenance projects 

on the university’s academic and administration buildings.  During fiscal year 2012 the expenses for plant 

maintenance out of these two fund sources decreased by $3,602,896 from 2011. This decrease was offset by an 

increase in expenditures out of general tuition revenues of $1,045,703. 

 

Scholarships and other student aid expenses decreased by $4,114,361 to $18,248,526 in 2012. The major factor 

contributing to the decrease is an increase in institutional aid/grants provided to assist students in financing their 

college education resulting in a decrease in expenses and an increase in the tuition revenue that is discounted. 

 

 Total operating expenses increased by $6,310,608 from $195,008,474 in fiscal year 2010 to $201,319,082 in fiscal 

year 2011. Every category of operating expenses increased during fiscal year 2011 with the exception of student 

services and institutional support, which decreased by $401,287 and $577,140 respectively from fiscal year 2010. 

This decrease was primarily from reduced personnel costs due to budget constraints. Operations and maintenance of 

plant had the largest percentage increase in operating expenses, which was 13.8% or $1,759,348 over 2010. This 

increase is directly attributed to the increase in capital appropriations received, which were used for preservation and 

maintenance of academic and administrative facilities. Scholarships and other student aid had the second largest 

percentage increase in operating expenses of 10.5% or $2,119,538 from fiscal year 2010. A majority of this increase 

was from Pell grant related expenditures.  
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Operating and Non-operating Expenses    

 2012 2011 2010 

Operating expenses $194,602,385 $201,319,082 $195,008,474 

Non-operating expenses 5,933,903 5,742,144 5,210,940 

      Total operating and non-operating expenses $200,536,288 $207,061,226 $200,219,414 
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As identified on the pie chart, total instructional expenses comprised 45% of all university operating expenses 

during fiscal year 2012 this is an increase of 4% over 2011. Direct instruction expenses for all funds increased by 

$4,628,122 from 2011 to $74,991,310 in 2012.  After remaining relatively flat from 2009 to 2010 instruction 

expenses have steadily increased the last two fiscal years. The university remains committed to its primary 

mission—to prepare students for responsible citizenship, responsible stewardship of the earth, and to lead 

enlightened and productive lives. Enduring reductions in state funding have driven the need for the university to 

continue to effectively manage its limited resources while still providing quality instruction to a growing student 

body. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

CAPITAL CONSTRUCTION AND RELATED DEBT 
 

Capital construction is a high priority as the university modernizes and replaces outdated academic and residential 

facilities, continues to develop and improve campus infrastructure and utilities, and reduces deferred maintenance. 
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2010 

2011 
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Operating Expenses by Function  – All Funds 

 2012 2011 2010 

Instruction $74,991,310 38.5% $70,363,188      35.0% $68,931,247 35.4% 

Research 2,225,856 1.1% 2,540,812 1.3% 2,538,984 1.3% 

Public service 1,524,220 .8% 965,739 .5% 876,891 .4% 

Academic support 9,460,452 4.9% 9,793,108 4.9% 9,559,296 4.9% 

Student services 10,237,103 5.3% 10,148,889 5.0% 10,550,176 5.4% 

Institutional support 8,564,900 4.4% 15,127,385 7.5% 15,704,525 8.1% 

Operations and maintenance of plant 11,724,164 6.0% 14,525,342 7.2% 12,765,994 6.5% 

Scholarships and other student aid 18,248,526 9.4% 22,362,887 11.1% 20,243,349 10.4% 

Auxiliary 41,614,081 21.4% 39,605,842 19.7% 38,570,262 19.8% 

Depreciation 16,011,773 8.2% 15,885,890 7.8% 15,267,750 7.8% 

Total operating expenses $194,602,385 100% $201,319,082 100% $195,008,474 100% 
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Major remodeling and system upgrade projects continue on campus that will bring older buildings and infrastructure 

into compliance with current teaching methodology and technology, health and safety needs, and code requirements.  

 

The university had $401,253,569 in capital assets net of depreciation at fiscal year-end 2012, an increase of 

$19,303,044 from 2011. The university currently has five major capital projects at various stages of completion, 

which account for a majority of the increase in the capital asset balance at June 30, 2012. The five projects are 

described in minor detail below: 

 

 Barto Hall Replacement: The next project in the university’s comprehensive housing master plan is to 

demolish the old Barto residence hall and construct a new 368-bed, four-story residence hall in its existing 

space. This project was funded by the issuance of $34,465,000 in revenue bonds in November 2010 (Note 

11). Barto Hall was completed and occupancy began Fall quarter 2012. 

 

 

 Hogue Hall Renovation: The current major project the university is undertaking is the renovation of 

Hogue Hall. This project remodels the existing building and adds an additional 57,000 square feet.  

Construction is funded for $30,265,000 through state capital appropriations. 

 

 Science Phase II: Science Phase II is a major capital project, which will house the departments of 

Geology, Physics and Science Education and the Center for Excellence in Science and Mathematics 

Education (CESME). The proposed building will total approximately 109,000 square feet and if funded by 

the state legislature will cost approximately $69 million. 

 

 Samuelson Building Renovation: The Samuelson Communication and Technology Center (SCTC) 

project is a renovation of the existing Samuelson Union Building, which has been vacated since 2006. This 

project will return the building into service as an integrated communication and technology center, 

providing a central location for information technology support, storage, and instruction, as well as 

broadcast television and services for academic programs. The university was appropriated five million for 

design in the 2011-2013 biennium. The university has requested an additional $60 million for the 

construction/remodel of the building for the 2013-2015 biennium. 

 

 Nutrition, Exercise & Health Sciences Building: This project will construct a new facility to house the 

Nutrition, Exercise and Health Sciences (NEHS) programs and establish a physical presence for the Health 

Careers program. The university was appropriated $300,000 for pre-design of the facility in 2011-2013 

biennium. Central Washington University will be requesting an additional four million to finish the design 

phase of the building and will follow up with a request of approximately $45 million for the construction of 

the facility. 

 

The university had $381,950,525 in capital assets net of depreciation at year-end 2011—an increase of $6,893,356 

from fiscal year 2010. The two major projects that were under construction were the Hogue Hall remodel/addition 

and the replacement of Barto Hall. The Barto Hall project is the next step in the university’s housing master plan, 

with an anticipated completion date of fall quarter 2012.   

 

 

  

B-16



 

 

The following table provides a comparison of capital assets for the fiscal years ended 2012, 2011, and 2010. 

 

Capital Assets    

 2012 2011 2010 

Land   $4,801,900 $4,801,900 $4,471,078 

Construction in Progress                   61,389,643 29,211,299 11,773,420 

Buildings        356,592,752 356,592,752 356,353,635 

Improvements & Infrastructure          87,007,211 87,007,211 85,011,339 

Equipment           31,478,795 29,671,609 27,986,877 

Building Perpetuity Rights                  30,792,094 30,792,094 30,792,094 

Library Resources                               26,556,353 25,872,411 25,314.621 

Other Capital Assets                                138,472 103,472 103,472 

    

   Total Capital Assets            598,757,220 564,052,748 541,806,536 

    

Less Accumulated Depreciation               197,503,651 182,102,223 166,749,367 

    

Capital Assets, Net            $401,253,569 $381,950,525 $375,057,169 

 

 

                    (A detailed presentation of changes in capital assets and long-term debt is displayed in Notes 7 and 11.) 

 

 

PROSPECTS FOR THE FUTURE 

 

Central Washington University’s financial position continues to improve despite the recent struggles with both the 

state and national economies. Net assets continue to increase as a result effective budget management, continued 

identification of efficiencies and a pro-active enrollment management plan that both acknowledges and adapts to the 

increasing competitiveness of attracting highly qualified students. As the state’s economy slowly stabilizes and 

begins to improve, the university’s administration is cautiously optimistic the state legislature will work towards 

developing a plan that will begin to slowly reinstate some of the funding lost during the recession. While the 

university acknowledges funding levels may never get back to pre-recession levels, we are hopeful a long-term plan 

can be put in place that will allow for smaller increases in tuition.  

 

Even through these rough and turbulent times the university has never lost touch with its core values and mission, 

which is to prepare students for responsible citizenship, responsible stewardship of the earth and enlightened and 

productive lives.  
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Central Washington University 

  

 
Statement of Net Assets 

  

 
As of June 30, 2012 and 2011 

  

       

2012 

 

2011 

 
Assets 

      

  

Current assets: 

     

   

Cash and cash equivalents 

 

58,175,460 

 

34,610,496  

   

Accounts receivable, net 

 

10,301,866 

 

7,554,704  

   

Student loans receivable, net 

 

910,690 

 

768,982  

   

Interest receivable 

  

370,955 

 

501,644  

   

Inventories 

  

2,400,490 

 

2,320,620  

    

Total current assets 

 

72,159,461 

 

45,756,416  

  

Non-current assets: 

     

   

Cash restricted for capital projects 

 

7,168,672 

 

11,349,542  

   

Investments restricted for capital projects 

 

- 

 

16,193,291 

   

Investments 

  

39,544,302 

 

55,691,283  

   

Student loans receivable, net 

 

6,309,221 

 

6,552,918  

   

Issuance costs, net of amortization 

 

1,868,136 

 

1,754,667  

   

Funds with State Treasurer 

 

2,268,304 

 

1,376,645  

   

Capital assets, net of depreciation 

 

401,253,569 

 

381,950,525  

    

Total non-current assets 

 

458,412,204 

 

474,868,871  

          

    

Total assets 

 

530,571,665 

 

520,625,287  

 
Liabilities 

      

  

Current liabilities: 

     

   

Accounts payable  

  

4,162,436 

 

3,322,504  

   

Accrued liabilities, current portion 

 

10,247,887 

 

9,302,076  

   

Deposits payable 

  

1,219,162 

 

918,255  

   

Deferred revenues 

  

4,370,395 

 

5,249,798  

   

Leases & bonds payable, current portion 

 

3,770,000 

 

2,810,000  

    

Total current liabilities 

 

23,769,880 

 

21,602,633  

  

Non-current liabilities: 

     

   

Construction accounts payable 

 

1,400,349 

 

1,200,704  

   

Accrued liabilities 

  

3,403,671 

 

2,780,994  

   

Net bond premium/discount, net of amortization 

 

961,901 

 

788,880  

   

Long-term liabilities 

  

135,550,000 

 

139,564,858  

    

Total non-current liabilities 

 

141,315,921 

 

144,335,436  

          

  

                                                  Total liabilities 

 

165,085,801 

 

165,938,069  

          

 
Net Assets 

      

  

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 

 

268,608,128 

 

266,883,583  

  

Restricted for: 

      

   

Nonexpendable:   

     

   

Scholarships and Professorships 

 

14,817,293 

 

14,345,684  

   

Expendable: 

     

   

    Endowment Earnings 

 

1,157,504 

 

1,096,220  

   

    Loans 

   

9,297,298 

 

10,153,845  

   

    Other 

   

9,691,216 

 

9,225,473  

  

Unrestricted 

   

61,914,425 

 

52,982,413  

          

    

Total net assets 

 

365,485,864 

 

354,687,218  

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 
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Central Washington University 

 Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets 

 For the Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 

 

    

2012 

 

2011 

   

 
Operating Revenues 

   

   

Student tuition and fees 102,588,537  

 

92,780,902  

   

   less tuition discounts (28,837,617) 

 

(23,773,719) 

   

Federal grants and contracts 5,564,108  

 

6,664,889  

   

State and local grants and contracts 16,197,338  

 

15,261,532  

   

Nongovernmental grants and contracts 6,824,308  

 

7,494,040  

   

Sales and services of educational activities and other sources 4,029,787  

 

4,081,947  

   

Interest earned on loans to students 153,209  

 

84,693  

   

Auxiliary enterprises sales - Housing and dining 27,555,019  

 

28,574,753  

   

Other Auxiliary sales 12,342,923  

 

12,945,726  

   

   less auxiliary discounts (518,839) 

 

(591,521) 

   

Total operating revenue 145,898,773  

 

143,523,242  

       

 
Operating Expenses 

   

  

Educational and General  

   

   

Instruction 74,991,310  

 

70,363,188  

   

Research 2,225,856  

 

2,540,812  

   

Public service 1,524,220  

 

965,739  

   

Academic support 9,460,452  

 

9,793,108  

   

Student services 10,237,103  

 

10,148,889  

   

Institutional support 8,564,900  

 

15,127,385  

   

Operation and maintenance of plant 11,724,164  

 

14,525,342  

   

Scholarships and other student aid 18,248,526  

 

22,362,887  

   

Auxiliary enterprise expenditures 41,614,081  

 

39,605,842  

   

Depreciation 16,011,773  

 

15,885,890  

   

       Total operating expenses  194,602,385  

 

201,319,082  

       

   

Operating income (loss) (48,703,612) 

 

(57,795,840) 

       

 

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 

   

   

State appropriations 32,801,000  

 

41,811,000  

   

Pell Grant  16,492,313  

 

16,761,236  

   

Investment income  2,697,912  

 

7,001,518  

   

Gifts to permanent endowments 495,308  

 

359,060  

   

Interest on indebtedness (5,933,903) 

 

(5,742,144) 

   

Non-operation income, net of expenses 446,220 

 

117,030  

   

Net non-operating revenues (expenses) 46,998,850  

 

60,307,700  

   

Income or (loss) before other revenues, expenses, gains, or losses (1,704,762)  

 

2,511,860 

   

Capital appropriations 12,503,408  

 

13,834,769  

       

   

Increase (Decrease) in net assets 10,798,646  

 

16,346,629  

       

   

Net assets, beginning of year  354,687,218  

 

338,340,589  

       

   

Net assets, end of year 365,485,864  

 

354,687,218  

       See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 
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 Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Used by Operating Activities 

   

  

Operating loss      ($48,703,612) 

 

    ($57,795,840) 

  

  Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used by operating activities 

  

  

Depreciation                16,011,773  

 

15,885,890  

  

  Changes in assets and liabilities 

   

  

    Accounts receivable                 (2,386,610)  

 

1,312,948 

  

    Student loans receivable                      101,959  

 

214,716 

  

    Interest receivable                      130,689 

 

(139,481) 

  

    Inventories                       (79,870)  

 

204,004  

  

    Accounts payable                    1,039,577 

 

(678,495) 

  

    Accrued expenses                    1,568,488 

 

(327,630)  

  

    Deferred revenue                      (879,403) 

 

(191,714)  

  

    Student and other deposits                       300,907 

 

(708,403)  

  

            Net cash used by operating activities           ($32,896,102) 

 

(42,224,004) 

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 

 

 
Statement of Cash Flows 

 

 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 

 

   

 2012  

 

2011 

 

Cash flows from operating activities 

   

  

Tuition and fees      $71,309,294  

 

$69,905,232  

  

Grants and contracts               27,554,688  

 

30,004,760  

  

Payments to vendors             (63,695,291) 

 

(72,606,699) 

  

Payments to employees for salaries and benefits           (112,367,125) 

 

(113,628,613) 

  

Auxiliary enterprise charges               39,518,393  

 

40,858,031  

  

Sales and services of educational activities and other sources                 4,500,041  

 

4,298,073  

  

Interest received on loans to students                    283,898 

 

(54,789)  

  

Net cash used by operating activities             (32,896,102) 

 

             (42,224,004) 

 
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities 

   

  

State appropriations               32,440,448  

 

41,438,327  

  

Pell Grants               16,492,313  

 

16,761,236  

  

Gifts for other than capital purposes                    495,308  

 

359,060  

  

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities               49,428,069  

 

58,558,623  

 
Cash flows from investing activities 

   

  

Purchases of investments              (12,063,576) 

 

(66,035,428) 

  

Proceeds from sales of investments                44,403,848  

 

43,783,032  

  

Investment Income                  2,697,912  

 

7,001,518  

  

Other investment activity                   (891,659)  

 

1,935,656 

  

                                                        Net cash provided by investing activities                34,146,525 

 

(13,315,222) 

 
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities 

   

  

Capital appropriations                12,503,408  

 

13,834,769  

  

Purchases of capital assets              (35,314,817) 

 

(22,779,246) 

  

Proceeds from capital debt                     140,000  

 

34,478,502 

  

Principal paid on capital debt                (3,194,858) 

 

(2,785,559) 

  

Interest paid on capital debt                 (5,933,903) 

 

(5,742,144) 

  

Other capital activities                      505,772 

 

238,527  

  

Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities                (31,294,398)  

 

17,244,849 

  

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents                 19,384,094  

 

                20,264,246 

      

  

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year                  45,960,038  

 

25,695,792  

      

  

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year                $65,344,132  

 

$45,960,038  
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

CENTRAL WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY - June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011 

 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
Financial Reporting Entity 

Central Washington University is a comprehensive regional institution of higher education offering baccalaureate 

and master degrees. The university is an agency of the state of Washington, governed by a board of trustees 

appointed by the governor, and included in the general-purpose financial statements of the state of Washington.  

The financial statements include the accounts of the Central Washington University Foundation, an independent, 

non-profit organization established to raise private funds that support the students, faculty, and programs of the 

university. Accordingly, the foundation has been reported as a blended component unit in the financial statements. 

Separate financial statements of the foundation may be requested from its administrative office at Barge Hall, room 

402, Ellensburg, WA 98926. 

 

Financial Statement Presentation 

The financial statements of the university have been prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting 

Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management Discussion and Analysis 

for State and Local Governments as amended by GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements and 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis for Public Colleges and Universities.  

 

For financial reporting purposes, the university is considered a special-purpose government, engaged only in 

business-type activities. Accordingly, the university’s financial statements have been presented using the economic 

resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized 

when earned, and expenses are recorded when obligations have been incurred. Grants and similar items are 

recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the providers have been met. All significant 

intra-agency transactions have been eliminated.  

 

The financial statements include a management discussion and analysis, a statement of net assets, a statement of 

revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets, a statement of cash flows, and notes to the financial statements. The 

format provides a comprehensive, entity-wide perspective of the university’s assets, liabilities, net assets, revenues, 

expenses, changes in net assets, and cash flows. Comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2011, are presented 

where appropriate. 

 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement 39, Determining Whether Certain 

Organizations are Component Units, which amended GASB Statement 14, The Financial Reporting Entity. This 

provided additional guidance for determining whether certain organizations should be reported as component units 

based on the nature and significance of their relationship with a primary government and to clarify reporting 

requirements for those organizations. 

 

Under GASB 39 criteria, the CWU Foundation is an affiliated organization that meets the criteria for blended 

component-unit presentation. The university and its blended-foundation unit are shown as the primary institution 

column in the financial statements. The CWU Foundation has a separately audited financial statement. The 

provisions of GASB Statement 39 were effective for financial statements for periods beginning with fiscal year 

2004. 

 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are 

followed in the financial statements of a special-purpose government engaged in business-type activities to the 

extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards 

Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type 

activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The university has elected not to follow subsequent 

private-sector guidance. 
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Cash Equivalents 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the university considers all highly liquid investments with an original 

maturity of 90 days or less to be cash equivalents. Funds invested through the State Treasurer’s Local Government 

Investment Pool are considered cash equivalents. 

 

Investments 

The university accounts for its investments at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting 

and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools. Changes in unrealized gain 

(loss) on the carrying value of investments are reported as a component of investment income in the statement of 

revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets.  

 

 

Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable consists of tuition and fee charges to students and auxiliary enterprise services provided to 

students, faculty, and staff. Accounts receivable also includes amounts due from the federal government, state and 

local governments, or private sources, in connection with reimbursement of allowable expenditures made pursuant 

to the university’s grants and contracts. Accounts receivable are recorded net of estimated uncollectible amounts. 

 

Inventories 

Inventories consist primarily of merchandise and consumables held by internal service and auxiliary service 

departments. They are valued at cost based on actual cost or on the average cost method.  

 

Non-current Cash and Investments 

Cash and investments that are externally restricted to make debt service payments, maintain sinking or reserve 

funds, or to purchase or construct capital or other non-current assets, are classified as non-current assets in the 

statement of net assets. 

 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition, or fair market value at the date of donation in the case of 

gifts. The university’s capitalization policy includes all items with a unit cost of $5,000 or more, and an estimated 

useful life of greater than one year.  

 

Renovations to buildings, infrastructure, and land improvements that significantly increase the value or extend the 

useful life of the structure are capitalized. Routine repairs and maintenance are charged to operating expenses in the 

year in which the expenses were incurred.  

 

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives (five to 50 years) of the 

assets in accordance with state guidelines. Inexhaustible resources such as the art collections and the library reserve 

collections are not depreciated. Beginning fiscal year 2005, CWU started depreciating its exhaustible library 

resources on a straight-line basis over 15 years. Unbooked depreciation accumulated prior to June 30, 2005, on 

exhaustible library resources is being spread over 10 years starting June 30, 2005, and ending June 30, 2014. (See 

also Note 7 – Capital Assets) 

 

Deferred Revenues 

Deferred revenues include amounts received for tuition and fees and certain auxiliary activities prior to the end of 

the fiscal year but related to the subsequent accounting period and amounts received from grant and contract 

sponsors that have not yet been earned. 

 

Compensated Absences 

Employee vacation, compensatory time, and sick leave are accrued at year-end for financial statement purposes. The 

liability and expense incurred are recorded as accrued liabilities in the statement of net assets, and as a component of 

compensation and benefit expense in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets. 
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Non-current Liabilities 

Non-current liabilities include: (1) principal amounts of revenue bonds payable, notes payable, and capital lease 

obligations with contractual maturities greater than one year; (2) estimated amounts for accrued compensated 

absences and other liabilities that will not be paid within the next fiscal year; and (3) other liabilities that, although 

payable within one year, are to be paid from funds that are classified as non-current assets. 

 

Net Assets 

The university’s net assets are classified as follows: 

 

Investments in capital assets, net of related debt: This represents the university’s total investment in capital assets, 

net of outstanding debt obligations related to those capital assets. To the extent debt has been incurred but not yet 

expended for capital assets, such amounts are included as a component of investments in capital assets, net of related 

debt. 

 

Restricted net assets - expendable: Restricted expendable net assets include resources in which the university is 

legally or contractually obligated to spend in accordance with restrictions imposed by external third parties. 

 

Restricted net assets – non-expendable: Non-expendable restricted net assets consist of endowment and similar type 

funds in which donors or other outside sources have stipulated, as a condition of the gift instrument, that the 

principal is to be maintained inviolate and in perpetuity and invested for the purpose of producing present and future 

income, which may either be expended or added to principal.  

 

Unrestricted net assets: Unrestricted net assets represent resources derived from student tuition and fees, and sales 

and services of educational departments and auxiliary enterprises. These resources are used for transactions relating 

to the educational and general operations of the university and may be used at the discretion of the governing board 

to meet current expenses for any purpose. The auxiliary enterprises are substantially self-supporting activities that 

provide services for students, faculty, and staff.  

 

Income Taxes 

The university, as a political subdivision of the state of Washington, is excluded from federal income taxes under 

Section 115(a) of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended. The foundation is exempt from income taxes under 

Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.  

 

Classification of Revenues 

The university has classified its revenues as either operating or non-operating revenues according to the following 

criteria: 

 

Operating revenues: Operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of exchange transactions, 

such as (1) student tuition and fees, net of scholarship discounts and allowances; (2) sales and services of auxiliary 

enterprises, net of discounts and allowances; (3) federal, state, and local grants and contracts; and (4) interest on 

institutional student loans. 

 

Non-operating revenues: Non-operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of non-exchange 

transactions, such as gifts and contributions, state appropriations, Pell grants, and investment income.  

 

Discounts and Allowances 

Student tuition and fee revenues, and certain other revenues from students, are reported net of discounts and 

allowances in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets. Discounts and allowances are the 

difference between the stated charges for goods and services provided by the university and the amounts that are 

paid by students and/or third parties making payments on the students’ behalf. Certain governmental grants, such as 

Pell grants and other federal, state, or non-governmental programs, are recorded as either operating or non-operating 

revenues in the university’s financial statements. To the extent that revenues from such programs are used to satisfy 

tuition and fees and other student charges, the university has recorded discounts and allowances. 
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Reclassification 

Certain amounts on the June 30, 2011, financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the June 30, 2012, 

financial statement presentation. These reclassifications did not affect total net assets. 

 

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

 
Cash and investments are managed under the guidance of the university investment policy. Investments are made 

using the prudent person standard with primary objectives being: (1) safety of principal; (2) liquidity (enabling the 

university to meet all operating requirements); and (3) return on investment (the objective of attaining a market rate 

of return through budgetary and economic cycles).  

 

The university invests or deposits all temporary cash. These investments and time deposits do not result in 

reductions of the cash balances of the various funds and are considered to be cash equivalents to the funds. These 

amounts are reported on the statement of net assets as part of cash and cash equivalents. Earnings from pool deposits 

are allocated to the funds owning the cash in proportion to the ending monthly balance in the investment pool. 

 

As of June 30, 2012, the fair market value of cash and investments was $104,888,434. Of this total, $65,344,132 is 

cash and cash equivalents with maturity dates of less than 90 days and $39,544,302 is investments maturing in more 

than 90 days. Cash and cash equivalents include: Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), Bank Demand and 

Time Deposits, and Petty Cash. Investments maturing in more than 90 days and/or more than a year include: U.S. 

Government and Non-State Government Securities at fair value, Investments in Equity, and Cash Surrender Value 

of Life Insurance (Foundation). 

 

The statement of net assets classification of cash and cash equivalents includes all readily available sources of cash 

such as petty cash, demand deposits, certificates of deposit, and temporary investments. All deposits of the 

university are insured by the FDIC up to $250,000 and by the Washington Public Deposit Protection Commission 

for amounts over $250,000. 

 

 

 

 

The components of cash and investments are specified as follows: 

 
CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 Carrying 

Amount 

June 30, 2012 

 

Fair 

Value 

 Carrying 

Amount 

June 30, 2011 

 

Fair 

Value 

Local government investment pool (LGIP) $26,975,269 
 

$26,975,269 
 

$3,655,750 
 

$3,655,750 

U.S. government securities 5,547,707  5,573,261  13,448,920  13,469,211   

Investments in equity – money markets 1,030,981  1,030,981  823,720  823,720 

Investments in equity – bonds 16,934,701  17,249,858  20,429,875  20,507,843 

Investments in equity – stocks, mutual funds 15,634,068 
 

15,634,068 
 

15,834,697 
 

15,834,697 

Investments in certificates of deposit                                                 - 
 

- 
 

21,193,291 
 

21,193,291 

Investments in cash surrender value of life insurance 56,134 
 

56,134 
 

55,812 
 

55,812 

      Subtotal 66,178,860 
 

66,519,571 
 

75,442,065 
 

75,540,324 

 Bank demand and time deposits 38,307,530 
 

38,307,530 
 

42,235,792 
 

42,235,792 

 Petty Cash 61,333 
 

61,333 
 

68,496 
 

68,496 

      Total $104,547,723 
 
$104,888,434 

 
$117,746,353 

 
$117,844,612    
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GASB 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures, became effective for financial statements for periods beginning 

after June 15, 2004. It primarily amends existing accounting guidance under GASB 3, Deposits with Financial 

Institutions, Investments (including Repurchase Agreements), and Reverse Agreements, and under GASB 28, 

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Securities Lending Transactions. GASB 40 requires the university to 

disclose, as needed, any deposits and investments that are exposed to risks that have the potential to result in losses. 

The statement addresses risks related to credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk, and foreign 

currency risk. As an element of interest risk, this statement requires certain disclosures of investments that have fair 

values that are highly sensitive to changes in interest rates. Deposit and investment policies related to any risks as 

identified by using this statement also need to be disclosed. 

 

The disclosures required by this statement follow: 

 

Deposits 

The university’s deposits and certificates of deposit are entirely covered by federal depository insurance (FDIC) or 

by collateral held in a multiple financial institution collateral pool administered by the Washington Public Deposit 

Protection Commission (PDPC). 

 

Investments 

As of June 30, 2012, the university had the following investments: 

 

INVESTMENTS    

 

Fair Value of 

CWU’s Own 

Investments 

Fair Value of 

Investments Held 

by CWU as an 

Agent for Other 

Governments, 

Individuals, or 

Private Entities Total 

Cash surrender value of life insurance $56,134 $0 $56,134 

U.S. treasuries* 5,573,261 - 5,573,261 

Money market * 1,030,981 - 1,030,981 

Bonds* 17,249,858 - 17,249,858 

Stocks* 15,634,068 - 15,634,068 

Certificates of deposit - - - 

      Total $39,544,302 $0 $39,544,302 

 

As of June 30, 2011, the university had the following investments:  

 
INVESTMENTS    

 

Fair Value of 

CWU’s Own 

Investments 

Fair Value of 

Investments Held by 

CWU as an Agent for 

Other Governments, 

Individuals, or 

Private Entities Total 

Cash surrender value of life insurance $ 55,812 $0 $ 55,812 

U.S. treasuries 13,469,211 - 13,469,211 

Money market * 823,720 - 823,720 

Bonds* 20,507,843 - 20,507,843 

Stocks* 15,834,697 - 15,834,697 

Certificates of deposit 21,193,291 - 21,193,291 

      Total $71,884,574 $0 $71,884,574 
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The LGIP is an unrated 2a-7-like pool, as defined by GASB 31. Accordingly, participants’ balances in the LGIP are 

not subject to interest rate risk, as the weighted average maturity of the portfolio will not exceed 90 days. Per GASB 

40 guidelines, the balances are also not subject to custodial credit risk. The credit (quality) risk of the LGIP is 

limited as most investments are either obligations of the U.S. government, government-sponsored enterprises, or 

insured demand deposit accounts and certificates of deposit. Investments or deposits held by the LGIP are all 

classified as category one risk level investments. They are either insured or held by a third-party custody provider in 

the LGIP’s name. 

 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a failure of the counterparty to an investment transaction, the 

university would not be able to recover the value of the investment or collateral securities. Of the university’s total 

position, $0 are exposed to custodial credit risk because of investments being held by the university’s brokerage 

firm, and by having that brokerage firm also being the counterparty in those particular securities. 

 

* U.S. Bank Private Client Group, McAdams, Wright, Ragen, and Vanguard are like trust companies. They manage 

the investments, but the investments are still in Central Washington University’s name. The U.S. Bank Private 

Client Group, McAdams, Wright, Ragen, and Vanguard are insured under the Security Investor’s Protection 

Corporation. (This protection is to insure in case of loss of assets due to fraud, etc.)     

 

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
 

Accounts receivable, due from other agencies, and related allowance for uncollectible accounts consist of the 

following: 

 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE   

 June 30, 2012 June 30, 2011 

Student tuition and fees $4,849,261 $3,287,040 

Federal, state, and private grants and contracts 2,355,691 1,324,625    

State appropriations receivable 803,590 443,038  

Auxiliary enterprises 2,169,072 2,292,152   

Other student fees 559,290 743,532  

Other operating activities 1,867,742 1,750,887    

      Subtotal 12,604,646 9,841,274    

Allowance for doubtful accounts (2,302,780) (2,286,570) 

      Net accounts receivable   $10,301,866 $7,554,704    

 

 

NOTE 4 - STUDENT LOANS RECEIVABLE 

 
Student loans are comprised of current, $910,690, and non-current, $6,309,221, at June 30, 2012. The university has 

provided an allowance for uncollectible loans, which, in management’s opinion, is sufficient to absorb loans that 

will ultimately be written off. On June 30, 2012, the allowance for uncollectible loans was $66,512. 
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Student loans receivable consisted of the following: 

 

STUDENT LOANS RECEIVABLE   

 June 30, 2012 June 30, 2011 

Federal Perkins student loans                                                                                   $7,253,964 $7,371,477   

Other long-term loans 10,300 13,895 

Institutional loans   22,159 25,373   

     Subtotal 7,286,423 7,410,745 

Allowance for doubtful accounts (66,512) (88,875) 

            Total student loans receivable $7,219,911 $7,321,870   

 

Student loans receivable write-off procedures are the same as regular accounts receivable. 

 

NOTE 5 – INVENTORIES 

 
Inventories consisted of the following: 

  

INVENTORIES   

 June 30, 2012  June 30, 2011 

Enterprise funds $1,715,682 $1,631,076    

Internal service funds 684,808 689,544       

      Total $2,400,490 $2,320,620    

 

NOTE 6 - FUNDS WITH STATE TREASURER 

 
As of June 30, 2012, the balance invested with the State Treasurer was $2,268,304. This account represents the 

university's share of the net earnings of the Normal School Permanent Fund and the building fee portion of tuition, 

reduced by expenditures for capital projects, non-capitalized facility improvements and maintenance, and debt 

service incurred over the years (Fund 063), and the balance of licensing revenues held by the State Treasurer (Fund 

783). 

 

The Normal School Permanent Fund, established under RCW 43.79.160, is a permanent endowment fund that 

derives its corpus from the sale of state lands and timber. The investing activities are managed by the State 

Treasurer's Office, while the management of land and timber is administered by the Department of Natural 

Resources. Interest earned from investments is either reinvested or used exclusively for the benefit of Central 

Washington University, Eastern Washington University, Western Washington University, and The Evergreen State 

College. 
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NOTE 7 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

 

Following are the changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2012: 

 

Capital Assets        

 

Balance at 

June 30, 2010 Additions Retirements 

Balance at 

June 30, 2011 Additions Retirements 

Balance at 

June 30, 2012 

Non-depreciable Capital Assets        

Land $4,471,078 $330,822 $- $4,801,900 $- $- $4,801,900 

Artworks 100,350 - - 100,350 - - 100,350 

Library resources collectibles 3,122 - - 3,122 35,000 - 38,122 

Construction in progress 11,773,420 19,060,407 1,622,528  29,211,299 32,178,344 - 61,389,643 

      Subtotal 16,347,970 19,391,229 1,622,528 34,116,671 32,213,344 - 66,330,015 

        

Depreciable Capital Assets        

Buildings 356,353,635 239,117 - 356,592,752 - - 356,592,752 

Improvements and infrastructure 85,011,339 1,995,872 - 87,007,211 - - 87,007,211 

Equipment 26,490,453 2,218,391 533,659 28,175,185 2,454,060 646,874 29,982,371 

Leased Equipment 1,496,424 - - 1,496,424 - - 1,496,424 

Buildings - perpetuity rights 30,792,094 - - 30,792,094 - - 30,792,094 

Library resources (depreciable) 25,314,621 610,390 52,600 25,872,411 683,942 - 26,556,353 

      Subtotal 525,458,566 5,063,770 586,259 529,936,077 3,138,002 646,874 532,427,205 

        

Total Capital Assets 541,806,536 24,454,999 2,208,787 564,052,748 35,351,346 646,874 598,757,220 

        

Less Accumulated Depreciation        

Buildings 89,052,323 7,322,327 - 96,374,650 7,180,690 - 103,555,340 

Improvements and infrastructure 36,500,869 3,685,272 - 40,186,141 3,658,085 - 43,844,226 

Library resources 13,694,132 2,272,239 - 15,966,371 2,301,812 - 18,268,183 

Equipment 21,383,444 1,811,132 533,031 22,661,545 2,076,269 610,345 24,127,469 

Leased Equipment 1,496,424 - - 1,496,424 - - 1,496,424 

Amortized perpetuity rights - buildings 4,622,175 794,917 - 5,417,092 794,917 - 6,212,009 

      Total accumulated depreciation 166,749,367 15,885,887 533,031 182,102,223 16,011,773 610,342 197,503,651 

        

Capital assets, net of depreciation $375,057,169 $8,569,112 $1,675,756 $381,950,525 $19,339,573 $36,529 $401,253,569 

 

Beginning fiscal year 2005, CWU began depreciating its exhaustible library resources on a straight-line basis over 

15 years. Unbooked depreciation accumulated prior to June 30, 2005, on exhaustible library resources is being 

booked/expensed over ten years starting June 30, 2005, and ending June 30, 2014. (See also Note 1 - discussion of 

capital assets.) 

 

The university has one building out of active service, the Samuelson Union Building. The net book value was 

$550,985 at June 30, 2012, and was $604,059 at June 30, 2011. This information is being disclosed according to the 

provisions of GASB Statement No. 42—Accounting and Financial Reporting for Impairment of Capital Assets and 

for Insurance Recoveries—which was issued during November 2003, and became effective for fiscal periods 

beginning after December 15, 2004. 

 

NOTE 8 - ACCRUED LEAVE LIABILITIES 

 
At termination of employment, employees may receive cash payment for all accumulated vacation and 

compensatory time. Employees who retire receive 25 percent of the value of their accumulated sick leave credited to 

a Voluntary Employees’ Beneficiary Association (VEBA) account, which can be used for future medical expenses 

or insurance purposes. The amounts of unpaid vacation and compensatory time accumulated by university 

employees are accrued as expenses when incurred.  
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The amounts represent a liability to the university and are recorded and reported accordingly. The sick leave liability 

is recorded as an actuarial estimate of one-fourth the total balance on the payroll records. The amount of 

compensated time, vacation, and sick leave paid during fiscal year 2012 totaled $3,540,413. The accrued 

compensated time balance as of June 30, 2012, was $7,255. 

 

 

NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

 
Long-term liability activity for the two-year period ended June 30, 2012, is summarized as follows: 

 

Long-term Liabilities         

  June 30, 2011 Additions 

 

Reductions 

 

 June 30, 2012 

Current 

Portion 

Long-term 

Portion 

Accrued liabilities  $10,384,849 $3,183,168    $2,060,255  $11,507,762 $10,247,887 $1,259,875 

Pension liability 1,698,221 445,575  -  2,143,796 - 2,143,796 

Leases/contracts payable  3,964,858 3,345,000  3,964,858  3,345,000 250,000 3,095,000 

Bonds payable 138,410,000 7,665,000  10,100,000  135,975,000 3,520,000 132,455,000 

      Total  $154,457,928 $14,638,743  16,125,113  $152,971,558  $14,017,887 $138,953,671 

 

Long-term Liabilities         

 June 30, 2010 Additions 

 

Reductions 

 

June 30, 2011 

Current 

Portion 

Long-term 

Portion 

Accrued liabilities  $11,220,697 $1,897,511    $2,733,359  $10,384,849 $9,302,076 $1,082,773 

Pension liability 1,190,003 508,218  -  1,698,221 - 1,698,221 

Leases/contracts payable  4,236,915 13,502  285,559  3,964,858 230,000 3,734,858 

Bonds payable 106,445,000 34,465,000  2,500,000  138,410,000 2,580,000 135,830,000 

      Total  $123,092,615 $36,884,231  5,518,918  $154,457,928  $12,112,076 $142,345,852 

 

Additional information regarding bonds payable is included in Note 11. Additional information regarding capital 

lease obligations is included in Note 12. 

 

NOTE 10 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

 
During fiscal year 2008, the university adopted GASB Statement No.45—Accounting and Financial Reporting by 

Employers for Post-employment Benefits Other than Pensions. This statement establishes standards for the 

measurement, recognition, and display of other post-employment benefits (OPEB) expenditures and related 

liabilities (assets), note disclosures, and required supplementary information in the financial reports of state and 

local government employers. 

 

Health care and life insurance programs for employees of the state of Washington are administered by the 

Washington Health Care Authority (HCA). The HCA calculates the premium amounts each year that are sufficient 

to fund the statewide health and life insurance programs on a pay as you go basis. These costs are passed through to 

individual state agencies based upon active employee headcount; the agencies pay the premiums for active 

employees to the HCA.  

 

State of Washington retirees may elect coverage through state health and life insurance plans, for which they pay 

less than the full cost of the benefits, based on their age and other demographic factors.  

 

The health care premiums for active employees, which are paid by the agency during employees’ working careers, 

subsidize the “underpayments” of retirees. An additional factor in the OPEB obligation is a payment that is required 

by the State Legislature to reduce the premiums for retirees covered by Medicare (an “explicit” subsidy). This is also 

passed through to state agencies via active employee rates charged to the agency. 
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There is no formal state or university plan that underlies the subsidy of retiree health and life insurance. 

 

The actuary’s allocation of the overall statewide liability related to the university was approximately $37 million, 

with the annual required contribution (ARC) of approximately $3.7 million. The ARC represents the amortization of 

the liability for fiscal year 2012 plus the current expense for active employees, which is reduced by the current 

contributions of approximately $639,000. The university’s net OPEB obligation (NOO) at June 30, 2012, was 

approximately $16 million. This amount is not included in the university’s financial statements. 

 

 

NOTE 11 - BONDS PAYABLE 

State law requires that the university reimburse the state annually for debt service payments relating to the state of 

Washington General Obligation Bonds from tuition, timber sales, and earnings on investments held by the State 

Treasurer. Bonds payable at June 30, 2012, consisted of bonds issued by the state of Washington and Central 

Washington University.  

 

 

 

 

BONDS PAYABLE       

 
Interest 

Rate % 

Original 

Issue  

Balance 

June 30, 2012  

Balance 

June 30, 2011 

State of Washington general obligation bonds       

 Series 1994A (HE-CWU) 4.95 $4,455,000  $2,705,000  $2,785,000 

 Series R-2003C (1994A-HE-CWU) 2.00 - 4.50 1,860,000  -     195,000 

System revenue bonds       

 Series 2002 bonds (Kamola Hall) 5.21 -  -  7,740,000 

 Series 2004 bonds (SUB/REC-Sue L.) 3.00 - 5.50 64,080,000  56,765,000  58,120,000 

 Series 2008 bonds (Wendell Hill Hall) 3.00 - 5.00 36,495,000  34,375,000  35,105,000 

 Series 2010 bonds (Barto Hall Series A) 2.26 – 3.24 2,515,000  2,515,000  2,515,000 

 Series 2010 bonds (Barto Hall Series B) 1.50 – 6.95 31,950,000  31,950,000  31,950,000 

 Series 2012 bonds (Kamola Hall Refunding)* 2.00 – 3.80 7,665,000  7,665,000  - 

  Total bonds payable   $149,020,000  135,975,000  138,410,000 

Bond discounts and issuance costs    (1,868,136)  (1,943,917) 

Bond premium    961,901  978,131 

  Total  $149,020,000  $135,068,765  $137,444,214 

 

 

Maturity Information 

The scheduled maturities of the general obligation and system revenue bonds are as follows: 
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DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS 

 

General Obligation Bonds System Revenue Bonds 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Subtotal Principal Interest Subtotal University Total 

2013 $330,000  $127,000  $457,000  $3,190,000  $6,687,691  $9,877,691  $10,334,691  

2014 350,000  110,000  460,000 3,320,000  6,685,998  10,005,998  10,465,998  

2015 365,000  92,125  457,125  3,435,000  6,559,487  9,994,487  10,451,612  

2016 385,000 73,375 458,375 3,405,000 6,425,336 9,830,336 10,288,711 

2017 405,000 53,625 458,625 3,565,000 6,266,762 9,831,762 10,290,387 

2018 – 2022 870,000 44,000 914,000 22,275,000 28,558,183 50,833,183 51,747,183 

2023 – 2027 - - - 26,545,000 22,723,948 49,268,948 49,268,948 

2028 – 2032 -  - - 34,770,000 14,907,290 49,677,290 49,677,290 

2033 – 2037 - - - 25,170,000 6,125,143 31,295,143 31,295,143 

2038 – 2042 - - - 7,595,000 871,024 8,466,024 8,466,024 

     Total   $2,705,000 $500,125 $3,205,125 $133,270,000 $105,810,862 $239,080,862 $242,285,987 

 

The Series 2004 Bonds were issued for the purpose of constructing a new Student Union and Recreation Center 

building, including a dining center, bookstore, and associated parking, capitalizing interest on the portion of the 

Series 2004 Bonds allocable to the SUB/Rec project through May 1, 2006, renovating a residence hall on the 

university’s main campus, and paying costs of issuance of the Series 2004 Bonds. 

 

Optional Redemption – the Series 2004 Bonds maturing on May 1, 2006, through 2014, inclusive, are issued 

without the right or option of the university to redeem those maturities prior to their stated maturity dates.  

The university reserves the right and option to redeem the Series 2004 Bonds maturing on or after May 1, 2015, 

prior to their stated maturity dates at any time on or after May 1, 2014, as a whole or in part (within one or more 

maturities selected by the university and randomly within a maturity in such manner as the fiscal agent shall 

determine), at a price of par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. These bonds were issued in the amount 

of $64,080,000 and have $56,765,000 of principal outstanding as of June 30, 2012. 

 

The Series 2008 Bonds were issued for the purpose of constructing a new student residence hall, capitalizing interest 

on the Series 2008 Bonds through August 31, 2009, and paying costs of issuance of the Series 2008 Bonds. The 

bonds were issued in the amount of $36,495,000 and have $34,375,000 of principal outstanding as of June 30, 2012.  

 

The Series 2010 Bonds were issued for the purpose of constructing a new student residence hall, capitalizing interest 

on the Series 2010 Bonds through May 1, 2012. The Series A bonds were issued in the original amount of 

$2,515,000 the Series B bonds were issued in the original amount of $31,950,000 and have $34,465,000 of principal 

outstanding as of June 30, 2012.  

 

The Series B bonds were issued under the American Reinvestment and Recovery Act (ARRA) Build America bond 

program as taxable bonds. Under this program the university expects to receive a subsidy from the United States 

federal government equal to 35% of interest paid until maturity. The subsidy received during fiscal year 2012 was 

$688,923. This amount is reported as non-operating revenue on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Change 

in Net Assets.  

 

*The Series 2012 Bonds were issued on April 17, 2012 with an average interest rate of 3.3369% to refund 

$7,520,000 outstanding on the Series 2002 Bonds, which had an average interest rate of 5.3052%. The refunding 

resulted in a $1,572,989 Gross Debt Service Savings over the next 20 years and an economic loss of $101,577. The 

Series 2012 Bonds were issued in the original amount of $7,665,000 and have $7,665,000 of principal outstanding 

as of June 30, 2012. 
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NOTE 12 – BONDS PAYABLE – ADVANCE REFUNDING of 2002 BONDS 
 

On April 17th, 2012, the System issued $7,665,000 million in Revenue Bonds with an average interest rate of 3.33 

percent to advance refund $7,520,000 of outstanding 2002 Series bonds with an average interest rate of 5.3 percent. 

The net proceeds of $7,720,000 (after payment of $225,000 in underwriting fees and other issuance costs) plus an 

additional $190,000 of 2002 Series bond fund monies were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those 

securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments 

on the 2002 Series bonds. As a result, the 2002 Series bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for those 

bonds has been removed from the general long-term debt account group. 

 

Although the advance refunding resulted in the recognition of an accounting loss of $145,000 for the year ended 

June 30, 2012, the System in effect reduced its aggregate debt service payments by almost $1,600,000 over the next 

20 years and obtained an economic gain (difference between the present values of the old and new debt service 

payments) of $1,300,000. 

 

NOTE 13 – LEASES/CONTRACTS PAYABLE 
 

In August 2002, the university entered a 20-year lease/purchase agreement for $5,145,000 with the Office of the 

State Treasurer to pay for a portion of an instructional building at Edmonds Community College to house the CWU-

Lynnwood Center. Average annual payments are $384,000 to be paid from tuition revenues for 20 years.  

Under the terms of the project contract, Edmonds Community College receives ownership of the building and 

Central Washington University has a tenant right in perpetuity. 

 

On March 29, 2012 the State of Washington in conjunction with the Certificate of Participation (COP) program 

issued $3,345,000 in Washington General Obligation Bonds with an average interest rate of 2.28% on behalf of the 

University to defease $3,350,000 in General Obligation Bonds with an average interest rate of 4.37% issued on 

August 15, 2002. This refunding will save the University $341,851 over the remaining life of the lease. The 

University made its’ required principal payment in fiscal year 2012 of $230,000 prior to the refunding. 

 

During 2010 the university entered into an option to purchase agreement for three lots on University Way for 

$1,030,000. The option is for a term of 10 years and may be exercised anytime during that term. The university is 

using an imputed interest rate of 3.70% to value the land purchase. 

 

Leases/Contracts Payable for the two-year period ended June 30, 2012: 

Contract # Contract Name % Rate 
Original 

Issue 

Balance 

June 30, 2012 

Balance 

June 30, 2011 

0008 Edmonds COP 4.42 5,145,000 $               -          $3,580,000  

S375-11-1 Edmonds COP  2012 2.28 3,345,000 3,345,000 - 

10-03-007 University Way Land Purchase Option 3.70 871,356 - 384,858 

Total    $9,361,356 $3,345,000 $3,964,858 

 

The university’s payments for the next five years and thereafter are as follows: 

 Principal Interest Total 

2013 $250,000 $104,713 $354,713 

2014 275,000 78,400 353,400 

2015 280,000 72,900 352,900 

2016 290,000 67,300 357,300 

2017 295,000 61,500 356,500 

2018 – 2022 1,605,000 196,600 1,801,600 

2023 – 2027 350,000 10,500 360,500 

Total $3,345,000 $591,913 $3,936,913 
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NOTE 14 - RETIREMENT PLANS 
The university participates in eight contributory retirement plans: the Central Washington University Retirement 

Plan (CWURP), a defined contribution retirement plan with supplemental payment, when required; the Public 

Employees Retirement System (PERS) plans 1, 2, and 3; the Teachers Retirement System (TRS) plans 1, 2, and 3; 

and the Law Enforcement Officers and Fire Fighters (LEOFF) plan 2. 
 

Central Washington University Retirement Plan: 
 

Plan Description: Faculty, civil service exempt staff, and other salaried employees are eligible to participate in the 

Central Washington University Retirement Plan, a defined contribution plan administered by the university. 

Contributions to the plan are invested in annuity contracts or mutual fund accounts.  Employees have, at all times, a 

100 percent vested interest in their accumulations. 
 

Benefits from fund sponsors are available upon separation or retirement at the member's option. RCW 28.B.10.400 

assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the Central Washington University board of 

trustees. 

 

The plan has a supplemental payment component, which guarantees a minimum retirement benefit to eligible 

retirees based upon a one-time calculation at the employee's retirement date. The university makes direct payments 

to qualifying retirees when the retirement benefits provided by the fund sponsors do not meet the benefit goals. 
 

Funding Policy: Employee contribution rates, based on age, are 5 percent, 7.5 percent, or 10 percent of salary. The 

university matches the contributions of employees. Within parameters established by the legislature, contribution 

requirements may be established or amended by Central Washington University’s board of trustees. Employee and 

employer contributions for the year ended June 30, 2012, were $4,110,926 and $4,110,926 respectively.  
 

The supplemental payment component of the Central Washington University Retirement Plan is financed on a pay-

as-you-go basis. The annual required contribution for fiscal year 2012 was $696,000.  
 

CWU Supplemental Retirement Plan Disclosure  

Supplemental Component (Unaudited): The university received an actuarial evaluation of the supplemental 

component of the CWURP for fiscal year 2011. The previous evaluation was performed in 2009. The Unfunded 

Actuarial accrued Liability (UAL) calculated as of June 30, 2011 and 2009, was $6,599,000 and $5,774,000 

respectively, and is amortized over a 13 year period. The Annual Required Contribution (ARC) of $696,000 consists 

of amortization of the UAL ($533,000) and normal cost (or current cost) ($148,000). The UAL and ARC were 

established using the entry age normal cost method. The actuarial assumptions included an investment rate of return 

of 4.25 percent and projected salary increases ranging from 2 percent to 4 percent. Approximately $47,836,146 and 

$47,077,747 of CWU’s payroll were covered under this plan during 2012, and 2012, respectively. The following 

table reflects the activity in the Net Pension Obligation (NPO) for the year ended June 30, 2012: 
 

Net Pension Obligation  

Balance as of June 30, 2009 $721,913         

Annual required contribution fiscal year 2010 612,000 

Payments to beneficiaries fiscal year 2010  (143,910) 

Balance as of June 30, 2010   1,190,003 

Annual required contribution fiscal year 2011 696,000 

Payments to beneficiaries fiscal year 2011  (187,782) 

Balance as of June 30, 2011 1,698,221 

Annual required contribution fiscal year 2012 696,000 

Payments to beneficiaries fiscal year 2012  (250,425) 

Balance as of June 30, 2012 $2,143,796 

 

CWU reported the NPO balance as a long-term liability. 
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A. Public Employees Retirement System plans 1, 2, and 3; Teachers Retirement Systems plans 1, 2, and 3; 

Law Enforcement Officers and Fire Fighters plan 2: 

 

Plan Description: Central Washington University contributes to PERS, TRS, and LEOFF; cost-sharing multiple-

employer defined benefit pension plans administered by the Washington State Department of Retirement Systems. 

 

PERS plan 1 and TRS plan 1 provide retirement and disability benefits, and minimum benefit increases, beginning 

at any age with 30 years of service, or at age 55 with 25 years of service, or at age 60 with five years of service to 

eligible members hired prior to October 1, 1977. 

 

PERS plan 2 and TRS plan 2 provide retirement and disability benefits, and a cost-of-living allowance, beginning at 

age 65 with five years of service, or an actuarially reduced benefit beginning at age 55 with 20 years of service, to 

eligible members hired on or after October 1, 1977. 

 

LEOFF plan 2 provides retirement and disability benefits, and a cost-of-living allowance, beginning at age 53 with 

five years of service, or an actuarially reduced benefit beginning at age 50 with 20 years of service, to eligible law 

enforcement officer members hired on or after October 1, 1977. 

 

PERS plan 3 and TRS plan 3 are hybrid defined-benefit and defined-contribution plans. University contributions 

fund the defined benefit component, providing retirement and disability benefits, and a cost-of-living allowance, 

beginning at age 65 with minimum service requirements, or an actuarially reduced benefit at age 55 with at least 10 

years of service, to eligible members hired on or after July 1, 1996, and those who transferred from PERS plan 2 and 

TRS plan 2. Member contributions are fully vested in the defined contribution component of the plan and funds are 

available at separation or retirement at the member's option. 

  

The authority to establish and amend benefit provisions for PERS, TRS, and LEOFF plans resides with the 

legislature. The Washington State Public Employees Retirement System issues a publicly available financial report 

that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing to 

the Department of Retirement Systems, P.O. Box 48380, Olympia, Washington 98504-8380. 

 

Funding Policy: The office of the State Actuary, using funding methods prescribed by statute, determines 

actuarially required contribution rates for PERS, TRS, and LEOFF. Plan 1 members are required by statute to 

contribute 6 percent of their annual covered salary. Contributions for Plan 2 members are determined by the 

aggregate method and may vary over time. Plan 3 members elect their contribution rate at employment from both 

flat and aggregated rate plans varying from 5 percent to 15 percent of annual covered salary. The contribution rates 

at June 30, 2012, were as follows: 

 

PERS, TRS, AND LEOFF CONTRIBUTION RATES 

 2012 2011 2010 

Plan Member University Member University Member University 

PERS I 6.00% 7.08% 6.00% 5.31% 6.00% 5.31% 

PERS II 4.64% 7.08% 3.90% 5.31% 3.90% 5.31% 

PERS III VARIOUS 7.08% VARIOUS 5.31% VARIOUS 5.31% 

LEOFF II 8.46% 8.62% 8.46% 8.62% VARIOUS 6.14% 

TRS I 6.00% 8.04% 6.00% 6.14% 6.00% 6.14% 

TRS II 4.69% 8.04% 3.36% 6.14% 3.36% 6.14% 

TRS III VARIOUS 8.04% VARIOUS 6.14% VARIOUS 6.14% 
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University and member contributions for the current year and two previous years were as follows: 

PERS, TRS, LEOFF, AND CWURP CONTRIBUTIONS 

       2012     2011    2010 

Plan Member University  Member University Member University 

PERS I $84,491 $101,103  $86,881  $76,890 $129,602 $114,627 

PERS II 925,217 1,433,440  755,775         1,058,715 808,373         1,100,408 

PERS III 391,748 443,292  368,910 311,506 381,719 317,483 

LEOFF II 64,363 65,580  66,426 67,682 65,050 66,281 

TRS I 17,036 22,427  19,812 20,274 18,719 20,049 

TRS II 8,199 14,118  4,776 8,728 5,022 9,304 

TRS III 35,593 32,563  19,652 15,753 18,429 16,900 

CWURP 4,110,926 4,110,926  4,049,239 4,048,497 4,035,685 4,036,427 

     Total $5,637,573 $6,223,449  $5,471,471 $5,608,045 $5,462,599 $5,681,479 

 

NOTE 15 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION 

 
The university, through the state of Washington, offers its employees a deferred compensation plan in accordance 

with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. Under the plan, eligible employees can elect to defer a portion of their 

salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, 

death, or unforeseeable financial emergency. 

 

 

NOTE 16 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
  
The Central Washington University Foundation is organized to operate exclusively for the purposes of encouraging, 

promoting, and supporting educational programs and scholarly pursuits at or in conjunction with Central 

Washington University. The foundation provided $1,583,847 in scholarships and program support to the university 

during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012. Detailed financial information for the foundation may be obtained from 

its administrative office. 

 

Summary financial information of the Central Washington University Foundation as of, and for, the years ended: 

 

CWU FOUNDATION FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

 June 30, 2012 

  

Unrestricted 

Temporarily 

Restricted 

Permanently 

Restricted 

 

Total 2012 

Income $2,282,551 ($308,458) $494,194 $2,468,287 

Expenses 2,217,550 - 3,375 2,220,925 

Change in net assets 65,001 (308,458) 490,819 247,362 

Net assets at beginning of year 914,766 6,230,390 10,891,147 18,036,303 

Net assets at end of year $979,767 $5,921,932 $11,381,966 $18,283,665 
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CWU FOUNDATION FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 June 30, 2011 

  

Unrestricted 

Temporarily 

Restricted 

Permanently 

Restricted 

 

Total 2011 

Income $3,338,797 $1,674,204  $396,908 $5,409,909 

Expenses 2,394,894   2,394,894 

Change in net assets 943,903 1,674,204 396,908 3,015,015 

Net assets at beginning of 

year (29,137)  4,556,186 10,494,239  15,021,288 

Net assets at end of year $914,766 $6,230,390 $10,891,147 $18,036,303     

 

NOTE 17 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

 
The university had outstanding commitments under construction contracts of approximately $5,880,828 at June 30, 

2012. The university is party to various lawsuits arising out of the normal conduct of its operations. In the opinion of 

university management, the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect upon the 

university’s financial position. The university participates in certain federal grant programs. These programs are 

subject to financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. Such audits could lead to requests 

for reimbursement to the grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grants. Management 

believes disallowances, if any, will not be material.  

 

The Risk Management Act of Washington State provides a $5,000,000 self-insurance policy applying to all 

exposure to tort, general damage, and vehicle liability. The university purchases commercial property insurance for 

auxiliary enterprise buildings that were acquired with bond proceeds.  

 

In accordance with state policy, the university self-insures unemployment compensation for all employees. 

Payments for state general fund employees are appropriated by the state. The university assesses local funds, a semi-

monthly payroll expense for unemployment compensation for all local fund employees. Charges for all local funds 

are based on employee earnings. The percentage charged is based primarily upon claims experience. Cash reserves 

for unemployment compensation for all local fund employees at June 30, 2012, were $390,572. Payments made to 

state general fund employees and all local fund employees are as follows:   

 

 

 

NOTE 18 - OPERATING EXPENSES BY NATURAL CLASSIFICATION 

 
The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets displays operating expenses by functional 

classification. The following table summarizes operating expenses by natural classification for the years ended: 

 

OPERATING EXPENSES BY NATURAL CLASSIFICATION 

 June 30, 2012 June 30, 2011 

   Compensation and benefits $113,935,614 $113,300,984 

   Goods and services   46,406,472       49,769,321 

   Scholarships and fellowships 18,248,526 22,362,887 

   Depreciation 16,011,773 15,885,890 

        Total $194,602,385 $201,319,082 

 

UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION PAID 

 2012 2011 2010 

State fund  $85,412 $117,950 $167,568 

Local fund $109,218 $131,940   $94,564   
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NOTE 19 – PLEDGED REVENUES 

The university has pledged specific revenues, net of specified operating expenses, to repay the principal and interest 

of revenue bonds. The revenue bonds are obligations of the university’s reporting segment referred to as “The 

System” (Note 19) with all revenues pledged as a whole to all debt service repayment. The following is a schedule 

of the pledged revenues and related debt: 
 

Source of 

Revenue 

Pledged 

2012 

Revenues 

Pledged 

2012 

Debt Service 

Total Future 

Revenues 

Pledged* 

Description of 

Debt Purpose of Debt 

Term of 

Commitment 

Student & 

Activity Fees 
$3,326,952 $2,801,839 $61,662,673 

Series 2004 

Bonds 

Construction of new 

Student Union Building & 

Recreation Center (SURC) 

2034 

Bookstore 

Revenues 
$38,420 $228,289 $5,024,178 

Series 2004 

Bonds 

Construction of new 

bookstore as part of the 

new SURC 

2034 

Housing & 

Dining Revenues 
$2,571,375 $6,333,580 $172,394,011 

Series 

2002,2004, 

2008, 2010 

Bonds 

Remodel of Kamola Hall 

2002, new Dining 

Facilities in SURC/Sue 

Lombard remodel 2004, 

and construction of 

Wendell Hill Hall 2008 

2040 

Total $5,936,747 $9,363,708 $239,080,862    

*Total future principal and interest payments on debt.  

 

 

 

 

NOTE 20 - SEGMENT INFORMATION 
 

Central Washington University’s System operates the Student Union & Recreation Center, residence halls, 

apartment complexes, a conference program, dining facilities, parking services and the Wildcat Shop bookstore 

located on the Ellensburg campus. The system owns its buildings, while the university owns the land. The system 

issues revenue bonds from time to time to renovate and build new facilities. The system pledges its net revenues to 

cover the costs of debt service, for accounting purposes the system is considered a segment of the university. 
 

Presented below are condensed financial statements for the system. 
 

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS   

 June 30, 2012 June 30, 2011 

Assets   

     Current assets $32,499,796 $30,877,660 

     Non-current assets  155,082,567 157,626,791 

          Total assets 187,582,363 188,504,451 

   

Liabilities   

     Current liabilities 7,232,489 6,417,183 

     Non-current liabilities 132,656,722 135,295,112 

          Total liabilities 139,889,211 141,712,295 

   

Net assets   

     Capital assets, net of related debt 19,450,317 20,207,207 

     Unrestricted 28,242,835 26,584,949 

   Total net assets $47,693,152 $46,792,156 
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CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 

EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS  

  

Operating revenues $51,440,156 $52,325,883 

Operating expenses 42,006,360 40,086,346 

Depreciation 3,439,015 3,454,132 

     Net operating income (loss) 5,994,781 8,785,405 

   

Non-operating revenues (expenses)   

     Investment income - 783 

     Interest on indebtedness (5,627,860) (5,406,577) 

     Gain /(Loss) on Disposition of Asset - - 

     Other non-operating revenue (expense), net 534,075 282,391 

          Total increase in net assets 900,996 3,662,003 

          Total net assets, beginning of year  46,792,156 43,130,153 

   Total net assets, end of year $47,693,152 $46,792,156 

   

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS   

Net cash flows provided by   

     Operating activities $9,684,832 $11,689,107 

     Non-capital financing activities   

     Investing activities 16,193,291 (16,192,508) 

     Capital and related financing (28,358,318) 19,502,436 

     Net increase (decrease) in cash (2,480,195) 14,999,035 

Cash – beginning of year   39,033,975 24,034,940 

   

   Cash – end of year $36,553,780 $39,033,975 
 

 

NOTE 21 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 

As of June 30, 2012 the university owned $1,600,000 in Greater Wenatchee Regional Events Center Public 

Facilities District Municipal Bond Anticipation Notes with a maturity date of December 1, 2011. The notes were not 

redeemed on their due date and the event center went into technical default.   

 

On September 28, 2012 the Greater Wenatchee Regional Events Center successfully issued bonds to pay off the 

bonds in default. The University received both the principal and interest payments due, so as previously reported the 

contingency of possibly having a $1,600,000 investment loss is no longer applicable. 
 

Appendix I – Bond Continuing Disclosure Information 
 

Exhibit I 
 

Central Washington University 

Budgeted Versus Actual Enrollment 

Average Annual FTE  

   

Year Budgeted  Actual 

2011-12 8,808 9,581 

2010-11 8,808 9,982 

2009-10 8,469 9,673 

2008-09 9,322 9,082 

2007-08 8,952 8,931 

2006-07 8,692 9,204 
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Exhibit II 
 

Central Washington University 

Enrollment Statistics (IPEDS) 

For Fiscal Years Ended June 30 

      

  2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 

Fall Quarter Headcount          

 Undergraduates      

      Full-time 9,435 9,929 9,315 8,728    8,684    

      Part-time 1,335 1,423 1,450 1,453 1,295 

          Total undergraduates 10,770 11,352 10,765 10,181 9,979 

 Graduates      

      Full-time 391 336 337 266 260 

      Part-time 159 226 255 215 266 

          Total graduates 550 562 592 481 526 

 Total – undergraduates and graduates       

      Full-time 9,826 9,965 9,652 8,994 8,944 

      Part-time 1,494 1,649 1,705 1,668 1,561 

     Total – full- and part-time 11,320 11,614 11,357 10,662 10,505 

      

          Fall quarter FTE 10,411 10,430 10,213 9,610 9,477 

      

 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 

Freshmen      

     Applications 4,553 4,856 4,960 5,013 4,602 

     Percent applicants admitted 78% 81% 83% 79% 80% 

     Enrolled  1,383 1,667 1,660 1,559 1,477 

     Enrolled percent of admissions 39% 42% 41% 39% 40% 

Transfer Students       

     Applications 2,721 2,702 2,409 2,189 2,264 

     Percent applicants admitted 82% 83% 87% 82% 83% 

     Enrolled 1,624 1,461 1,509 1,124 1,122 

     Enrolled percent of admissions 73% 65% 72% 62% 60% 
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Exhibit III 
 

 

Central Washington University 

Historical Operations for the System 

For Fiscal Years Ended June 30 

      

             2012               2011               2010       2009       2008 

Gross Revenue      

     Housing and dining  $27,555,019  $28,573,970  $28,398,100 $25,243,319 $22,788,956 

     Services and activities  13,253,713 12,441,403 12,161,217 10,766,709 10,312,005 

     University store  9,603,869 10,202,361 9,582,170 8,578,382 7,832,266 

     Parking  1,027,555 1,108,149 1,043,371 1,047,956 937,813 

          Total gross revenue 51,440,156  52,325,883  51,184,858 45,636,366 41,871,040 

Operating Expenses
(1)

      

     Housing and dining  22,558,681  21,421,338  21,247,615 19,906,139 18,022,469 

     Services and activities  8,966,502 8,325,306 8,097,231 7,260,816 6,410,775 

     University store  9,464,942 9,315,245 8,882,270 8,064,425 7,567,604 

     Parking  1,016,236 1.024,457 956,000 692,115 778,674 

          Total operating expenses 42,006,361  40,086,346  39,183,116  34,923,495  32,779,522 

Net revenue $9,433,795  $12,239,537  $12,001,742 $10,712,871 $9,091,518 

Total debt service
(2)

 $7,269,606  $7,271,036  $6,956,720 $5,090,119 $4,963,561 

(1) Excludes depreciation 

(2) Excludes capitalized interest 
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Exhibit IV 
 

 

              

 Central Washington University 

 Schedule of System Revenue Bond Debt Service 

           

  
The Series 

2004 Bonds  

The Series 

2008 Bonds  
The Series 

2010 Bonds 

 The Series 

2012 Bonds  

Fiscal  

Year  Principal Interest  Principal Interest  Principal Interest 

 

Principal Interest Total 

2013  1,425,000  2,928,419   755,000 1,549,025  720,000 2,094,102  290,000 116,145 9,877,691  

2014  1,505,000  2,853,606   785,000 1,522,600  725,000 2,083,302  305,000 226,490 10,005,998  

2015  1,575,000  2,774,594   815,000 1,493,163  735,000 2,071,340  310,000 220,390 9,994,487  

2016  1,660,000  2,691,906   845,000 1,462,600  585,000 2,056,640  315,000 214,190 9,830,336  

2017  1,750,000  2,602,682   880,000 1,428,800  610,000 2,027,390  325,000 207,890 9,831,762  

2018  1,850,000  2,508,619   915,000 1,393,600  645,000 1,996,890  325,000 201,390 9,835,499  

2019  1,945,000  2,409,182   950,000 1,357,000  675,000 1,964,640  335,000 193,265 9,829,087  

2020  2,050,000  2,304,638   985,000 1,319,000  1,290,000 1,930,890      345,000 184,890 10,409,418  

2021  2,160,000  2,194,450   1,025,000 1,279,600  1,335,000 1,866,390      355,000 174,540 10,389,980  

2022  2,280,000  2,078,350   1,070,000 1,237,319  1,375,000 1,799,640      365,000 163,890 10,369,199  

2023  2,405,000  1,952,950   1,115,000 1,191,844  645,000 1,730,890  380,000 152,940 9,573,624  

2024  2,535,000  1,820,675   1,160,000 1,144,456  665,000 1,693,480  390,000 141,540 9,550,151  

2025  2,675,000  1,681,250   1,210,000 1,095,156      690,000   1,654,910      405,000 129,645 9,540,961  

2026  2,805,000  1,547,500   1,265,000 1,042,219   1,515,000 1,614,890      415,000 116,483 10,321,092  

2027  2,945,000  1,407,250   1,320,000 986,875   1,580,000 1,516,415      425,000 102,580 10,283,120  

2028  3,095,000  1,260,000   1,380,000 927,475   1,650,000 1,413,715      445,000 87,917 10,259,107  

2029  3,250,000  1,105,250   1,440,000 865,375   1,715,000 1,306,465      460,000 72,120 10,214,210  

2030  3,410,000  942,750   1,510,000 798,775   1,790,000 1,194,990      475,000 55,330 10,176,845  

2031  3,585,000  772,250   1,575,000 728,938   1,260,000 1,078,640      490,000 37,755 9,527,583  

2032  3,760,000  593,000   1,650,000 656,094   1,320,000 991,070      510,000 19,380 9,499,544  

2033  3,950,000  405,000   1,725,000 579,781   1,380,000 899,330    8,939,111  

2034  4,150,000  207,500   1,810,000 500,000   1,440,000 803,420    8,910,920  

2035  -                       -                       1,900,000 409,500   1,505,000 703,340    4,517,840  

2036  - -  1,995,000 314,500   1,575,000 598,743    4,483,243 

2037  - -  2,095,000 214,750   1,645,000 489,280    4,444,030 

2038  -                     -                       2,200,000 110,000   1,720,000 374,952    4,404,952 

2039  - -  - -   1,795,000 255,412    2,050,412 

2040  - -  - -   1,880,000 130,660    2,010,660 

Total  $56,765,000 $39,041,821  $34,375,000 $25,608,445  $34,465,000 $38,341,826  $7,665,000 $2,818,770 $239,080,862 
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TEL: 206.447.4400  FAX: 206.447.9700  1111 THIRD AVENUE, SUITE 3400  SEATTLE, WASHINGTON 98101-3299  WWW.FOSTER.COM 
SEATTLE WASHINGTON  SPOKANE WASHINGTON 

 

 [FORM OF APPROVING LEGAL OPINION] 
 
 
Central Washington University 
Ellensburg, Washington 
 
 Re: Central Washington University 
  $____________ System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 
 
 We have served as bond counsel to Central Washington University (the “University”) in connection with the 
issuance of the above-referenced bonds (the “Series 2013 Bonds”), and in that capacity have examined such law and 
such certified proceedings and other documents as we have deemed necessary to render this opinion.  As to matters of 
fact material to this opinion, we have relied upon representations contained in the certified proceedings and other 
certifications of public officials furnished to us, without undertaking to verify the same by independent investigation. 

 The Series 2013 Bonds are issued by the University pursuant to Restated Master Resolution No. 12-02 of the 
University (the “Master Resolution”) and to Resolution No. 12-18 of the University, as supplemented by Resolution 
No. 13-__ (collectively, the “Series Resolution” and, together with the Master Resolution, the “Bond Resolution”), for 
the purpose of providing funds with which to pay a portion of the cost of advance refunding a portion of the 
University’s outstanding Housing System Revenue Bonds, Series 2004, and to pay the costs of issuance of the Series 
2013 Bonds, all as provided in the Bond Resolution. 

 Reference is made to the Series 2013 Bonds and the Bond Resolution for the definitions of capitalized terms used 
and not otherwise defined herein. 

 We have not been engaged to review and thus express no opinion concerning the completeness or accuracy of any 
official statement, offering circular or other sales or disclosure material relating to the issuance of the Series 2013 
Bonds or otherwise used in connection with the Series 2013 Bonds.  

 Under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), the University is required to comply with 
certain requirements after the date of issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds in order to maintain the exclusion of the 
interest on the Series 2013 Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes, including, without limitation, 
requirements concerning the qualified use of Series 2013 Bond proceeds and the facilities refinanced with Series 2013 
Bond proceeds, limitations on investing gross proceeds of the Series 2013 Bonds in higher yielding investments in 
certain circumstances and the arbitrage rebate requirement to the extent applicable to the Series 2013 Bonds.  The 
University has covenanted in the Bond Resolution to comply with those requirements, but if the University fails to 
comply with those requirements, interest on the Series 2013 Bonds could become taxable retroactive to the date of 
issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds.  We have not undertaken and do not undertake to monitor the University’s 
compliance with such requirements. 

 Based upon the foregoing, as of the date of initial delivery of the Series 2013 Bonds to the purchaser thereof and 
full payment therefor, it is our opinion that under existing law: 

1. The University is a regional university of the State of Washington duly organized and legally existing 
under the laws of the State of Washington. 

2. The Series 2013 Bonds have been duly authorized and executed by the University and are issued in full 
compliance with the provisions of the Constitution and laws of the State of Washington and the resolutions of the 
University relating thereto.  
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3. The Series 2013 Bonds constitute valid obligations of the University payable solely out of the Gross 
Revenue to be paid into the Bond Fund, except only to the extent that enforcement of payment may be limited by 
bankruptcy, insolvency or other laws affecting creditors’ rights and by the application of equitable principles and the 
exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases. 

4. The Series 2013 Bonds are not general obligations of the University, the State of Washington, its 
agencies, instrumentalities or political subdivisions.  The University does not have taxing power. 

5. Assuming compliance by the University after the date of issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds with 
applicable requirements of the Code, the interest on the Series 2013 Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes and is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the alternative minimum tax applicable to 
individuals; however, while interest on the Series 2013 Bonds also is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the 
alternative minimum tax applicable to corporations, interest on the Series 2013 Bonds received by corporations is to 
be taken into account in the computation of adjusted current earnings for purposes of the alternative minimum tax 
applicable to corporations, interest on the Series 2013 Bonds received by certain S corporations may be subject to tax, 
and interest on the Series 2013 Bonds received by foreign corporations with United States branches may be subject to 
a foreign branch profits tax.  We express no opinion regarding any other federal tax consequences of receipt of interest 
on the Series 2013 Bonds. 

 This opinion is given as of the date hereof, and we assume no obligation to revise or supplement this opinion to 
reflect any facts or circumstances that may hereafter come to our attention, or any changes in law that may hereafter 
occur. 

 We bring to your attention the fact that the foregoing opinions are expressions of our professional judgment on the 
matters expressly addressed and do not constitute guarantees of result. 

Respectfully submitted, 
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Appendix D 
Book-Entry Transfer System 

 
BOOK-ENTRY TRANSFER SYSTEM 

 
The information in this section concerning the Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”) and DTC’s book-
entry system has been obtained from DTC’s website at www.dtcc.com and the University takes no responsibility for the 
accuracy thereof.  Beneficial Owners (as hereinafter defined) should therefore confirm the following with DTC or the 
Participants (as hereinafter defined).  For purposes of this section, references to the Issuer mean the University, and 
references to Agent mean the Bond Registrar.  For the purposes of this Official Statement, the term “Beneficial Owner” 
includes the person for whom the Participant acquires an interest in the Series 2013 Bonds. 

1. DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds.  The Series 2013 Bonds will be issued as fully-registered in the name 
of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of 
DTC. One fully-registered Bond certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Bonds in the principal amount of such 
maturity and will be deposited with DTC. 

2. DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking 
Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve 
System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” 
registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  DTC holds and provides 
asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and 
money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC.  
DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in 
deposited securities through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ 
accounts.  This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. 
and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. 
DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”).  DTCC is the holding 
company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are 
registered clearing services.  DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries.  Access to the DTC system is also 
available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, and trust companies, and clearing 
corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly 
(“Indirect Participants”).  DTC has Standard & Poor’s rating of AA+.  The DTC rules applicable to its Participants are on 
file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and 
www.dtc.org (which are not incorporated herein by these references). 

3. Purchases of the Series 2013 Bonds under the DTC system, in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, 
must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records.  The 
ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Series 2013 Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the 
Direct and Indirect Participants’ records.  Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their 
purchase.  Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, 
as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner 
entered into the transaction.  Transfers of ownership interests in the Series 2013 Bonds are to be accomplished by entries 
made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners.  Beneficial Owners will not 
receive certificates representing their ownership interests in the Series 2013 Bonds, except in the event that use of the 
book-entry system for the Series 2013 Bonds is discontinued. 

4. To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Series 2013 Bonds deposited by Participants with DTC are registered in the name of 
DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co. or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  
The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect 
any change in beneficial ownership.  DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Series 2013 Bonds; 
DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Series 2013 Bonds are credited, 
which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners.  The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping 
account of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 

5. When notices are given, they will be sent by the Agent to DTC only.  Conveyance of notices and other communications by 
DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect 
Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory 
requirements as may be in effect from time to time. 
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6. Redemption notices will be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Series 2013 Bonds are being redeemed, DTC’s practice is to 
determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be redeemed. 

7. Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the Series 2013 Bonds 
unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures.  Under its usual procedures, DTC 
mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Issuer as soon as possible after the record date.  The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s 
consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Series 2013 Bonds are credited on the record 
date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

8. Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Series 2013 Bonds will be made to Cede & Co. or such 
other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC’s practice is to credit Direct Participants’ 
accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the Issuer or the Agent, on payable date 
in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records.  Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will 
be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of 
customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, 
the Agent, or the Issuer, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  Payment 
of redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments to Cede & Co. (or any other nominee as may be requested by 
an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the Issuer or the Bond Registrar, disbursement of such 
payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial 
Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 

9. DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities depository with respect to the Series 2013 Bonds at any time by 
giving reasonable notice to the Issuer and the Agent.  Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor securities 
depository is not obtained, Series 2013 Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered. 

10. Issuer may decide to discontinue use of the system of the book-entry transfers through DTC (or a successor securities 
depository).  In that event, Series 2013 Bond certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC. 

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained from sources that Issuer 
believes to be reliable, but Issuer takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.  
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ha
se

 p
ri

ce
 o

f 
w

hi
ch

 is
 g

ua
ra

nt
ee

d 
by

 a
 C

re
di

t F
ac

il
it

y.
 

“C
re

di
t 

F
ac

il
it

y”
 m

ea
ns

 a
 p

ol
ic

y 
of

 m
un

ic
ip

al
 b

on
d 

in
su

ra
nc

e,
 l

et
te

r 
of

 c
re

di
t, 

su
re

ty
 

bo
nd

, 
li

ne
 o

f 
cr

ed
it

, 
gu

ar
an

te
e,

 s
ta

nd
by

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
ag

re
em

en
t 

or
 o

th
er

 f
in

an
ci

al
 i

ns
tr

um
en

t 
is

su
ed

 
by

 a
 t

hi
rd

 p
ar

ty
 w

ho
se

 d
eb

t 
ob

li
ga

ti
on

s 
ar

e 
ra

te
d 

by
 a

 R
at

in
g 

A
ge

nc
y 

th
en

 m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 a
 r

at
in

g 
fo

r 
an

y 
B

on
ds

 i
n 

a 
R

at
in

g 
C

at
eg

or
y 

w
hi

ch
 i

s 
ei

th
er

 (
a)

 n
o 

lo
w

er
 t

ha
n 

th
e 

R
at

in
g 

C
at

eg
or

y 
as

si
gn

ed
 t

o 
an

y 
B

on
ds

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 n

ot
 C

re
di

t 
E

nh
an

ce
d 

B
on

ds
, 

or
 (

b)
 o

ne
 o

f 
it

s 
th

re
e 

hi
gh

es
t 

R
at

in
g 

C
at

eg
or

ie
s 

if
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

no
 B

on
ds

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 n

ot
 C

re
di

t E
nh

an
ce

d 
B

on
ds

; a
nd

 w
hi

ch
 C

re
di

t 
F

ac
il

it
y 

ob
li

ga
te

s 
su

ch
 th

ir
d 

pa
rt

y 
to

 m
ak

e 
pa

ym
en

t o
r 

pr
ov

id
e 

fu
nd

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
pa

ym
en

t o
f 

fi
na

nc
ia

l 
ob

li
ga

ti
on

s 
of

 t
he

 U
ni

ve
rs

it
y,

 i
nc

lu
di

ng
, 

bu
t 

no
t 

li
m

it
ed

 t
o,

 p
ay

m
en

t 
of

 t
he

 p
ri

nc
ip

al
 o

f,
 i

nt
er

es
t 

on
 o

r 
pu

rc
ha

se
 p

ri
ce

 o
f 

B
on

ds
 o

r 
m

ee
ti

ng
 r

es
er

ve
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 th
er

ef
or

. 

“D
at

e 
of

 I
ni

ti
al

 I
ss

ua
nc

e”
 m

ea
ns

 t
he

 d
at

e 
of

 i
ss

ua
nc

e 
of

 t
he

 f
ir

st
 s

er
ie

s 
of

 B
on

ds
 t

o 
be

 
is

su
ed

 p
ur

su
an

t t
o 

S
ec

ti
on

 8
 h

er
eo

f.
 

“D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

” 
m

ea
ns

, f
or

 a
ny

 p
er

io
d 

of
 ti

m
e:

 

(a
)

W
it

h 
re

sp
ec

t 
to

 a
ny

 O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 O
ri

gi
na

l 
Is

su
e 

D
is

co
un

t 
B

on
ds

 o
r 

C
ap

it
al

 A
pp

re
ci

at
io

n 
B

on
ds

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 n

ot
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
as

 B
al

lo
on

 M
at

ur
it

y 
B

on
ds

 
in

 t
he

 S
er

ie
s 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

au
th

or
iz

in
g 

th
ei

r 
is

su
an

ce
, 

th
e 

pr
in

ci
pa

l 
am

ou
nt

 t
he

re
of

 
sh

al
l b

e 
eq

ua
l t

o 
th

e 
A

cc
re

te
d 

V
al

ue
 th

er
eo

f 
m

at
ur

in
g 

or
 s

ch
ed

ul
ed

 f
or

 r
ed

em
pt

io
n 

in
 s

uc
h 

pe
ri

od
, a

nd
 th

e 
in

te
re

st
 p

ay
ab

le
 d

ur
in

g 
su

ch
 p

er
io

d;
 

(b
)

W
it

h 
re

sp
ec

t 
to

 a
ny

 O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 F
ix

ed
 R

at
e 

B
on

ds
, 

an
 a

m
ou

nt
 

eq
ua

l 
to

 (
1)

 t
he

 p
ri

nc
ip

al
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f 
su

ch
 B

on
ds

 d
ue

 o
r 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 m

an
da

to
ry

 
re

de
m

pt
io

n 
du

ri
ng

 s
uc

h 
pe

ri
od

 a
nd

 f
or

 w
hi

ch
 s

in
ki

ng
 f

un
d 

in
st

al
lm

en
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d,

 p
lu

s 
(2

) 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f 

an
y 

pa
ym

en
ts

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
du

ri
ng

 s
uc

h 
pe

ri
od

 i
nt

o 
an

y 
si

nk
in

g 
fu

nd
 e

st
ab

li
sh

ed
 f

or
 t

he
 p

ay
m

en
t 

of
 a

ny
 s

uc
h 

B
on

ds
, p

lu
s 

(3
) 

al
l 

in
te

re
st

 p
ay

ab
le

 d
ur

in
g 

su
ch

 p
er

io
d 

on
 a

ny
 s

uc
h 

B
on

d 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 a

nd
 

w
it

h 
re

sp
ec

t 
to

 B
on

ds
 w

it
h 

m
an

da
to

ry
 s

in
ki

ng
 f

un
d 

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

, 
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

th
at

 m
an

da
to

ry
 s

in
ki

ng
 f

un
d 

in
st

al
lm

en
ts

 w
il

l 
be

 a
pp

li
ed

 t
o 

th
e 

re
de

m
pt

io
n 

or
 

re
ti

re
m

en
t 

of
 

su
ch

 
B

on
ds

 
on

 
th

e 
da

te
 

sp
ec

if
ie

d 
in

 
th

e 
S

er
ie

s 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
au

th
or

iz
in

g 
su

ch
 B

on
ds

; 
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(c
)

W
it

h 
re

sp
ec

t 
to

 B
al

lo
on

 M
at

ur
it

y 
B

on
ds

, 
an

y 
am

ou
nt

 f
or

 a
ny

 
pe

ri
od

 e
qu

al
 t

o 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

ay
ab

le
 f

or
 p

ri
nc

ip
al

 a
nd

 
in

te
re

st
 o

n 
su

ch
 B

on
ds

 d
ur

in
g 

su
ch

 p
er

io
d 

co
m

pu
te

d 
on

 t
he

 a
ss

um
pt

io
n 

th
at

 t
he

 
am

ou
nt

 o
f 

B
on

ds
 O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 a

s 
of

 t
he

 d
at

e 
of

 s
uc

h 
co

m
pu

ta
ti

on
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

am
or

ti
ze

d 
on

 a
n 

es
se

nt
ia

ll
y 

le
ve

l 
de

bt
 s

er
vi

ce
 b

as
is

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

pe
ri

od
 s

uc
h 

B
on

ds
 

ar
e 

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

; 

(d
)

W
it

h 
re

sp
ec

t 
to

 
B

on
ds

 
be

ar
in

g 
va

ri
ab

le
 

ra
te

s 
of

 
in

te
re

st
 

an
d 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 P
ap

er
, 

an
 a

m
ou

nt
 f

or
 a

ny
 p

er
io

d 
eq

ua
l 

to
 t

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
pa

ya
bl

e 
fo

r 
pr

in
ci

pa
l 

an
d 

in
te

re
st

 o
n 

su
ch

 B
on

ds
 d

ur
in

g 
su

ch
 p

er
io

d 
co

m
pu

te
d 

on
 t

he
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
th

at
 t

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f 
B

on
ds

 O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 a
s 

of
 t

he
 d

at
e 

of
 s

uc
h 

co
m

pu
ta

ti
on

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
am

or
ti

ze
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

it
h 

th
e 

S
er

ie
s 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

at
 th

e 
m

ax
im

um
 r

at
e 

of
 in

te
re

st
 p

er
m

it
te

d 
un

de
r 

th
e 

te
rm

s 
of

 th
e 

S
er

ie
s 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

ar
e 

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

; a
nd

 

(e
)

W
it

h 
re

sp
ec

t 
to

 a
ll

 o
th

er
 s

er
ie

s 
of

 B
on

ds
 O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 (

ot
he

r 
th

an
 

th
os

e 
m

en
ti

on
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

pr
ec

ed
in

g 
pa

ra
gr

ap
hs

),
 a

n 
am

ou
nt

 f
or

 a
ny

 p
er

io
d 

eq
ua

l 
to

 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

ay
ab

le
 f

or
 p

ri
nc

ip
al

 a
nd

 i
nt

er
es

t 
on

 s
uc

h 
B

on
ds

 d
ur

in
g 

su
ch

 p
er

io
d 

co
m

pu
te

d 
on

 t
he

 a
ss

um
pt

io
n 

th
at

 t
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f 

B
on

ds
 

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 a
s 

of
 t

he
 d

at
e 

of
 s

uc
h 

co
m

pu
ta

ti
on

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
am

or
ti

ze
d 

(1
) 

in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

it
h 

th
e 

m
an

da
to

ry
 r

ed
em

pt
io

n 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

, 
if

 a
ny

, 
se

t 
fo

rt
h 

in
 t

he
 

S
er

ie
s 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

au
th

or
iz

in
g 

th
e 

is
su

an
ce

 
of

 
su

ch
 

B
on

ds
, 

or
 

if
 

m
an

da
to

ry
 

re
de

m
pt

io
n 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 a

re
 n

ot
 p

ro
vi

de
d,

 d
ur

in
g 

a 
pe

ri
od

 c
om

m
en

ci
ng

 o
n 

th
e 

da
te

 
of

 c
om

pu
ta

ti
on

 a
nd

 e
nd

in
g 

on
 t

he
 d

at
e 

40
 y

ea
rs

 a
ft

er
 t

he
 d

at
e 

of
 i

ss
ua

nc
e,

 (
2)

 a
t 

an
 in

te
re

st
 r

at
e 

eq
ua

l t
o 

th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 r
at

e 
of

 in
te

re
st

 p
er

m
it

te
d 

un
de

r 
th

e 
te

rm
s 

of
 

th
e 

S
er

ie
s 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n,

 a
nd

 (
3)

 t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

fo
r 

es
se

nt
ia

l 
le

ve
l 

an
nu

al
 d

eb
t 

se
rv

ic
e 

of
 

pr
in

ci
pa

l a
nd

 in
te

re
st

 o
ve

r 
su

ch
 p

er
io

d.
 

(f
)

W
it

h 
re

sp
ec

t t
o 

an
y 

B
on

ds
 p

ay
ab

le
 in

 o
th

er
 th

an
 U

.S
. D

ol
la

rs
, D

eb
t 

S
er

vi
ce

 s
ha

ll
 b

e 
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

 a
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

S
er

ie
s 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

au
th

or
iz

in
g 

th
e 

is
su

an
ce

 o
f 

su
ch

 B
on

ds
. 

D
eb

t 
S

er
vi

ce
 s

ha
ll

 b
e 

ne
t 

of
 a

ny
 i

nt
er

es
t 

fu
nd

ed
 o

ut
 o

f 
B

on
d 

pr
oc

ee
ds

. 
 D

eb
t 

S
er

vi
ce

 s
ha

ll
 

in
cl

ud
e 

re
im

bu
rs

em
en

t 
ob

li
ga

ti
on

s 
(c

al
cu

la
te

d 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 
w

it
h 

th
e 

te
rm

s 
of

 
th

e 
re

im
bu

rs
em

en
t 

ag
re

em
en

t)
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

of
 C

re
di

t 
F

ac
il

it
ie

s 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 i
ss

ue
d 

on
 a

 p
ar

it
y 

of
 l

ie
n 

w
it

h 
P

ar
it

y 
B

on
ds

. 

“D
ef

au
lt

” 
m

ea
ns

 a
ny

 o
f 

th
e 

ev
en

ts
 s

pe
ci

fi
ed

 in
 S

ec
ti

on
 2

6 
of

 th
is

 r
es

ol
ut

io
n.

 

“D
es

ig
na

te
d 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e”

 m
ea

ns
 t

he
 P

re
si

de
nt

 o
f 

th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

or
 h

is
 o

r 
he

r 
de

si
gn

ee
 o

r 
su

ch
 o

th
er

 p
er

so
n 

as
 m

ay
 b

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 f

ro
m

 t
im

e 
to

 t
im

e 
by

 r
es

ol
ut

io
n 

of
 t

he
 

B
oa

rd
.

“D
ir

ec
t 

S
ub

si
dy

 R
ec

ei
pt

s”
 m

ea
ns

 a
ny

 a
nd

 a
ll

 m
on

ey
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

by
 t

he
 U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 

to
 S

ec
ti

on
 6

43
1 

of
 t

he
 C

od
e 

an
d 

an
y 

ot
he

r 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 t

he
 C

od
e 

th
at

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
th

e 
S

ec
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

T
re

as
ur

y 
to

 m
ak

e 
pa

ym
en

ts
 t

o 
th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
(o

r 
ag

en
t 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
it

y)
 u

nd
er

 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s 

si
m

il
ar

 t
o 

th
os

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

t 
pa

ym
en

ts
 u

nd
er

 S
ec

ti
on

 6
43

1 
of

 t
he

 C
od

e.
  

F
or

 s
ak

e 

E-5
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of
 c

la
ri

ty
, 

pr
oc

ee
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
by

 t
he

 U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

on
 a

cc
ou

nt
 o

f 
th

e 
sa

le
 o

f 
ta

x 
cr

ed
it

 b
on

ds
, 

or
 t

ax
 

cr
ed

it
s 

th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 s

tr
ip

pe
d 

fr
om

 t
ax

 c
re

di
t 

bo
nd

s,
 a

re
 n

ot
 i

nt
en

de
d 

to
 b

e 
“D

ir
ec

t 
S

ub
si

dy
 

R
ec

ei
pt

s.
” 

“F
is

ca
l 

A
ge

nc
y”

 m
ea

ns
 c

ol
le

ct
iv

el
y,

 t
he

 f
is

ca
l 

ag
en

t 
an

d 
co

-f
is

ca
l 

ag
en

t 
of

 t
he

 S
ta

te
 o

f 
W

as
hi

ng
to

n,
 a

s 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

m
ay

 b
e 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 f

ro
m

 ti
m

e 
to

 ti
m

e.
 

“F
ix

ed
 R

at
e 

B
on

ds
” 

m
ea

ns
 t

ho
se

 B
on

ds
 o

th
er

 t
ha

n 
C

ap
it

al
 A

pp
re

ci
at

io
n 

B
on

ds
, O

ri
gi

na
l 

Is
su

e 
D

is
co

un
t 

B
on

ds
 o

r 
B

al
lo

on
 M

at
ur

it
y 

B
on

ds
 i

ss
ue

d 
un

de
r 

a 
S

er
ie

s 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
in

 w
hi

ch
 t

he
 

ra
te

 o
f 

in
te

re
st

 o
n 

su
ch

 B
on

ds
 i

s 
fi

xe
d 

an
d 

de
te

rm
in

ab
le

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

ir
 f

in
al

 m
at

ur
it

y 
or

 f
or

 a
 

sp
ec

if
ie

d 
pe

ri
od

 o
f 

ti
m

e.
  

If
 s

o 
pr

ov
id

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
S

er
ie

s 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
au

th
or

iz
in

g 
th

ei
r 

is
su

an
ce

, 
B

on
ds

 m
ay

 b
e 

de
em

ed
 to

 b
e 

F
ix

ed
 R

at
e 

B
on

ds
 f

or
 o

nl
y 

a 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 th
ei

r 
te

rm
. 

“G
en

er
al

ly
 

A
cc

ep
te

d 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
P

ri
nc

ip
le

s”
 

or
 

“G
A

A
P

” 
m

ea
ns

 
at

 
an

y 
ti

m
e 

al
l 

pr
om

ul
ga

te
d 

an
d 

no
np

ro
m

ul
ga

te
d 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

R
es

ea
rc

h 
B

ul
le

ti
ns

, 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
P

ri
nc

ip
le

s 
B

oa
rd

 
O

pi
ni

on
s 

an
d 

S
ta

te
m

en
ts

, 
an

d 
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

B
oa

rd
 

S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
an

d 
In

te
rp

re
ta

ti
on

s 
th

en
 in

 e
ff

ec
t. 

“G
ro

ss
 R

ev
en

ue
” 

m
ea

ns
 a

ll
 i

nc
om

e 
an

d 
re

ve
nu

e 
de

ri
ve

d 
fr

om
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 m
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m
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 d
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pr
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 o
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 b
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 O
ut
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 r
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F
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f 
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 o
ff
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l 
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e 
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y 
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f 
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e 
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m
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f 
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 f
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 r
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n.
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 m
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U
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ve

rs
it
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s 
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, 
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 t
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 c
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 d
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d 
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 r
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R
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R
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B
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s 
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U

ni
ve
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 o
f 
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g 
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e 
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at
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f 
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gi

st
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e 
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d 
ob

li
ga

ti
on

s:
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at
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 b
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at
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 m
at

ur
it

y 
of

 m
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 b
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ra
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 b
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 b
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 b
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 o
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 b

on
d 

or
 o

bl
ig

at
io

n 
on

 t
he

 b
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 c
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 b
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 b
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at
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 b
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at
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 b
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 r
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. 

 
T

he
 

R
eg

is
tr

ar
 

sh
al

l 
se

rv
e 

as
 

th
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 t
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 p
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 b
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 c
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e 

as
si

gn
ab

le
, 

th
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 o
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t d
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 c
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el

ea
si

ng
 s

ec
ur

ity
 in

te
re

st
s,

 if
 a

ny
; a

nd
 

-1
3-

50
43

59
79

.5

(v
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 b
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ti
on

 5
. 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

of
 T

ra
ns

fe
r 

R
es

tr
ic

ti
on

s.
  

A
ny

 p
hy

si
ca

l 
in

st
ru

m
en

t 
is

su
ed

 o
r 

ex
ec

ut
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 r

eg
is

tr
at

io
n 

un
de

r 
th

is
 r

es
ol

ut
io

n 
sh

al
l 

st
at

e 
th

at
 t

he
 

pr
in

ci
pa

l 
of

 a
nd

 i
nt

er
es

t 
on

 t
he

 b
on

ds
 o

r 
ob

li
ga

ti
on

s 
sh

al
l 

be
 p

ai
d 

on
ly

 t
o 

th
e 

ow
ne

r 
th

er
eo

f 
re

gi
st

er
ed

 a
s 

su
ch

 o
n 

th
e 

bo
ok

s 
of

 t
he

 R
eg

is
tr

ar
 a

s 
of

 t
he

 r
ec

or
d 

da
te

 d
ef

in
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

in
st

ru
m

en
t 

an
d 

to
 n

o 
ot

he
r 

pe
rs

on
, a

nd
 th

at
 s

uc
h 

in
st

ru
m

en
t, 

ei
th

er
 p

ri
nc

ip
al

 o
r 

in
te

re
st

, m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

as
si

gn
ed

 
ex

ce
pt

 o
n 

th
e 

bo
ok

s 
of

 th
e 

R
eg

is
tr

ar
. 

S
ec

ti
on

 6
. 

P
ri

or
it

y 
of

 U
se

 o
f 

G
ro

ss
 R

ev
en

ue
; R

en
ew

al
 a

nd
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t F

un
d.

(a
)

T
he

 G
ro

ss
 R

ev
en

ue
 s

ha
ll

 b
e 

de
po

si
te

d 
in

 t
he

 R
ev

en
ue

 F
un

d 
as

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
. 

 T
he

 
R

ev
en

ue
 F

un
d 

sh
al

l 
be

 h
el

d 
se

pa
ra

te
 a

nd
 a

pa
rt

 f
ro

m
 a

ll
 o

th
er

 f
un

ds
 a

nd
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

of
 t

he
 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y,

 a
nd

 t
he

 G
ro

ss
 R

ev
en

ue
 d

ep
os

it
ed

 t
he

re
in

 s
ha

ll
 b

e 
us

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

fo
ll

ow
in

g 
pu

rp
os

es
 a

nd
 in

 th
e 

fo
ll

ow
in

g 
or

de
r 

of
 p

ri
or

it
y:

 

F
ir

st
, 

to
 m

ak
e 

al
l 

pa
ym

en
ts

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

si
nk

in
g 

fu
nd

 p
ay

m
en

ts
, 

re
qu

ir
ed

 t
o 

be
 m

ad
e 

in
to

 t
he

 d
eb

t 
se

rv
ic

e 
ac

co
un

t(
s)

 o
f 

an
y 

B
on

d 
re

de
m

pt
io

n 
fu

nd
 t

o 
pa

y 
th

e 
pr

in
ci

pa
l o

f 
an

d 
in

te
re

st
 a

nd
 p

re
m

iu
m

, i
f 

an
y,

 o
n 

an
y 

B
on

ds
; 

S
ec

on
d,

 t
o 

m
ak

e 
al

l 
pa

ym
en

ts
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

in
to

 a
ny

 d
eb

t 
se

rv
ic

e 
re

se
rv

e 
fu

nd
(s

) 
to

 s
ec

ur
e 

th
e 

pa
ym

en
t o

f 
an

y 
B

on
ds

; 

T
hi

rd
, t

o 
pa

y 
O

pe
ra

ti
ng

 E
xp

en
se

s;
 

F
ou

rt
h ,

 t
o 

m
ak

e 
al

l 
pa

ym
en

ts
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

in
to

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 r

ev
en

ue
 

bo
nd

 r
ed

em
pt

io
n 

fu
nd

 a
nd

 d
eb

t s
er

vi
ce

 a
cc

ou
nt

 o
r 

re
se

rv
e 

ac
co

un
t c

re
at

ed
 th

er
ei

n 
to

 p
ay

 a
nd

 s
ec

ur
e 

th
e 

pa
ym

en
t 

of
 t

he
 p

ri
nc

ip
al

 o
f 

an
d 

in
te

re
st

 o
n 

an
y 

re
ve

nu
e 

bo
nd

s 
or

 o
th

er
 r

ev
en

ue
 o

bl
ig

at
io

ns
 o

f 
th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
ha

vi
ng

 a
 l

ie
n 

up
on

 t
he

 G
ro

ss
 

R
ev

en
ue

 a
nd

 t
he

 m
on

ey
 i

n 
th

e 
R

ev
en

ue
 F

un
d 

ju
ni

or
 a

nd
 i

nf
er

io
r 

to
 t

he
 l

ie
n 

th
er

eo
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

pa
ym

en
t 

of
 t

he
 p

ri
nc

ip
al

 o
f 

an
d 

in
te

re
st

 o
n 

an
y 

B
on

ds
, 

an
d 

to
 

m
ak

e 
al

l d
ep

os
it

s 
of

 R
eb

at
e 

A
m

ou
nt

s 
to

 th
e 

R
eb

at
e 

F
un

d;
 

F
if

th
, 

to
 m

ak
e 

al
l 

pa
ym

en
ts

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
in

to
 a

ny
 f

un
d 

or
 a

cc
ou

nt
 

cr
ea

te
d 

by
 a

 S
er

ie
s 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n;

 

S
ix

th
, t

o 
m

ak
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
ad

di
ti

on
s,

 b
et

te
rm

en
ts

, i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 r

ep
ai

rs
 

to
 o

r 
ex

te
ns

io
ns

 a
nd

 r
ep

la
ce

m
en

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
S

ys
te

m
, 

an
d 

m
ak

e 
de

po
si

ts
 t

o 
th

e 
R

en
ew

al
 a

nd
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t F

un
d 

as
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e;
 a

nd
 

S
ev

en
th

, 
to

 r
et

ir
e 

by
 r

ed
em

pt
io

n 
or

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
in

 t
he

 o
pe

n 
m

ar
ke

t 
an

y 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
re

ve
nu

e 
bo

nd
s 

or
 o

th
er

 r
ev

en
ue

 o
bl

ig
at

io
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

as
 

au
th

or
iz

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
va

ri
ou

s 
re

so
lu

ti
on

s 
of

 t
he

 B
oa

rd
 a

ut
ho

ri
zi

ng
 t

he
ir

 i
ss

ua
nc

e,
 a

nd
 

to
 c

ar
ry

 o
ut

 o
th

er
 la

w
fu

l p
ur

po
se

s 
of

 th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y.
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(b
)

T
he

re
 i

s 
he

re
by

 c
re

at
ed

 a
nd

 e
st

ab
li

sh
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

of
fi

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
T

re
as

ur
er

 a
 s

pe
ci

al
 

fu
nd

 o
f 

th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

to
 b

e 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 a
s 

th
e 

“C
en

tr
al

 W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

S
ys

te
m

 R
en

ew
al

 
an

d 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

F
un

d”
 (

th
e 

“R
en

ew
al

 a
nd

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
F

un
d”

).
  

T
he

 U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

co
ve

na
nt

s 
an

d 
ag

re
es

 t
ha

t 
it

 w
il

l 
m

ak
e 

de
po

si
ts

 i
nt

o 
th

e 
R

en
ew

al
 a

nd
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

F
un

d 
fr

om
 t

im
e 

to
 t

im
e 

as
 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
ba

la
nc

e 
th

er
ei

n.
  

M
on

ey
 i

n 
th

e 
R

en
ew

al
 a

nd
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

F
un

d 
m

ay
 b

e 
us

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
to

 p
ay

 e
xt

ra
or

di
na

ry
 o

pe
ra

ti
ng

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 e
xp

en
se

s 
of

 
th

e 
S

ys
te

m
, 

m
ak

e 
ca

pi
ta

l 
re

pl
ac

em
en

ts
, 

ad
di

ti
on

s,
 e

xp
an

si
on

s,
 r

ep
ai

rs
 a

nd
 r

en
ew

al
s 

of
 t

he
 

S
ys

te
m

, 
an

d 
to

 p
ay

 p
ri

nc
ip

al
 o

f 
an

d 
in

te
re

st
 o

n 
an

y 
B

on
ds

 t
o 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 o

th
er

 f
un

ds
 a

re
 n

ot
 

le
ga

ll
y 

av
ai

la
bl

e.
  N

ot
w

it
hs

ta
nd

in
g 

th
e 

fo
re

go
in

g 
th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
do

es
 n

ot
 g

ua
ra

nt
ee

 th
at

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
w

il
l 

be
 a

va
il

ab
le

 i
n 

th
e 

R
en

ew
al

 a
nd

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
F

un
d 

to
 m

ak
e 

an
y 

su
ch

 d
ep

os
it

s 
in

 t
he

 
P

ri
nc

ip
al

 a
nd

 I
nt

er
es

t A
cc

ou
nt

. 

S
ec

ti
on

 7
.  

A
ut

ho
ri

za
ti

on
 o

f 
B

on
ds

. 
 R

ev
en

ue
 b

on
ds

 o
f 

th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y,

 u
nl

im
it

ed
 i

n 
am

ou
nt

, 
to

 b
e 

kn
ow

n 
as

 t
he

 “
C

en
tr

al
 W

as
hi

ng
to

n 
U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
S

ys
te

m
 R

ev
en

ue
 B

on
ds

,”
 a

re
 

he
re

by
 a

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 i

n 
se

ri
es

, 
an

d 
ea

ch
 s

uc
h 

se
ri

es
 m

ay
 b

e 
is

su
ed

 f
ro

m
 t

im
e 

to
 t

im
e 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 th

is
 r

es
ol

ut
io

n 
in

 s
uc

h 
am

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
up

on
 s

uc
h 

te
rm

s 
an

d 
co

nd
it

io
ns

 a
s 

th
e 

B
oa

rd
 m

ay
 

fr
om

 t
im

e 
to

 t
im

e 
de

em
 t

o 
be

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 o

r 
ad

vi
sa

bl
e,

 f
or

 a
ny

 p
ur

po
se

s 
of

 t
he

 S
ys

te
m

 n
ow

 o
r 

he
re

af
te

r 
pe

rm
it

te
d 

by
 la

w
. 

T
he

 B
on

ds
 a

nd
 t

he
 l

ie
n 

th
er

eo
f 

cr
ea

te
d 

an
d 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

he
re

un
de

r 
sh

al
l 

be
 o

bl
ig

at
io

ns
 

on
ly

 o
f 

th
e 

sp
ec

ia
l f

un
d(

s)
 e

st
ab

li
sh

ed
 in

 th
e 

S
er

ie
s 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n(

s)
 a

ut
ho

ri
zi

ng
 th

ei
r 

is
su

an
ce

.  
T

he
 

B
on

ds
 s

ha
ll

 b
e 

pa
ya

bl
e 

so
le

ly
 f

ro
m

 a
nd

 s
ec

ur
ed

 s
ol

el
y 

by
 G

ro
ss

 R
ev

en
ue

; 
pr

ov
id

ed
, 

ho
w

ev
er

, 
th

at
 a

ny
 s

er
ie

s 
of

 B
on

ds
 a

ls
o 

m
ay

 b
e 

pa
ya

bl
e 

fr
om

 a
nd

 s
ec

ur
ed

 b
y 

a 
C

re
di

t 
F

ac
il

it
y 

pl
ed

ge
d 

sp
ec

if
ic

al
ly

 to
 o

r 
pr

ov
id

ed
 f

or
 th

at
 s

er
ie

s 
of

 B
on

ds
. 

F
ro

m
 a

nd
 a

ft
er

 t
he

 t
im

e 
of

 i
ss

ua
nc

e 
an

d 
de

li
ve

ry
 o

f 
th

e 
B

on
ds

 o
f 

ea
ch

 s
er

ie
s,

 a
nd

 s
o 

lo
ng

 
th

er
ea

ft
er

 a
s 

an
y 

of
 t

he
 s

am
e 

re
m

ai
n 

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

, 
th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
he

re
by

 i
rr

ev
oc

ab
ly

 o
bl

ig
at

es
 

an
d 

bi
nd

s 
it

se
lf

 t
o 

se
t 

as
id

e 
an

d 
pa

y 
in

to
 t

he
 s

pe
ci

al
 f

un
ds

 c
re

at
ed

 f
or

 t
he

 p
ay

m
en

t 
of

 e
ac

h 
se

ri
es

 
of

 B
on

ds
 o

ut
 o

f 
G

ro
ss

 R
ev

en
ue

, 
on

 o
r 

pr
io

r 
to

 t
he

 d
at

e 
on

 w
hi

ch
 t

he
 i

nt
er

es
t 

on
 o

r 
pr

in
ci

pa
l 

of
 

an
d 

in
te

re
st

 o
n 

th
e 

B
on

ds
 s

ha
ll

 b
ec

om
e 

du
e,

 t
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 t

o 
pa

y 
su

ch
 i

nt
er

es
t 

or
 

pr
in

ci
pa

l a
nd

 in
te

re
st

 c
om

in
g 

du
e 

on
 th

e 
B

on
ds

 o
f 

su
ch

 s
er

ie
s.

 

T
he

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
so

 p
le

dg
ed

 t
o 

be
 p

ai
d 

in
to

 s
uc

h 
sp

ec
ia

l 
fu

nd
s 

ar
e 

he
re

by
 d

ec
la

re
d 

to
 b

e 
a 

pr
io

r 
li

en
 a

nd
 c

ha
rg

e 
up

on
 t

he
 G

ro
ss

 R
ev

en
ue

 s
up

er
io

r 
to

 a
ll

 o
th

er
 c

ha
rg

es
 o

f 
an

y 
ki

nd
 o

r 
na

tu
re

 
w

ha
ts

oe
ve

r 
ex

ce
pt

 f
or

 l
ie

ns
 a

nd
/o

r 
ch

ar
ge

s 
eq

ua
l 

in
 r

an
k 

th
at

 m
ay

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
th

er
eo

n 
to

 p
ay

 a
nd

 
se

cu
re

 t
he

 p
ay

m
en

t 
of

 t
he

 p
ri

nc
ip

al
 o

f 
an

d 
in

te
re

st
 o

n 
B

on
ds

 i
ss

ue
d 

un
de

r 
au

th
or

it
y 

of
 a

 
S

er
ie

s 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
it

h 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f 

S
ec

ti
on

s 
8 

an
d 

11
 o

f 
th

is
 r

es
ol

ut
io

n.
 

T
he

 B
on

ds
 s

ha
ll

 n
ot

 i
n 

an
y 

m
an

ne
r 

or
 t

o 
an

y 
ex

te
nt

 c
on

st
it

ut
e 

ge
ne

ra
l 

ob
li

ga
ti

on
s 

of
 t

he
 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

or
 o

f 
th

e 
S

ta
te

, o
r 

of
 a

ny
 p

ol
it

ic
al

 s
ub

di
vi

si
on

 o
f 

th
e 

S
ta

te
. 

S
ec

ti
on

 8
.  

A
ut

ho
ri

za
ti

on
 o

f 
S

er
ie

s 
of

 B
on

ds
. 

 T
he

 U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

m
ay

 i
ss

ue
 h

er
eu

nd
er

 
fr

om
 t

im
e 

to
 t

im
e 

on
e 

or
 m

or
e 

se
ri

es
 o

f 
B

on
ds

 b
y 

m
ea

ns
 o

f 
a 

S
er

ie
s 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

fo
r 

an
y 

pu
rp

os
e 

of
 t

he
 U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
no

w
 o

r 
he

re
af

te
r 

pe
rm

it
te

d 
by

 l
aw

 a
nd

 t
hi

s 
re

so
lu

ti
on

, 
pr

ov
id

ed
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

sh
al

l 
co

m
pl

y 
w

it
h 

th
e 

te
rm

s 
an

d 
co

nd
it

io
ns

 f
or

 t
he

 i
ss

ua
nc

e 
of

 B
on

ds
 h

er
ei

na
ft

er
 s

et
 

fo
rt

h 
in

 th
is

 S
ec

ti
on

 8
 a

nd
 in

 S
ec

ti
on

 1
1 

he
re

of
. 
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E
ac

h 
se

ri
es

 o
f 

B
on

ds
 s

ha
ll

 b
e 

au
th

or
iz

ed
 b

y 
a 

Se
ri

es
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
w

hi
ch

 s
ha

ll
 s

pe
ci

fy
 a

nd
 

pr
ov

id
e 

fo
r,

 a
m

on
g 

ot
he

r 
th

in
gs

: 

(a
)

T
he

 a
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

pr
in

ci
pa

l 
am

ou
nt

, 
de

si
gn

at
io

n 
an

d 
se

ri
es

 o
f 

su
ch

 
B

on
ds

; (b
)

T
he

 g
en

er
al

 p
ur

po
se

 o
r 

pu
rp

os
es

 f
or

 w
hi

ch
 s

uc
h 

se
ri

es
 o

f 
B

on
ds

 i
s 

be
in

g 
is

su
ed

, a
nd

 t
he

 d
ep

os
it

, d
is

bu
rs

em
en

t 
an

d 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 t
he

 p
ro

ce
ed

s 
of

 t
he

 
sa

le
 o

f 
th

e 
B

on
ds

 o
f 

su
ch

 s
er

ie
s;

 

(c
)

T
he

 d
at

e 
or

 d
at

es
, 

an
d 

th
e 

m
at

ur
it

y 
da

te
 o

r 
da

te
s,

 o
f 

th
e 

B
on

ds
 o

f 
su

ch
 s

er
ie

s,
 a

nd
 th

e 
pr

in
ci

pa
l a

m
ou

nt
 m

at
ur

in
g 

on
 e

ac
h 

m
at

ur
it

y 
da

te
; 

(d
)

T
he

 i
nt

er
es

t 
ra

te
 o

r 
ra

te
s 

on
 t

he
 B

on
ds

 o
f 

su
ch

 s
er

ie
s;

 (
w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 
be

 a
 r

at
e 

of
 z

er
o)

 a
nd

 t
he

 i
nt

er
es

t 
pa

ym
en

t 
da

te
 o

r 
da

te
s 

th
er

ef
or

, 
an

d 
w

he
th

er
 

su
ch

 i
nt

er
es

t 
ra

te
 o

r 
ra

te
s 

sh
al

l 
be

 f
ix

ed
, v

ar
ia

bl
e 

or
 a

 c
om

bi
na

ti
on

 o
f 

bo
th

 a
nd

, i
f 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y,
 th

e 
m

an
ne

r 
of

 d
et

er
m

in
in

g 
su

ch
 r

at
e 

or
 r

at
es

; 

(e
)

T
he

 c
ir

cu
m

st
an

ce
s,

 i
f 

an
y,

 u
nd

er
 w

hi
ch

 t
he

 B
on

ds
 o

f 
su

ch
 s

er
ie

s 
w

il
l b

e 
de

em
ed

 to
 b

e 
no

 lo
ng

er
 o

ut
st

an
di

ng
; 

(f
)

T
he

 c
ur

re
nc

y 
or

 c
ur

re
nc

ie
s 

in
 w

hi
ch

 t
he

 B
on

ds
 o

f 
su

ch
 s

er
ie

s 
ar

e 
pa

ya
bl

e; (g
)

T
he

 d
en

om
in

at
io

ns
 o

f,
 a

nd
 t

he
 m

an
ne

r 
of

 d
at

in
g,

 n
um

be
ri

ng
, 

an
d,

 
if

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
, a

ut
he

nt
ic

at
in

g,
 th

e 
B

on
ds

 o
f 

su
ch

 s
er

ie
s;

 

(h
)

T
he

 R
eg

is
tr

ar
 o

r 
R

eg
is

tr
ar

s,
 if

 a
ny

, f
or

 th
e 

B
on

ds
 o

f 
su

ch
 s

er
ie

s 
an

d 
th

e 
du

ti
es

 a
nd

 o
bl

ig
at

io
ns

 th
er

eo
f;

 

(i
)

T
he

 p
la

ce
 o

r 
pl

ac
es

 o
f 

pa
ym

en
t 

of
 t

he
 p

ri
nc

ip
al

, r
ed

em
pt

io
n 

pr
ic

e,
 

if
 a

ny
, o

r 
pu

rc
ha

se
 p

ri
ce

, i
f 

an
y,

 o
f 

an
d 

in
te

re
st

 o
n,

 th
e 

B
on

ds
 o

f 
su

ch
 s

er
ie

s;
 

(j
)

T
he

 t
en

de
r 

ag
en

t 
or

 t
en

de
r 

ag
en

ts
, 

if
 a

ny
, 

fo
r 

th
e 

B
on

ds
 o

f 
su

ch
 

se
ri

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
du

ti
es

 a
nd

 o
bl

ig
at

io
ns

 th
er

eo
f;

 

(k
)

T
he

 r
em

ar
ke

ti
ng

 a
ge

nt
 o

r 
re

m
ar

ke
ti

ng
 a

ge
nt

s,
 if

 a
ny

, f
or

 th
e 

B
on

ds
 

of
 s

uc
h 

se
ri

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
du

ti
es

 a
nd

 o
bl

ig
at

io
ns

 th
er

eo
f;

 

(l
)

T
he

 e
sc

ro
w

 a
ge

nt
 f

or
 th

e 
pr

oc
ee

ds
 o

f 
an

y 
re

fu
nd

in
g 

B
on

ds
; 

(m
)

T
he

 f
or

m
 o

r 
fo

rm
s 

of
 t

he
 B

on
ds

 o
f 

su
ch

 s
er

ie
s,

 w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 i

nc
lu

de
 

bu
t s

ha
ll

 n
ot

 b
e 

li
m

it
ed

 to
, r

eg
is

te
re

d 
fo

rm
, a

nd
 b

oo
k-

en
tr

y 
fo

rm
, a

nd
 th

e 
m

et
ho

ds
, 

if
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

, 
fo

r 
th

e 
re

gi
st

ra
ti

on
, 

tr
an

sf
er

 a
nd

 e
xc

ha
ng

e 
of

 t
he

 B
on

ds
 o

f 
su

ch
 

se
ri

es
;

E-9
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(n
)

T
he

 t
er

m
s 

an
d 

co
nd

it
io

ns
, 

if
 a

ny
, 

fo
r 

th
e 

re
de

m
pt

io
n 

of
 t

he
 B

on
ds

 
of

 s
uc

h 
se

ri
es

 p
ri

or
 t

o 
m

at
ur

it
y,

 i
nc

lu
di

ng
 t

he
 r

ed
em

pt
io

n 
da

te
 o

r 
da

te
s,

 t
he

 
re

de
m

pt
io

n 
pr

ic
e 

or
 p

ri
ce

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 r

ed
em

pt
io

n 
te

rm
s;

 

(o
)

T
he

 t
er

m
s 

an
d 

co
nd

it
io

ns
, 

if
 a

ny
, 

fo
r 

th
e 

pu
rc

ha
se

 o
f 

th
e 

B
on

ds
 o

f 
su

ch
 s

er
ie

s 
up

on
 a

ny
 o

pt
io

na
l 

or
 m

an
da

to
ry

 t
en

de
r 

fo
r 

pu
rc

ha
se

 p
ri

or
 t

o 
m

at
ur

it
y,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

te
nd

er
 d

at
e 

or
 d

at
es

, t
he

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
da

te
 o

r 
da

te
s,

 th
e 

pu
rc

ha
se

 p
ri

ce
 o

r 
pr

ic
es

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 a

pp
li

ca
bl

e 
te

rm
s;

 

(p
)

T
he

 m
an

ne
r 

of
 s

al
e 

of
 t

he
 B

on
ds

 o
f 

su
ch

 s
er

ie
s,

 w
it

h 
or

 w
it

ho
ut

 a
 

pr
em

iu
m

 o
r 

a 
di

sc
ou

nt
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 th
e 

sa
le

 o
f 

O
ri

gi
na

l I
ss

ue
 D

is
co

un
t B

on
ds

; 

(q
)

If
 s

o 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y,

 t
he

 a
ut

ho
ri

za
ti

on
 o

f 
an

d 
an

y 
te

rm
s 

an
d 

co
nd

it
io

ns
 w

it
h 

re
sp

ec
t 

to
 c

re
di

t 
or

 l
iq

ui
di

ty
 s

up
po

rt
 a

nd
 t

he
 u

se
 o

f 
an

y 
C

re
di

t F
ac

il
it

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
B

on
ds

 o
f 

su
ch

 s
er

ie
s 

an
d 

th
e 

pl
ed

ge
 o

r 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 m

on
ey

, 
as

se
ts

 o
r 

se
cu

ri
ty

 o
th

er
 t

ha
n 

G
ro

ss
 R

ev
en

ue
 t

o 
or

 f
or

 t
he

 p
ay

m
en

t 
of

 t
he

 B
on

ds
 o

f 
su

ch
 s

er
ie

s 
or

 a
ny

 p
or

ti
on

 th
er

eo
f;

 

(r
)

A
 s

pe
ci

al
 f

un
d 

or
 a

cc
ou

nt
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
pa

ym
en

t 
of

 t
he

 B
on

ds
 

of
 s

uc
h 

se
ri

es
 a

nd
, 

if
 s

o 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y,

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 s

pe
ci

al
 f

un
ds

 o
r 

ac
co

un
ts

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g,

 w
it

ho
ut

 l
im

it
at

io
n,

 r
es

er
ve

 f
un

ds
 o

r 
ac

co
un

ts
, 

fo
r 

th
e 

B
on

ds
 

of
 s

uc
h 

se
ri

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 m
on

ey
 o

r 
se

cu
ri

ty
 th

er
ei

n;

(s
)

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 

to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 

di
sc

lo
su

re
 

fo
r 

go
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l 
B

on
ds

 o
f 

th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y;

 a
nd

 

(t
)

A
ny

 o
th

er
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
w

hi
ch

 t
he

 U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

de
em

s 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

or
 

de
si

ra
bl

e 
in

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

w
it

h 
th

e 
B

on
ds

 o
f 

su
ch

 s
er

ie
s.

 

S
ec

ti
on

 9
.  

B
on

d 
F

un
d.

  
T

he
re

 i
s 

he
re

by
 c

re
at

ed
 a

nd
 e

st
ab

li
sh

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
of

fi
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

T
re

as
ur

er
 a

 s
pe

ci
al

 f
un

d 
of

 t
he

 U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 a

s 
th

e 
“S

ys
te

m
 R

ev
en

ue
 B

on
d 

F
un

d”
 (

th
e 

“B
on

d 
F

un
d”

),
 f

or
 t

he
 p

ur
po

se
 o

f 
pa

yi
ng

 a
nd

 s
ec

ur
in

g 
th

e 
pa

ym
en

t 
of

 a
ny

 P
ar

it
y 

B
on

ds
. 

 T
he

 
B

on
d 

F
un

d 
sh

al
l 

be
 h

el
d 

se
pa

ra
te

 a
nd

 a
pa

rt
 f

ro
m

 a
ll

 o
th

er
 f

un
ds

 a
nd

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
of

 t
he

 U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

an
d 

sh
al

l b
e 

a 
tr

us
t f

un
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

O
w

ne
rs

, f
ro

m
 ti

m
e 

to
 ti

m
e,

 o
f 

an
y 

P
ar

it
y 

B
on

ds
. 

S
o 

lo
ng

 a
s 

an
y 

P
ar

it
y 

B
on

ds
 a

re
 o

ut
st

an
di

ng
, 

th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

sh
al

l 
se

t 
as

id
e 

an
d 

pa
y 

in
to

 
th

e 
B

on
d 

F
un

d 
ou

t 
of

 t
he

 G
ro

ss
 R

ev
en

ue
, 

ce
rt

ai
n 

fi
xe

d 
am

ou
nt

s 
w

it
ho

ut
 r

eg
ar

d 
to

 a
ny

 f
ix

ed
 

pr
op

or
ti

on
, 

na
m

el
y,

 o
n 

or
 p

ri
or

 t
o 

ea
ch

 i
nt

er
es

t 
or

 p
ri

nc
ip

al
 a

nd
 i

nt
er

es
t 

pa
ym

en
t 

da
te

 f
ro

m
 i

ts
 

G
ro

ss
 R

ev
en

ue
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

m
on

ey
 i

n 
th

e 
R

ev
en

ue
 F

un
d 

le
ga

ll
y 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
th

er
ef

or
, 

m
on

ey
 w

hi
ch

, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

it
h 

m
on

ey
 t

he
n 

on
 d

ep
os

it
 i

n 
th

at
 f

un
d,

 s
ha

ll
 b

e 
at

 l
ea

st
 s

uf
fi

ci
en

t 
to

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
de

bt
 

se
rv

ic
e 

on
 th

e 
P

ar
it

y 
B

on
ds

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
on

 th
e 

ne
xt

 in
te

re
st

 o
r 

pr
in

ci
pa

l a
nd

 in
te

re
st

 p
ay

m
en

t d
at

e.
  

M
on

ey
 i

n 
th

e 
B

on
d 

F
un

d 
no

t 
ne

ed
ed

 t
o 

pa
y 

th
e 

in
te

re
st

 o
r 

pr
in

ci
pa

l 
an

d 
in

te
re

st
 n

ex
t 

co
m

in
g 

du
e 

on
 a

ny
 o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 P

ar
it

y 
B

on
ds

 o
r 

to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

re
qu

ir
ed

 r
es

er
ve

s 
th

er
ef

or
 m

ay
 b

e 
us

ed
 t

o 
pu

rc
ha

se
 o

r 
re

de
em

 a
nd

 r
et

ir
e 

P
ar

it
y 

B
on

ds
. 

 M
on

ey
 i

n 
th

e 
B

on
d 

F
un

d 
m

ay
 b

e 
in

ve
st

ed
 

in
 P

er
m

it
te

d 
In

ve
st

m
en

ts
, 

w
hi

ch
 s

ha
ll

 m
at

ur
e 

pr
io

r 
to

 t
he

 d
at

e 
on

 w
hi

ch
 s

uc
h 

m
on

ey
 s

ha
ll

 b
e 

ne
ed

ed
 f

or
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

in
te

re
st

 o
r 

pr
in

ci
pa

l 
pa

ym
en

ts
. 

 A
ll

 i
nt

er
es

t 
ea

rn
ed

 a
nd

 i
nc

om
e 

de
ri

ve
d 

by
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vi
rt

ue
 o

f 
su

ch
 i

nv
es

tm
en

ts
 s

ha
ll

 r
em

ai
n 

in
 t

he
 B

on
d 

F
un

d 
an

d 
be

 u
se

d 
to

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

ed
 

de
po

si
ts

 in
to

 a
ny

 a
cc

ou
nt

 th
er

ei
n.

 

T
he

 U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

m
ay

, 
at

 i
ts

 d
is

cr
et

io
n,

 p
ro

vi
de

 f
or

 a
 r

es
er

ve
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

w
it

h 
re

sp
ec

t 
to

 
an

y 
se

ri
es

 o
f 

P
ar

it
y 

B
on

ds
, 

an
d 

m
ay

 c
re

at
e 

su
bf

un
ds

 o
r 

ac
co

un
ts

 w
it

hi
n 

th
e 

B
on

d 
F

un
d 

as
 i

t 
de

em
s 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
in

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

w
it

h 
an

y 
su

ch
 r

es
er

ve
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t. 

 T
he

 R
es

er
ve

 A
cc

ou
nt

 c
re

at
ed

 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 t

o 
th

e 
O

ri
gi

na
l 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

sh
al

l 
be

 d
ee

m
ed

 t
o 

be
 a

 r
es

er
ve

 a
cc

ou
nt

 f
or

 t
he

 S
er

ie
s 

20
02

 
B

on
ds

, 
an

d 
D

eb
t 

S
er

vi
ce

 R
es

er
ve

 S
ur

et
y 

B
on

d 
N

o.
 3

80
37

(2
) 

sh
al

l 
be

 a
ll

oc
at

ed
 t

o 
th

at
 r

es
er

ve
 

ac
co

un
t a

nd
 s

ha
ll

 r
em

ai
n 

in
 f

ul
l f

or
ce

 a
nd

 e
ff

ec
t w

it
h 

re
sp

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
S

er
ie

s 
20

02
 B

on
ds

 o
nl

y.
  T

he
 

ow
ne

rs
 o

f 
P

ar
it

y 
B

on
ds

 o
th

er
 t

ha
n 

th
e 

S
er

ie
s 

20
02

 B
on

ds
 s

ha
ll

 h
av

e 
no

 r
ig

ht
s 

w
it

h 
re

sp
ec

t 
to

 
D

eb
t 

S
er

vi
ce

 R
es

er
ve

 S
ur

et
y 

B
on

d 
N

o.
 3

80
37

(2
) 

or
 a

ny
 a

m
ou

nt
s 

de
po

si
te

d 
in

 t
he

 r
es

er
ve

 
ac

co
un

t f
or

 th
e 

S
er

ie
s 

20
02

 B
on

ds
. 

N
ot

hi
ng

 h
er

ei
n 

sh
al

l l
im

it
 th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
it

y’
s 

ri
gh

t t
o 

is
su

e 
bo

nd
s,

 n
ot

es
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

ob
li

ga
ti

on
s,

 
fo

r 
an

y 
la

w
fu

l 
S

ys
te

m
 p

ur
po

se
, 

se
cu

re
d 

in
 w

ho
le

 o
r 

in
 p

ar
t 

by
 l

ie
ns

 a
ga

in
st

 t
he

 G
ro

ss
 R

ev
en

ue
 

an
d 

th
e 

m
on

ey
 a

nd
 i

nv
es

tm
en

ts
 i

n 
th

e 
R

ev
en

ue
 F

un
d 

th
at

 a
re

 j
un

io
r 

an
d 

in
fe

ri
or

 t
o 

th
e 

li
en

 
ag

ai
ns

t 
th

e 
G

ro
ss

 R
ev

en
ue

 a
nd

 m
on

ey
 a

nd
 i

nv
es

tm
en

ts
 i

n 
th

e 
R

ev
en

ue
 F

un
d 

se
cu

ri
ng

 t
he

 
pa

ym
en

t o
f 

th
e 

B
on

ds
. 

S
ec

ti
on

 1
0.

 
R

eb
at

e 
F

un
d.

  
T

he
 U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
w

is
he

s 
to

 a
ss

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ny

 R
eb

at
e 

A
m

ou
nt

 
w

il
l b

e 
ti

m
el

y 
de

po
si

te
d 

in
 th

e 
R

eb
at

e 
F

un
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

it
h 

th
e 

fo
ll

ow
in

g 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

: 

(a
) 

T
he

 U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

sh
al

l e
st

ab
li

sh
 a

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
sp

ec
ia

l f
un

d 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 a
s 

th
e 

“R
eb

at
e 

F
un

d”
 i

f 
at

 a
ny

 t
im

e 
th

er
e 

is
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
, p

ur
su

an
t 

to
 S

ec
ti

on
 1

0(
b)

 o
f 

th
is

 r
es

ol
ut

io
n,

 t
o 

be
 a

 R
eb

at
e 

A
m

ou
nt

, 
w

hi
ch

 f
un

d 
sh

al
l 

be
 s

eg
re

ga
te

d 
fr

om
 a

ll
 

ot
he

r 
fu

nd
s 

an
d 

ac
co

un
ts

 
he

ld
 

by
 

th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y.

 
 

If
 

su
ch

 
R

eb
at

e 
F

un
d 

is
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d,

 t
he

 U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

sh
al

l 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

th
e 

R
eb

at
e 

F
un

d 
un

ti
l 

th
e 

ex
pi

ra
ti

on
 o

f 
60

 d
ay

s 
af

te
r 

th
e 

re
ti

re
m

en
t o

f 
th

e 
la

st
 o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 ta

x-
ex

em
pt

 B
on

d.
 

(b
) 

W
it

hi
n 

th
e 

ti
m

e 
re

qu
ir

ed
 

by
 

th
e 

C
od

e,
 

th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

sh
al

l 
de

te
rm

in
e 

or
 c

au
se

 t
o 

be
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 t

he
 R

eb
at

e 
A

m
ou

nt
 i

n 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h 
S

ec
ti

on
 1

48
 

of
 

th
e 

C
od

e 
an

d 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 
T

re
as

ur
y 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 
pr

om
ul

ga
te

d 
th

er
eu

nd
er

. 
 I

f 
a 

R
eb

at
e 

A
m

ou
nt

 i
s 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 t

o 
ex

is
t, 

th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

sh
al

l 
de

po
si

t 
in

to
 t

he
 R

eb
at

e 
F

un
d 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

it
h 

ot
he

r 
m

on
ey

 
th

er
ei

n,
 t

o 
eq

ua
l 

th
e 

R
eb

at
e 

A
m

ou
nt

. 
 T

he
 U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
sh

al
l 

us
e 

m
on

ey
 i

n 
th

e 
R

eb
at

e 
F

un
d 

to
 p

ay
 t

he
 R

eb
at

e 
A

m
ou

nt
 t

o 
th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
S

ta
te

s 
T

re
as

ur
y 

in
 t

he
 

m
an

ne
r 

re
qu

ir
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
od

e 
an

d 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 T
re

as
ur

y 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
. 

 A
ny

 m
on

ey
 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 i

n 
th

e 
R

eb
at

e 
F

un
d 

af
te

r 
su

ch
 p

ay
m

en
t 

an
d 

no
t 

on
 d

ep
os

it
 o

n 
ac

co
un

t 
of

 a
no

th
er

 i
ss

ue
 o

f 
B

on
ds

, 
m

ay
 b

e 
tr

an
sf

er
re

d 
by

 t
he

 U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

to
 t

he
 P

ri
nc

ip
al

 
an

d 
In

te
re

st
 A

cc
ou

nt
. 

(c
) 

T
he

 
U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
m

ay
, 

in
 

it
s 

di
sc

re
ti

on
, 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
su

ch
 

ac
co

un
ts

 
w

it
hi

n 
th

e 
R

eb
at

e 
F

un
d 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

un
de

r 
th

is
 r

es
ol

ut
io

n,
 a

nd
 s

ub
ac

co
un

ts
 w

it
hi

n 
an

y 
of

 s
uc

h 
ac

co
un

ts
, 

as
 t

he
 U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
m

ay
 d

ee
m

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 o

r 
us

ef
ul

 f
or

 t
he

 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 
id

en
ti

fy
in

g 
m

or
e 

pr
ec

is
el

y 
th

e 
so

ur
ce

s 
of

 
pa

ym
en

ts
 

in
to

 
an

d 
di

sb
ur

se
m

en
ts

 f
ro

m
 s

uc
h 

ac
co

un
ts

 o
r 

su
ba

cc
ou

nt
s,

 b
ut

 t
he

 e
st

ab
li

sh
m

en
t 

of
 a

ny
 

su
ch

 a
dd

it
io

na
l 

ac
co

un
t 

or
 s

ub
ac

co
un

t 
sh

al
l 

no
t 

al
te

r 
or

 m
od

if
y 

an
y 

of
 t

he
 

E-10
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re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

 o
f 

th
is

 r
es

ol
ut

io
n 

w
it

h 
re

sp
ec

t 
to

 t
he

 d
ep

os
it

 o
r 

us
e 

of
 m

on
ey

 i
n 

th
e 

R
eb

at
e 

F
un

d 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
he

re
un

de
r 

or
 

re
su

lt
 

in
 

co
m

m
in

gl
in

g 
of

 
fu

nd
s 

no
t 

pe
rm

it
te

d 
he

re
un

de
r.

 

S
ec

ti
on

 1
1.

 
P

ar
it

y 
B

on
ds

.  
A

ll
 B

on
ds

 a
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

to
 b

e 
is

su
ed

 u
nd

er
 S

er
ie

s 
R

es
ol

ut
io

ns
 

sh
al

l b
e 

P
ar

it
y 

B
on

ds
, h

av
in

g 
an

 e
qu

al
 li

en
 a

nd
 c

ha
rg

e 
up

on
 th

e 
G

ro
ss

 R
ev

en
ue

, u
po

n 
fu

lf
il

lm
en

t 
of

 t
he

 c
on

di
ti

on
s 

of
 t

hi
s 

re
so

lu
ti

on
, 

w
he

th
er

 a
t 

th
e 

ti
m

e 
of

 a
ut

ho
ri

za
ti

on
 o

r 
is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
su

ch
 

B
on

ds
. 

 T
he

 U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

sh
al

l 
no

t 
is

su
e 

an
y 

se
ri

es
 o

f 
B

on
ds

 o
r 

in
cu

r 
an

y 
ad

di
ti

on
al

 i
nd

eb
te

dn
es

s 
w

it
h 

a 
pa

ri
ty

 l
ie

n 
or

 c
ha

rg
e 

on
 G

ro
ss

 R
ev

en
ue

 (
on

 a
 p

ar
it

y 
of

 l
ie

n 
w

it
h 

B
on

ds
 a

t 
th

e 
ti

m
e 

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

) 
un

le
ss

: 

(a
)

T
he

 U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

sh
al

l 
no

t 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

in
 d

ef
au

lt
 o

f 
it

s 
R

at
e 

C
ov

en
an

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 p

re
ce

di
ng

 f
is

ca
l y

ea
r;

 a
nd

 

(b
)

T
he

 U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

ha
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 e
it

he
r 

(1
) 

or
 (

2)
: 

(1
) 

A
 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
e 

de
li

ve
re

d 
by

 
th

e 
D

es
ig

na
te

d 
U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

e,
 

ba
se

d 
up

on
 

th
e 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

au
di

te
d 

an
nu

al
 

fi
na

nc
ia

l 
re

po
rt

s 
of

 th
e 

S
ys

te
m

, t
o 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
 th

at
 a

ve
ra

ge
 a

nn
ua

l N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

s,
 p

lu
s 

th
e 

ne
t 

re
ve

nu
es

 
fr

om
 

an
y 

ot
he

r 
so

ur
ce

s 
pl

ed
ge

d 
as

 
se

cu
ri

ty
 

fo
r 

al
l 

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 B
on

ds
, d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
tw

o 
fu

ll
 f

is
ca

l y
ea

rs
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 p

re
ce

di
ng

 
th

e 
da

te
 o

f 
is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
su

ch
 P

ar
it

y 
B

on
ds

, 
w

as
 e

qu
al

 t
o 

at
 l

ea
st

 t
he

 
C

ov
er

ag
e 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
on

 a
ll

 B
on

ds
 t

o 
be

 O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

fu
ll

 
fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r 
su

cc
ee

di
ng

 th
e 

da
te

 o
f 

is
su

an
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

P
ar

it
y 

B
on

ds
; b

ut
 if

 s
uc

h 
P

ar
it

y 
B

on
ds

 a
re

 p
ro

po
se

d 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 a

t 
an

y 
ti

m
e 

du
ri

ng
 a

ny
 f

is
ca

l 
ye

ar
 

w
he

n 
th

e 
au

di
te

d 
fi

na
nc

ia
l 

re
po

rt
 o

f 
th

e 
S

ys
te

m
 f

or
 t

he
 p

re
ce

di
ng

 f
is

ca
l 

ye
ar

 i
s 

no
t 

av
ai

la
bl

e,
 t

he
n 

N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 f

is
ca

l 
ye

ar
 s

ha
ll

 
be

 c
al

cu
la

te
d,

 f
or

 p
ur

po
se

s 
of

 m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

 o
f 

th
is

 s
ec

ti
on

, 
ba

se
d 

up
on

 t
he

 u
na

ud
it

ed
 s

ta
te

m
en

t 
of

 r
ev

en
ue

 a
nd

 e
xp

en
se

s 
fo

r 
an

y 
tw

el
ve

 s
uc

ce
ss

iv
e 

ca
le

nd
ar

 m
on

th
s 

in
 t

he
 f

if
te

en
 m

on
th

s 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 

pr
ec

ed
in

g 
th

e 
da

te
 o

f 
is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
P

ar
it

y 
B

on
ds

 p
ro

po
se

d 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
, 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

D
es

ig
na

te
d 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

it
h 

G
A

A
P

; o
r 

(2
) 

A
 c

er
ti

fi
ca

te
 o

f 
th

e 
D

es
ig

na
te

d 
U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

e 
to

 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
es

ti
m

at
ed

 N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

s,
 p

lu
s 

th
e 

ne
t 

re
ve

nu
es

 f
ro

m
 a

ny
 

ot
he

r 
so

ur
ce

s 
pl

ed
ge

d 
as

 s
ec

ur
it

y 
fo

r 
al

l 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 B

on
ds

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

th
re

e 
co

ns
ec

ut
iv

e 
fu

ll
 f

is
ca

l 
ye

ar
s 

ne
xt

 s
uc

ce
ed

in
g 

th
e 

da
te

 o
f 

is
su

an
ce

 o
f 

su
ch

 p
ro

po
se

d 
P

ar
it

y 
B

on
ds

 (
or

, 
if

 n
ew

 f
ac

il
it

ie
s 

or
 i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
re

 t
o 

be
 c

on
st

ru
ct

ed
 w

it
h 

an
y 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 t

he
 p

ro
ce

ed
s 

of
 s

uc
h 

P
ar

it
y 

B
on

ds
, 

in
 

th
e 

th
re

e 
fu

ll
 f

is
ca

l 
ye

ar
s 

fo
ll

ow
in

g 
th

e 
fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r 
in

 w
hi

ch
 s

uc
h 

ne
w

 
fa

ci
li

ti
es

 o
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
re

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
) 

w
il

l 
be

 e
qu

al
 t

o 
at

 l
ea

st
 t

he
 C

ov
er

ag
e 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
on

 a
ll

 B
on

ds
 t

o 
be

 O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 d
ur

in
g 

su
ch

 t
hr

ee
 f

ul
l 

fi
sc

al
 y

ea
rs

. 
 C

om
pu

ta
ti

on
 o

f 
fu

tu
re

 N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

s 
of

 t
he

 
th

en
 e

xi
st

in
g 

S
ys

te
m

, a
nd

 o
th

er
 p

le
dg

ed
 r

ev
en

ue
s,

 s
ha

ll
 b

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 a

ct
ua

l 
N

et
 R

ev
en

ue
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

fi
sc

al
 y

ea
r 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 p
re

ce
di

ng
 t

he
 i

ss
ua

nc
e 

of
 

P
ar

it
y 

B
on

ds
, 

ad
ju

st
ed

 t
o 

re
fl

ec
t 

th
e 

sc
he

du
le

 o
r 

ra
te

s 
an

d 
ch

ar
ge

s 
to
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be
co

m
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
w

he
n 

th
e 

ad
di

ti
on

al
 

fa
ci

li
ti

es
 

be
co

m
e 

re
ve

nu
e 

pr
od

uc
in

g,
 

an
d 

af
te

r 
gi

vi
ng

 
re

co
gn

it
io

n 
to

 
an

ti
ci

pa
te

d 
ch

an
ge

s 
in

 
O

pe
ra

ti
ng

 E
xp

en
se

s 
of

 t
he

 S
ys

te
m

. 
 C

om
pu

ta
ti

on
 o

f 
th

e 
es

ti
m

at
ed

 n
et

 
re

ve
nu

es
 o

f 
an

y 
fa

ci
li

ty
 o

r 
fa

ci
li

ti
es

 u
nd

er
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n,

 t
o 

be
 c

on
st

ru
ct

ed
 

or
 a

cq
ui

re
d,

 o
r 

no
t 

in
 o

pe
ra

ti
on

 f
or

 t
he

 p
re

ce
di

ng
 f

ul
l 

fi
sc

al
 y

ea
r 

sh
al

l 
be

 
pr

ed
ic

at
ed

 u
po

n 
re

as
on

ab
le

 u
ti

li
za

ti
on

 r
at

es
. 

(c
)

In
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 

w
it

h 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
 

of
 

S
ub

se
ct

io
n 

(a
) 

of
 

th
is

 
S

ec
ti

on
 1

1,
 a

nd
 i

n 
li

eu
 o

f 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
 o

f 
S

ub
se

ct
io

n 
(b

) 
of

 t
hi

s 
S

ec
ti

on
 1

1,
 

P
ar

it
y 

B
on

ds
 m

ay
 b

e 
is

su
ed

 s
ol

el
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

pu
rp

os
e 

of
 f

in
an

ci
ng

 t
he

 c
os

t 
or

 
es

ti
m

at
ed

 c
os

t 
of

 c
om

pl
et

in
g 

a 
ca

pi
ta

l 
pr

oj
ec

t 
w

he
re

 B
on

ds
 h

av
e 

be
en

 i
ss

ue
d 

un
de

r 
a 

S
er

ie
s 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

to
 p

ay
 c

os
ts

 o
f 

su
ch

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
; 

pr
ov

id
ed

, 
ho

w
ev

er
, 

th
e 

ag
gr

eg
at

e 
pr

in
ci

pa
l 

am
ou

nt
 o

f 
P

ar
it

y 
B

on
ds

 i
ss

ue
d 

fi
na

nc
in

g 
th

e 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 a
 

gi
ve

n 
pr

oj
ec

t 
sh

al
l 

no
t 

ex
ce

ed
 f

if
te

en
 p

er
ce

nt
 (

15
%

) 
of

 t
he

 p
ri

nc
ip

al
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f 
B

on
ds

 o
ri

gi
na

ll
y 

is
su

ed
 o

r 
in

cu
rr

ed
 to

 f
in

an
ce

 s
uc

h 
pr

oj
ec

t. 

S
ec

ti
on

 1
2.

 
R

ef
un

di
ng

 
B

on
ds

. 
 

T
he

 
U

ni
ve

rs
it

y,
 

by
 

m
ea

ns
 

of
 

a 
S

er
ie

s 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
ad

op
te

d 
in

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
it

h 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f 

S
ec

ti
on

 8
 h

er
eo

f,
 m

ay
 i

ss
ue

 r
ef

un
di

ng
 B

on
ds

 
he

re
un

de
r 

as
 f

ol
lo

w
s:

 

(a
)

B
on

ds
 m

ay
 b

e 
is

su
ed

 a
t 

an
y 

ti
m

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 r
ef

un
di

ng
 

(i
nc

lu
di

ng
 b

y 
pu

rc
ha

se
) 

B
on

ds
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
am

ou
nt

s 
to

 p
ay

 p
ri

nc
ip

al
 t

he
re

of
 a

nd
 

re
de

m
pt

io
n 

pr
em

iu
m

, 
if

 a
ny

, 
an

d 
in

te
re

st
 t

he
re

on
 t

o 
th

e 
da

te
 o

f 
re

de
m

pt
io

n 
(o

r 
pu

rc
ha

se
) 

an
d 

th
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

 o
f 

is
su

in
g 

th
e 

B
on

ds
 t

o 
pu

rc
ha

se
 o

r 
re

fu
nd

 t
he

 s
am

e 
an

d 
of

 e
ff

ec
ti

ng
 s

uc
h 

re
fu

nd
in

g 
up

on
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 a

 c
er

ti
fi

ca
te

 a
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 i
n 

S
ec

ti
on

 1
1 

he
re

of
.  

S
uc

h 
re

fu
nd

in
g 

B
on

ds
 a

ls
o 

m
ay

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 w

it
ho

ut
 a

 c
er

ti
fi

ca
te

 
if

 t
he

 M
ax

im
um

 A
nn

ua
l 

D
eb

t 
S

er
vi

ce
 o

n 
al

l 
B

on
ds

 t
o 

be
 O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 a

ft
er

 t
he

 
is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
re

fu
nd

in
g 

B
on

ds
 s

ha
ll

 n
ot

 b
e 

gr
ea

te
r 

th
an

 t
he

 M
ax

im
um

 A
nn

ua
l 

D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

 w
er

e 
su

ch
 r

ef
un

di
ng

 n
ot

 to
 o

cc
ur

. 

(b
)

B
on

ds
 m

ay
 b

e 
is

su
ed

 a
t 

an
y 

ti
m

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 r
ef

un
di

ng
 

(i
nc

lu
di

ng
 b

y 
pu

rc
ha

se
) 

an
y 

ot
he

r 
bo

nd
s 

of
 t

he
 U

ni
ve

rs
it

y,
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
to

 
pa

y 
pr

in
ci

pa
l 

th
er

eo
f 

an
d 

re
de

m
pt

io
n 

pr
em

iu
m

, i
f 

an
y,

 a
nd

 i
nt

er
es

t 
th

er
eo

n 
to

 t
he

 
da

te
 o

f 
re

de
m

pt
io

n 
of

 s
uc

h 
bo

nd
s 

(o
r 

pu
rc

ha
se

) 
an

d 
th

e 
ex

pe
ns

es
 o

f 
is

su
in

g 
th

e 
B

on
ds

 t
o 

pu
rc

ha
se

 o
r 

re
fu

nd
 t

he
 s

am
e 

an
d 

of
 e

ff
ec

ti
ng

 s
uc

h 
re

fu
nd

in
g.

  
P

ri
or

 t
o 

th
e 

is
su

an
ce

 o
f 

su
ch

 B
on

ds
 th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
m

us
t p

ro
vi

de
 a

 c
er

ti
fi

ca
te

 if
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

by
 

S
ec

ti
on

 1
1 

he
re

of
. 

(c
)

B
on

ds
 m

ay
 b

e 
is

su
ed

 f
or

 t
he

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f 

re
fu

nd
in

g 
(i

nc
lu

di
ng

 b
y 

pu
rc

ha
se

) 
at

 a
ny

 t
im

e 
w

it
hi

n 
on

e 
ye

ar
 p

ri
or

 t
o 

m
at

ur
it

y,
 a

ny
 B

on
ds

 f
or

 t
he

 
pa

ym
en

t 
of

 w
hi

ch
 s

uf
fi

ci
en

t 
G

ro
ss

 R
ev

en
ue

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
m

on
ey

 i
s 

no
t 

av
ai

la
bl

e,
 

w
it

ho
ut

 th
e 

re
qu

ir
em

en
t o

f 
a 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
e 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 S

ec
ti

on
 1

1 
he

re
of

. 
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S
ec

ti
on

 1
3.

 
S

pe
ci

fi
c 

C
ov

en
an

ts
.  

T
he

 U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

co
ve

na
nt

s 
an

d 
ag

re
es

 w
it

h 
th

e 
ow

ne
rs

 
of

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

B
on

ds
 f

or
 a

s 
lo

ng
 a

s 
an

y 
of

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
re

m
ai

n 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 a

s 
fo

ll
ow

s:
 

(a
)

It
 w

il
l 

at
 a

ll
 t

im
es

 e
st

ab
li

sh
 s

uc
h 

ru
le

s 
an

d 
es

ta
bl

is
h,

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
co

ll
ec

t 
ra

te
s,

 f
ee

s,
 a

nd
 c

ha
rg

es
 i

n 
th

e 
op

er
at

io
n 

of
 t

he
 S

ys
te

m
 f

or
 a

s 
lo

ng
 a

s 
an

y 
B

on
ds

 a
re

 o
ut

st
an

di
ng

 t
ha

t 
w

il
l 

pr
od

uc
e 

N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

s 
in

 e
ac

h 
fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r 
at

 l
ea

st
 

eq
ua

l 
to

 t
he

 g
re

at
er

 o
f 

(1
) 

th
e 

C
ov

er
ag

e 
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
t, 

or
 (

2)
 a

m
ou

nt
s 

re
qu

ir
ed

 t
o 

be
 d

ep
os

it
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

su
ch

 f
is

ca
l y

ea
r 

in
to

 b
on

d 
fu

nd
s 

an
d 

re
se

rv
e 

fu
nd

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
fo

r 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 B

on
ds

, b
ut

 e
xc

lu
di

ng
 f

ro
m

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

fo
re

go
in

g,
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 m
ad

e 
fr

om
 r

ef
un

di
ng

 d
eb

t 
an

d 
ca

pi
ta

li
ze

d 
de

bt
 s

er
vi

ce
 (

he
re

in
 r

ef
er

re
d 

to
 a

s 
th

e 
“R

at
e 

C
ov

en
an

t”
).

T
he

 U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

he
re

by
 c

ov
en

an
ts

 t
ha

t 
it

 w
il

l 
no

t 
co

ns
tr

uc
t, 

op
er

at
e 

or
 e

nt
er

 in
to

 a
ny

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t p

er
m

it
ti

ng
 o

r 
fa

ci
li

ta
ti

ng
 th

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
 o

r 
op

er
at

io
n 

of
 a

ny
 f

ac
il

it
ie

s 
w

hi
ch

 w
il

l c
om

pe
te

 w
it

h 
th

e 
op

er
at

io
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

S
ys

te
m

 in
 a

 m
an

ne
r 

w
hi

ch
 w

il
l 

m
at

er
ia

ll
y 

an
d 

ad
ve

rs
el

y 
af

fe
ct

 i
ts

 a
bi

li
ty

 t
o 

co
m

pl
y 

w
it

h 
th

e 
R

at
e 

C
ov

en
an

t. 
 C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

it
h 

th
e 

co
ve

na
nt

 s
et

 f
or

th
 in

 th
e 

pr
ec

ed
in

g 
se

nt
en

ce
 m

ay
 

be
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
d 

by
 a

 c
er

ti
fi

ca
te

 b
as

ed
 u

po
n 

re
as

on
ab

le
 b

el
ie

f 
of

 t
he

 D
es

ig
na

te
d 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e.

 

If
 t

he
 N

et
 R

ev
en

ue
s 

in
 a

ny
 f

is
ca

l 
ye

ar
 a

re
 l

es
s 

th
an

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 
fu

lf
il

l 
th

e 
R

at
e 

C
ov

en
an

t, 
th

en
 t

he
 U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
w

il
l 

re
ta

in
 a

 C
on

su
lt

an
t 

to
 m

ak
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
as

 t
o 

op
er

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 t

he
 r

ev
is

io
n 

of
 s

ch
ed

ul
es

 o
f 

re
nt

al
s,

 r
at

es
, 

fe
es

 a
nd

 c
ha

rg
es

; 
an

d 
up

on
 r

ec
ei

vi
ng

 s
uc

h 
re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

or
 g

iv
in

g 
re

as
on

ab
le

 
op

po
rt

un
it

y 
fo

r 
su

ch
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

to
 b

e 
m

ad
e,

 th
e 

B
oa

rd
, o

n 
th

e 
ba

si
s 

of
 s

uc
h 

re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 w

il
l 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
re

nt
al

s,
 r

at
es

, 
fe

es
 a

nd
 c

ha
rg

es
 f

or
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

op
er

at
io

ns
 w

hi
ch

 w
il

l 
be

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 t

o 
m

ee
t 

th
e 

R
at

e 
C

ov
en

an
t 

in
 t

he
 f

is
ca

l 
ye

ar
 d

ur
in

g 
w

hi
ch

 s
uc

h 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 a

re
 m

ad
e.

  
If

 t
he

 
B

oa
rd

 h
as

 t
ak

en
 t

he
 s

te
ps

 s
et

 f
or

th
 i

n 
th

is
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 a
nd

 t
he

 N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

s 
in

 t
he

 
fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r 
in

 w
hi

ch
 a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 a

re
 m

ad
e 

ne
ve

rt
he

le
ss

 a
re

 n
ot

 s
uf

fi
ci

en
t 

to
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

R
at

e 
C

ov
en

an
t, 

th
er

e 
sh

al
l 

be
 n

o 
D

ef
au

lt
 u

nd
er

 t
hi

s 
S

ec
ti

on
 1

3(
a)

 o
r 

un
de

r 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f 

S
ec

ti
on

 2
6(

c)
 o

f 
th

is
 r

es
ol

ut
io

n 
du

ri
ng

 s
uc

h 
fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r,
 u

nl
es

s 
th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
fa

il
s 

to
 m

ee
t t

he
 R

at
e 

C
ov

en
an

t f
or

 tw
o 

co
ns

ec
ut

iv
e 

fi
sc

al
 y

ea
rs

. 

(b
)

It
 w

il
l 

du
ly

 a
nd

 p
un

ct
ua

ll
y 

pa
y 

or
 c

au
se

 t
o 

be
 p

ai
d 

ou
t 

of
 t

he
 b

on
d 

fu
nd

 f
or

 e
ac

h 
se

ri
es

 o
f 

B
on

ds
 t

he
 p

ri
nc

ip
al

 o
f 

an
d 

in
te

re
st

 o
n 

th
e 

B
on

ds
 a

t 
th

e 
ti

m
es

 a
nd

 p
la

ce
s 

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 e

ac
h 

S
er

ie
s 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

an
d 

in
 t

ho
se

 B
on

ds
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 
an

d 
w

il
l 

at
 

al
l 

ti
m

es
 

fa
it

hf
ul

ly
 

pe
rf

or
m

 
an

d 
ob

se
rv

e 
an

y 
an

d 
al

l 
co

ve
na

nt
s,

 
un

de
rt

ak
in

gs
 

an
d 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 
th

is
 

re
so

lu
ti

on
, 

th
e 

S
er

ie
s 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n,

 a
s 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
, a

nd
 in

 th
e 

B
on

ds
. 

(c
)

It
 w

il
l 

at
 a

ll
 t

im
es

 k
ee

p 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

th
e 

S
ys

te
m

 i
n 

go
od

 r
ep

ai
r,

 
w

or
ki

ng
 o

rd
er

 a
nd

 c
on

di
ti

on
, 

an
d 

w
il

l 
at

 a
ll

 t
im

es
 o

pe
ra

te
 t

he
 s

am
e 

an
d 

th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 o
r 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 i

n 
co

nn
ec

ti
on

 t
he

re
w

it
h 

in
 a

n 
ef

fi
ci

en
t 

m
an

ne
r 

an
d 

at
 a

 
re

as
on

ab
le

 c
os

t. 
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(d
)

In
 t

he
 e

ve
nt

 a
ny

 p
or

ti
on

 o
f 

th
e 

S
ys

te
m

 w
hi

ch
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

es
 i

n 
so

m
e 

m
ea

su
re

 to
 th

e 
G

ro
ss

 R
ev

en
ue

 is
 s

ol
d 

by
 th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
or

 is
 c

on
de

m
ne

d 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 

to
 t

he
 p

ow
er

 o
f 

em
in

en
t 

do
m

ai
n,

 t
he

 U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

w
il

l 
ap

pl
y 

th
e 

ne
t 

pr
oc

ee
ds

 o
f 

su
ch

 s
al

e 
or

 c
on

de
m

na
ti

on
 t

o 
ca

pi
ta

l 
ex

pe
nd

it
ur

es
 u

po
n 

or
 f

or
 t

he
 S

ys
te

m
 w

hi
ch

 
w

il
l 

co
nt

ri
bu

te
 i

n 
so

m
e 

m
ea

su
re

 t
o 

th
e 

G
ro

ss
 R

ev
en

ue
 o

r 
to

 t
he

 r
et

ir
em

en
t 

of
 

B
on

ds
 th

en
 O

ut
st

an
di

ng
. 

(e
)

It
 w

il
l 

ke
ep

 a
ll

 f
ac

il
it

ie
s 

of
 t

he
 S

ys
te

m
 i

ns
ur

ed
, i

f 
su

ch
 i

ns
ur

an
ce

 i
s 

ob
ta

in
ab

le
 a

t 
re

as
on

ab
le

 r
at

es
 a

nd
 u

po
n 

re
as

on
ab

le
 c

on
di

ti
on

s,
 a

ga
in

st
 s

uc
h 

ri
sk

s,
 

in
 s

uc
h 

am
ou

nt
s,

 a
nd

 w
it

h 
su

ch
 d

ed
uc

ti
bl

es
 a

s 
th

e 
B

oa
rd

 o
r 

th
e 

D
es

ig
na

te
d 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e 

sh
al

l 
de

em
 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
pr

ot
ec

ti
on

 
of

 
th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
an

d 
of

 t
he

 o
w

ne
rs

 o
f 

B
on

ds
 t

he
n 

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

.  
S

uc
h 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
m

ay
 b

e 
ob

ta
in

ed
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

hi
rd

 p
ar

ti
es

 o
r 

m
ay

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

a 
pr

og
ra

m
 o

f 
se

lf
-i

ns
ur

an
ce

 
or

 th
ro

ug
h 

an
 in

su
ra

nc
e 

po
ol

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 o

th
er

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l e
nt

it
ie

s.
 

(f
)

It
 w

il
l 

at
 a

ll
 t

im
es

 k
ee

p 
or

 a
rr

an
ge

 t
o 

ke
ep

 i
n 

fu
ll

 f
or

ce
 a

nd
 e

ff
ec

t 
po

li
ci

es
 o

f 
pu

bl
ic

 l
ia

bi
li

ti
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
da

m
ag

e 
in

su
ra

nc
e 

w
hi

ch
 w

il
l 

pr
ot

ec
t 

th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

ag
ai

ns
t 

an
yo

ne
 c

la
im

in
g 

da
m

ag
es

 o
f 

an
y 

ki
nd

 o
r 

na
tu

re
, 

if
 s

uc
h 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
is

 o
bt

ai
na

bl
e 

at
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
ra

te
s 

an
d 

up
on

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

co
nd

it
io

ns
, 

in
 

su
ch

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
w

it
h 

su
ch

 d
ed

uc
ti

bl
es

 a
s 

th
e 

B
oa

rd
 s

ha
ll

 d
ee

m
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 f
or

 th
e 

pr
ot

ec
ti

on
 o

f 
th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
an

d 
of

 t
he

 o
w

ne
rs

 o
f 

th
e 

B
on

ds
 t

he
n 

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

.  
S

uc
h 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
m

ay
 b

e 
ob

ta
in

ed
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

hi
rd

 p
ar

ti
es

 o
r 

m
ay

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

a 
pr

og
ra

m
 

of
 

se
lf

-i
ns

ur
an

ce
 

or
 

th
ro

ug
h 

an
 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
po

ol
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ot

he
r 

go
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l e
nt

it
ie

s.
 

(g
)

It
 w

il
l 

ke
ep

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
pr

op
er

 b
oo

ks
 o

f 
ac

co
un

t 
an

d 
ac

cu
ra

te
 

re
co

rd
s 

of
 a

ll
 o

f 
it

s 
re

ve
nu

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 f

ro
m

 a
ny

 s
ou

rc
e 

w
ha

ts
oe

ve
r,

 a
nd

 o
f 

al
l c

os
ts

 
of

 a
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 o
pe

ra
ti

on
 o

f 
al

l 
of

 i
ts

 b
us

in
es

s 
th

at
 a

re
 i

n 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h 
ge

ne
ra

ll
y 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 a

s 
in

 e
ff

ec
t f

ro
m

 ti
m

e 
to

 
ti

m
e.

  
O

n 
or

 b
ef

or
e 

12
0 

da
ys

 a
ft

er
 e

ac
h 

fi
sc

al
 y

ea
r 

it
 w

il
l 

pr
ep

ar
e 

or
 c

au
se

 t
o 

be
 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 a
n 

op
er

at
in

g 
st

at
em

en
t 

of
 a

ll
 o

f 
th

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 o

f 
th

e 
S

ys
te

m
 f

or
 s

uc
h 

pr
ec

ed
in

g 
fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r.
  

E
ac

h 
su

ch
 a

nn
ua

l 
st

at
em

en
t 

sh
al

l 
co

nt
ai

n 
a 

st
at

em
en

t 
in

 
de

ta
il

 o
f 

th
e 

G
ro

ss
 R

ev
en

ue
, 

ex
pe

ns
es

 o
f 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

of
 t

he
 S

ys
te

m
, 

ex
pe

ns
es

 
of

 n
or

m
al

 o
pe

ra
ti

on
, 

ex
pe

ns
es

 o
f 

no
rm

al
 a

nd
 e

xt
ra

or
di

na
ry

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 
re

pa
ir

, 
an

d 
ex

pe
nd

it
ur

es
 f

or
 c

ap
it

al
 p

ur
po

se
s 

of
 t

he
 S

ys
te

m
 f

or
 s

uc
h 

fi
sc

al
 y

ea
r 

an
d 

sh
al

l 
co

nt
ai

n 
a 

st
at

em
en

t 
as

 o
f 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 s

uc
h 

ye
ar

 s
ho

w
in

g 
th

e 
st

at
us

 o
f 

al
l 

fu
nd

s 
an

d 
ac

co
un

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
pe

rt
ai

ni
ng

 t
o 

th
e 

op
er

at
io

n 
of

 i
ts

 b
us

in
es

s 
an

d 
th

e 
st

at
us

 o
f 

al
l 

of
 t

he
 f

un
ds

 a
nd

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
cr

ea
te

d 
by

 v
ar

io
us

 r
es

ol
ut

io
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

B
oa

rd
 a

ut
ho

ri
zi

ng
 t

he
 i

ss
ua

nc
e 

of
 o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 b

on
ds

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 o

bl
ig

at
io

ns
 

pa
ya

bl
e 

fr
om

 t
he

 G
ro

ss
 R

ev
en

ue
. 

 C
op

ie
s 

of
 s

uc
h 

st
at

em
en

ts
 s

ha
ll

 b
e 

pl
ac

ed
 o

n 
fi

le
 

in
 

th
e 

of
fi

ce
 

of
 

th
e 

T
re

as
ur

er
, 

an
d 

sh
al

l 
be

 
op

en
 

to
 

in
sp

ec
ti

on
 

at
 

an
y 

re
as

on
ab

le
 ti

m
e 

by
 th

e 
ow

ne
rs

 o
f 

B
on

ds
. 

S
ec

ti
on

 1
4.

 
A

do
pt

io
n 

of
 

S
up

pl
em

en
ta

l 
R

es
ol

ut
io

ns
 

an
d 

P
ur

po
se

s 
T

he
re

of
. 

 
T

he
 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

m
ay

 a
do

pt
 a

t 
an

y 
ti

m
e 

an
d 

fr
om

 t
im

e 
to

 t
im

e 
an

d 
w

it
ho

ut
 t

he
 c

on
se

nt
 o

r 
co

nc
ur

re
nc

e 
of

 t
he

 o
w

ne
r 

of
 a

ny
 B

on
d,

 a
 r

es
ol

ut
io

n 
or

 r
es

ol
ut

io
ns

 s
up

pl
em

en
ta

l 
to

 t
hi

s 
re

so
lu

ti
on

 f
or

 a
ny

 o
ne

 
or

 m
or

e 
of

 th
e 

fo
ll

ow
in

g 
pu

rp
os

es
: 

E-12
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2-
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(a
)

T
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

is
su

an
ce

 o
f 

a 
se

ri
es

 o
f 

B
on

ds
 p

ur
su

an
t 

to
 

S
ec

ti
on

 8
 h

er
eo

f,
 a

nd
 to

 p
re

sc
ri

be
 th

e 
te

rm
s 

an
d 

co
nd

it
io

ns
 p

ur
su

an
t t

o 
w

hi
ch

 s
uc

h 
B

on
ds

 m
ay

 b
e 

is
su

ed
, p

ai
d 

or
 r

ed
ee

m
ed

; 

(b
)

T
o 

ad
d 

co
ve

na
nt

s 
an

d 
ag

re
em

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

pu
rp

os
e 

of
 f

ur
th

er
 s

ec
ur

in
g 

th
e 

pa
ym

en
t 

of
 t

he
 B

on
ds

, 
if

 s
uc

h 
ad

di
ti

on
al

 c
ov

en
an

ts
 a

nd
 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 a

re
 n

ot
 c

on
tr

ar
y 

to
 o

r 
in

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

it
h 

th
e 

co
ve

na
nt

s 
an

d 
ag

re
em

en
ts

 
of

 th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 th
is

 r
es

ol
ut

io
n;

 

(c
)

T
o 

pr
es

cr
ib

e 
fu

rt
he

r 
li

m
it

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 r

es
tr

ic
ti

on
s 

up
on

 t
he

 i
ss

ua
nc

e 
of

 B
on

ds
 a

nd
 t

he
 i

nc
ur

ri
ng

 o
f 

in
de

bt
ed

ne
ss

 b
y 

th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

pa
ya

bl
e 

fr
om

 t
he

 
G

ro
ss

 R
ev

en
ue

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 n

ot
 c

on
tr

ar
y 

to
 o

r 
in

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

it
h 

th
e 

li
m

it
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 
re

st
ri

ct
io

ns
 th

er
eo

n 
th

er
et

of
or

e 
in

 e
ff

ec
t;

 

(d
)

T
o 

su
rr

en
de

r 
an

y 
ri

gh
t, 

po
w

er
 o

r 
pr

iv
il

eg
e 

re
se

rv
ed

 t
o 

or
 c

on
fe

rr
ed

 
up

on
 th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
by

 th
e 

te
rm

s 
of

 th
is

 r
es

ol
ut

io
n;

 

(e
)

T
o 

co
nf

ir
m

 
as

 
fu

rt
he

r 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

an
y 

pl
ed

ge
 

or
 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
fo

r 
pa

ym
en

t 
of

 t
he

 B
on

ds
 u

nd
er

 a
nd

 t
he

 s
ub

je
ct

io
n 

to
 a

ny
 l

ie
n,

 c
la

im
 o

r 
pl

ed
ge

 
cr

ea
te

d 
or

 t
o 

be
 c

re
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f 

th
is

 r
es

ol
ut

io
n 

of
 t

he
 G

ro
ss

 R
ev

en
ue

 
or

 o
f 

an
y 

ot
he

r 
m

on
ey

, s
ec

ur
it

ie
s 

or
 f

un
ds

; 

(f
)

T
o 

cu
re

 a
ny

 a
m

bi
gu

it
y 

or
 d

ef
ec

t 
or

 i
nc

on
si

st
en

t 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

in
 t

hi
s 

re
so

lu
ti

on
 o

r 
to

 i
ns

er
t 

su
ch

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

cl
ar

if
yi

ng
 m

at
te

rs
 o

r 
qu

es
ti

on
s 

ar
is

in
g 

un
de

r 
th

is
 r

es
ol

ut
io

n 
as

 a
re

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 o

r 
de

si
ra

bl
e,

 b
ut

 o
nl

y 
if

 s
uc

h 
m

od
if

ic
at

io
ns

 
sh

al
l n

ot
 m

at
er

ia
ll

y 
an

d 
ad

ve
rs

el
y 

af
fe

ct
 th

e 
ri

gh
ts

 o
f 

an
y 

ow
ne

rs
; 

(g
)

T
o 

qu
al

if
y 

th
is

 r
es

ol
ut

io
n 

un
de

r 
th

e 
T

ru
st

 I
nd

en
tu

re
 A

ct
 o

f 
19

39
, a

s 
am

en
de

d;
 

(h
)

T
o 

m
od

if
y 

an
y 

of
 t

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
of

 t
hi

s 
re

so
lu

ti
on

 t
o 

ob
ta

in
 f

ro
m

 
an

y 
R

at
in

g 
A

ge
nc

y 
a 

ra
ti

ng
 o

n 
an

y 
se

ri
es

 o
f 

B
on

ds
 o

r 
an

y 
po

rt
io

n 
th

er
eo

f 
w

hi
ch

 is
 

hi
gh

er
 th

an
 th

e 
ra

ti
ng

 w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

as
si

gn
ed

 w
it

ho
ut

 s
uc

h 
m

od
if

ic
at

io
n 

so
 lo

ng
 

as
 t

he
 r

at
in

g 
on

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 s

er
ie

s 
of

 B
on

ds
 o

r 
po

rt
io

n 
th

er
eo

f 
is

 n
ot

 a
dv

er
se

ly
 

af
fe

ct
ed

; o
r 

(i
)

T
o 

m
od

if
y 

an
y 

of
 t

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
of

 t
hi

s 
re

so
lu

ti
on

 i
n 

an
y 

ot
he

r 
re

sp
ec

ts
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g,
 b

ut
 n

ot
 l

im
it

ed
 t

o,
 c

ha
ng

es
 a

t 
th

e 
re

qu
es

t 
of

 R
at

in
g 

A
ge

nc
ie

s 
or

 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

of
 

C
re

di
t 

F
ac

il
it

ie
s,

 
bu

t 
on

ly
 

if
 

su
ch

 
m

od
if

ic
at

io
ns

 
sh

al
l 

no
t 

m
at

er
ia

ll
y 

an
d 

ad
ve

rs
el

y 
af

fe
ct

 th
e 

ri
gh

ts
 o

f 
an

y 
B

on
do

w
ne

rs
. 

N
ot

w
it

hs
ta

nd
in

g 
an

yt
hi

ng
 in

 th
is

 S
ec

ti
on

 1
4 

to
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ry
: 

(1
) 

N
o 

su
ch

 
re

so
lu

ti
on

 
am

en
di

ng
 

or
 

su
pp

le
m

en
ti

ng
 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 

he
re

of
 o

r 
of

 a
ny

 S
er

ie
s 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

sh
al

l (
A

) 
pe

rm
it

 th
e 

cr
ea

ti
on

 o
f 

a 
li

en
 o

r 
ch

ar
ge

 
on

 t
he

 G
ro

ss
 R

ev
en

ue
 s

up
er

io
r 

or
 p

ri
or

 t
o 

th
e 

pa
ym

en
t 

of
 t

he
 B

on
ds

; 
(B

) 
re

du
ce

 
th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 

B
on

ds
, t

he
 o

w
ne

rs
 o

f 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 c
on

se
nt

 t
o 

an
y 

su
ch

 
re

so
lu

ti
on

 a
m

en
di

ng
 o

r 
su

pp
le

m
en

ti
ng

 t
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

he
re

of
; 

or
 (

C
) 

gi
ve

 t
o 

an
y 

-2
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B
on

d 
or

 B
on

ds
 a

ny
 p

re
fe

re
nc

e 
ov

er
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 B
on

d 
or

 B
on

ds
 s

ec
ur

ed
 h

er
eb

y,
 

w
it

ho
ut

 th
e 

sp
ec

if
ic

 c
on

se
nt

 o
f 

th
e 

ow
ne

r 
of

 e
ac

h 
B

on
d;

 

(2
) 

N
o 

su
ch

 
re

so
lu

ti
on

 
am

en
di

ng
 

or
 

su
pp

le
m

en
ti

ng
 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 

he
re

of
 o

r 
an

y 
S

er
ie

s 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
sh

al
l 

(A
) 

ch
an

ge
 t

he
 d

at
e 

of
 p

ay
m

en
t 

of
 t

he
 

pr
in

ci
pa

l 
of

 a
ny

 B
on

d,
 (

B
) 

re
du

ce
 t

he
 p

ri
nc

ip
al

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
r 

A
cc

re
te

d 
V

al
ue

 o
f 

an
y 

B
on

d,
 (

C
) 

ch
an

ge
 t

he
 r

at
e 

or
 e

xt
en

d 
th

e 
ti

m
e 

of
 p

ay
m

en
t 

of
 i

nt
er

es
t 

th
er

eo
f,

 (
D

) 
re

du
ce

 a
ny

 p
re

m
iu

m
 p

ay
ab

le
 u

po
n 

th
e 

re
de

m
pt

io
n 

or
 p

re
pa

ym
en

t 
th

er
eo

f,
 o

r 
(E

) 
ad

va
nc

e 
th

e 
da

te
 u

po
n 

w
hi

ch
 a

ny
 B

on
d 

m
ay

 f
ir

st
 b

e 
ca

ll
ed

 f
or

 r
ed

em
pt

io
n 

pr
io

r 
to

 
it

s 
fi

xe
d 

m
at

ur
it

y 
da

te
 (

ex
ce

pt
 a

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

 th
e 

S
er

ie
s 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

au
th

or
iz

in
g 

th
e 

is
su

an
ce

 o
f 

su
ch

 B
on

d)
 w

it
ho

ut
 t

he
 s

pe
ci

fi
c 

co
ns

en
t 

of
 t

he
 o

w
ne

r 
of

 t
ha

t 
B

on
d;

 
an

d

(3
) 

N
o 

su
ch

 a
m

en
dm

en
t 

sh
al

l 
ch

an
ge

 o
r 

m
od

if
y 

an
y 

of
 t

he
 r

ig
ht

s 
or

 
ob

li
ga

ti
on

s 
of

 a
ny

 R
eg

is
tr

ar
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

ag
en

t 
fo

r 
a 

se
ri

es
 o

f 
B

on
ds

 w
it

ho
ut

 i
ts

 
w

ri
tt

en
 a

ss
en

t t
he

re
to

.

T
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

of
 th

is
 r

es
ol

ut
io

n 
al

so
 m

ay
 b

e 
m

od
if

ie
d 

at
 a

ny
 ti

m
e 

or
 f

ro
m

 
ti

m
e 

to
 t

im
e 

by
 a

 r
es

ol
ut

io
n 

su
pp

le
m

en
ta

l 
he

re
to

, 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 t
he

 c
on

se
nt

 o
f 

B
on

do
w

ne
rs

 i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

it
h 

an
d 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 t

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
of

 S
ec

ti
on

s 
15

 
th

ro
ug

h 
23

 h
er

eo
f.

 

S
ec

ti
on

 1
5.

 
C

al
l 

of
 B

on
do

w
ne

rs
’ 

M
ee

ti
ng

s.
  

T
he

 U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

or
 t

he
 o

w
ne

rs
 o

f 
no

t 
le

ss
 

th
an

 2
5%

 i
n 

pr
in

ci
pa

l 
am

ou
nt

 o
r 

A
cc

re
te

d 
V

al
ue

 o
f 

th
e 

B
on

ds
 o

f 
an

y 
se

ri
es

 t
he

n 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
or

 
th

e 
ow

ne
rs

 o
f 

no
t 

le
ss

 t
ha

n 
25

%
 i

n 
pr

in
ci

pa
l 

am
ou

nt
 o

r 
A

cc
re

te
d 

V
al

ue
 o

f 
al

l 
B

on
ds

 t
he

n 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 m

ay
 a

t 
an

y 
ti

m
e 

ca
ll

 a
 m

ee
ti

ng
 o

f 
th

e 
ow

ne
rs

 o
f 

th
e 

B
on

ds
 o

f 
su

ch
 s

er
ie

s 
or

 o
f 

al
l 

B
on

ds
, a

s 
th

e 
ca

se
 m

ay
 b

e.
  

E
ve

ry
 s

uc
h 

m
ee

ti
ng

 s
ha

ll
 b

e 
he

ld
 a

t 
su

ch
 p

la
ce

 a
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

sp
ec

if
ie

d 
in

 th
e 

no
ti

ce
 c

al
li

ng
 s

uc
h 

m
ee

ti
ng

.  
W

ri
tt

en
 n

ot
ic

e 
of

 s
uc

h 
m

ee
ti

ng
, s

ta
ti

ng
 th

e 
pl

ac
e 

an
d 

th
e 

ti
m

e 
of

 th
e 

m
ee

ti
ng

 a
nd

 in
 g

en
er

al
 te

rm
s 

th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 to
 b

e 
su

bm
it

te
d,

 s
ha

ll
 b

e 
m

ai
le

d 
to

 th
e 

ow
ne

rs
 o

f 
ea

ch
 s

er
ie

s 
of

 B
on

ds
 f

or
 w

hi
ch

 t
he

 m
ee

ti
ng

 i
s 

to
 b

e 
he

ld
 b

y 
th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
or

 t
he

 B
on

do
w

ne
rs

 
ca

ll
in

g 
su

ch
 m

ee
ti

ng
 n

ot
 le

ss
 th

an
 3

0 
no

r 
m

or
e 

th
an

 6
0 

da
ys

 b
ef

or
e 

su
ch

 m
ee

ti
ng

, e
xc

ep
t t

ha
t t

he
 

m
ai

li
ng

 o
f 

su
ch

 n
ot

ic
e 

sh
al

l 
in

 n
o 

ca
se

 b
e 

a 
co

nd
it

io
n 

pr
ec

ed
en

t 
to

 t
he

 v
al

id
it

y 
of

 a
ny

 a
ct

io
n 

ta
ke

n 
at

 a
ny

 s
uc

h 
m

ee
ti

ng
.  

A
ny

 m
ee

ti
ng

 o
f 

B
on

do
w

ne
rs

 s
ha

ll
, h

ow
ev

er
, b

e 
va

li
d 

w
it

ho
ut

 n
ot

ic
e 

if
 t

he
 o

w
ne

rs
 o

f 
al

l 
B

on
ds

 o
f 

th
e 

af
fe

ct
ed

 s
er

ie
s 

th
en

 O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 a
re

 p
re

se
nt

 i
n 

pe
rs

on
 o

r 
by

 
pr

ox
y 

or
 if

 n
ot

ic
e 

is
 w

ai
ve

d 
be

fo
re

 o
r 

w
it

hi
n 

30
 d

ay
s 

af
te

r 
th

e 
m

ee
ti

ng
 b

y 
th

os
e 

no
t s

o 
pr

es
en

t. 

S
ec

ti
on

 1
6.

 
N

ot
ic

e 
to

 B
on

do
w

ne
rs

. 
 E

xc
ep

t 
as

 o
th

er
w

is
e 

sp
ec

if
ic

al
ly

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 t
hi

s 
re

so
lu

ti
on

, a
ny

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 in

 th
is

 r
es

ol
ut

io
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

m
ai

li
ng

 o
f 

a 
no

ti
ce

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
pa

pe
r 

to
 o

w
ne

rs
 o

f 
B

on
ds

 o
f 

an
y 

se
ri

es
 s

ha
ll

 b
e 

fu
ll

y 
co

m
pl

ie
d 

w
it

h 
if

 i
t 

is
 m

ai
le

d 
by

 f
ir

st
-c

la
ss

 m
ai

l, 
po

st
ag

e 
pr

ep
ai

d,
 t

o 
ea

ch
 o

w
ne

r 
of

 a
ny

 o
f 

th
e 

B
on

ds
 o

f 
th

at
 s

er
ie

s 
th

en
 o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 a

t 
hi

s 
ad

dr
es

s,
 i

f 
an

y,
 

ap
pe

ar
in

g 
up

on
 t

he
 r

eg
is

tr
at

io
n 

bo
ok

s 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
by

 o
r 

on
 b

eh
al

f 
of

 t
he

 U
ni

ve
rs

it
y,

 a
nd

 t
o 

ea
ch

 
ow

ne
r 

of
 a

ny
 o

f 
th

e 
B

on
ds

 o
f 

th
at

 s
er

ie
s 

pa
ya

bl
e 

to
 s

uc
h 

ow
ne

r 
w

ho
 s

ha
ll

 h
av

e 
fi

le
d 

w
it

h 
th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
an

 a
dd

re
ss

 f
or

 n
ot

ic
es

. 

S
ec

ti
on

 1
7.

 
P

ro
xi

es
 a

nd
 P

ro
of

 o
f 

O
w

ne
rs

hi
p 

of
 B

on
ds

; 
E

xe
cu

ti
on

 o
f 

In
st

ru
m

en
ts

 b
y 

B
on

do
w

ne
rs

. 
 A

tt
en

da
nc

e 
an

d 
vo

ti
ng

 b
y 

B
on

do
w

ne
rs

 a
t 

su
ch

 m
ee

ti
ng

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
in

 p
er

so
n 

or
 b

y 

E-13
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pr
ox

y.
  

O
w

ne
rs

 o
f 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 B

on
ds

, m
ay

, b
y 

an
 i

ns
tr

um
en

t 
in

 w
ri

ti
ng

 u
nd

er
 t

he
ir

 h
an

ds
, a

pp
oi

nt
 

an
y 

pe
rs

on
 o

r 
pe

rs
on

s,
 w

it
h 

fu
ll

 p
ow

er
 o

f 
st

at
io

n,
 a

s 
th

ei
r 

pr
ox

y 
to

 v
ot

e 
at

 a
ny

 m
ee

ti
ng

 f
or

 th
em

. 

A
ny

 r
eg

is
te

re
d 

ow
ne

r 
of

 B
on

ds
 s

ha
ll

 b
e 

en
ti

tl
ed

 i
n 

pe
rs

on
 o

r 
by

 p
ro

xy
 t

o 
at

te
nd

 a
nd

 v
ot

e 
at

 B
on

do
w

ne
rs

 m
ee

ti
ng

s 
as

 h
ol

de
r 

of
 t

he
 B

on
ds

 r
eg

is
te

re
d 

or
 c

er
ti

fi
ed

 i
n 

hi
s 

na
m

e 
w

it
ho

ut
 

pr
od

uc
in

g 
su

ch
 B

on
ds

 (
un

le
ss

 t
he

 B
on

ds
 d

es
cr

ib
ed

 i
n 

su
ch

 c
er

ti
fi

ca
te

 s
ha

ll
 b

e 
re

gi
st

er
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

na
m

e 
of

, 
or

 b
e 

pr
od

uc
ed

 b
y,

 s
om

e 
ot

he
r 

pe
rs

on
 a

t 
su

ch
 m

ee
ti

ng
),

 a
nd

 s
uc

h 
pe

rs
on

s 
an

d 
th

ei
r 

pr
ox

ie
s 

sh
al

l, 
if

 r
eq

ui
re

d,
 p

ro
du

ce
 s

uc
h 

pr
oo

f 
of

 p
er

so
na

l 
id

en
ti

ty
 a

s 
sh

al
l 

be
 s

at
is

fa
ct

or
y 

to
 t

he
 

S
ec

re
ta

ry
 o

f 
th

e 
m

ee
ti

ng
 (

ap
po

in
te

d 
as

 h
er

ei
na

ft
er

 p
ro

vi
de

d)
.  

A
ll

 o
th

er
 p

er
so

ns
 s

ee
ki

ng
 to

 a
tt

en
d 

or
 v

ot
e 

in
 s

uc
h 

m
ee

ti
ng

 m
us

t 
pr

od
uc

e 
th

e 
B

on
ds

 c
la

im
ed

 t
o 

be
 o

w
ne

d 
or

 r
ep

re
se

nt
ed

 a
t 

su
ch

 
m

ee
ti

ng
. T
he

 v
ot

e 
at

 a
ny

 s
uc

h 
m

ee
ti

ng
 o

f 
th

e 
ow

ne
r 

of
 a

ny
 B

on
d 

en
ti

tl
ed

 t
o 

vo
te

 s
ha

ll
 b

e 
bi

nd
in

g 
up

on
 s

uc
h 

ow
ne

r 
an

d 
up

on
 e

ve
ry

 s
ub

se
qu

en
t 

ow
ne

r 
of

 s
uc

h 
B

on
d 

(w
he

th
er

 o
r 

no
t 

su
ch

 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

 o
w

ne
r 

ha
s 

no
ti

ce
 th

er
eo

f)
. 

T
he

 r
ig

ht
 o

f 
a 

pr
ox

y 
fo

r 
a 

B
on

do
w

ne
r 

to
 a

ct
 m

ay
 b

e 
pr

ov
ed

 (
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 t
he

 U
ni

ve
rs

it
y’

s 
ri

gh
t t

o 
re

qu
ir

e 
ad

di
ti

on
al

 p
ro

of
) 

by
 a

 w
ri

tt
en

 p
ro

xy
 e

xe
cu

te
d 

by
 s

uc
h 

B
on

do
w

ne
r 

as
 a

fo
re

sa
id

. 

S
ec

ti
on

 1
8.

 
Q

uo
ru

m
 a

t B
on

do
w

ne
rs

 M
ee

ti
ng

s.
  T

he
 o

w
ne

rs
 o

f 
no

t 
le

ss
 t

ha
n 

a 
m

aj
or

it
y 

in
 p

ri
nc

ip
al

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
r 

A
cc

re
te

d 
V

al
ue

 o
f 

th
e 

B
on

ds
 o

f 
a 

se
ri

es
 a

t 
a 

m
ee

ti
ng

 o
f 

th
e 

ow
ne

rs
 o

f 
th

e 
B

on
ds

 o
f 

th
at

 s
er

ie
s 

or
 t

he
 o

w
ne

rs
 o

f 
no

t 
le

ss
 t

ha
n 

a 
m

aj
or

it
y 

in
 p

ri
nc

ip
al

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
r 

A
cc

re
te

d 
V

al
ue

 o
f 

th
e 

B
on

ds
 o

f 
al

l 
se

ri
es

 a
t 

a 
m

ee
ti

ng
 o

f 
al

l 
B

on
do

w
ne

rs
 m

us
t 

be
 p

re
se

nt
 a

t 
su

ch
 m

ee
ti

ng
 

in
 p

er
so

n 
or

 b
y 

pr
ox

y 
in

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
co

ns
ti

tu
te

 a
 q

uo
ru

m
 f

or
 t

he
 t

ra
ns

ac
ti

on
 o

f 
bu

si
ne

ss
, l

es
s 

th
an

 a
 

qu
or

um
, 

ho
w

ev
er

, 
ha

vi
ng

 p
ow

er
 t

o 
ad

jo
ur

n 
fr

om
 t

im
e 

to
 t

im
e 

w
it

ho
ut

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 n

ot
ic

e 
th

an
 t

he
 

an
no

un
ce

m
en

t t
he

re
of

 a
t t

he
 m

ee
ti

ng
. 

S
ec

ti
on

 1
9.

 
V

ot
e 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 A
m

en
d 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n.

  
A

ny
 a

m
en

dm
en

t 
of

 t
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

of
 t

hi
s 

re
so

lu
ti

on
 o

r 
an

y 
S

er
ie

s 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
in

 a
ny

 p
ar

ti
cu

la
r,

 e
xc

ep
t 

by
 t

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
B

on
do

w
ne

rs
 w

ho
se

 a
pp

ro
va

l 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 a
pp

ro
ve

 s
uc

h 
am

en
dm

en
t, 

m
ay

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
by

 a
 

su
pp

le
m

en
ta

l r
es

ol
ut

io
n 

of
 th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
an

d 
a 

re
so

lu
ti

on
 d

ul
y 

ad
op

te
d 

ei
th

er
: 

(a
)

A
t 

a 
du

ly
 c

on
ve

ne
d 

an
d 

he
ld

 m
ee

ti
ng

 o
f 

th
e 

ow
ne

rs
 o

f 
B

on
ds

 
w

ho
se

 c
on

tr
ac

t 
w

it
h 

th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

w
il

l 
be

 a
lt

er
ed

 b
y 

su
ch

 a
m

en
dm

en
t 

by
 a

n 
af

fi
rm

at
iv

e 
vo

te
 o

f 
th

e 
ow

ne
rs

 o
f 

no
t 

le
ss

 t
ha

n 
a 

m
aj

or
it

y 
in

 p
ri

nc
ip

al
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

r 
A

cc
re

te
d 

V
al

ue
 o

f 
su

ch
 B

on
ds

 w
ho

se
 o

w
ne

rs
 a

re
 p

re
se

nt
 a

t s
uc

h 
m

ee
ti

ng
; o

r 

(b
)

W
it

h 
w

ri
tt

en
 c

on
se

nt
 a

s 
he

re
in

af
te

r 
pr

ov
id

ed
 i

n 
S

ec
ti

on
 2

0 
he

re
of

, 
of

 th
e 

ow
ne

rs
 o

f 
no

t l
es

s 
th

an
 a

 m
aj

or
it

y 
in

 p
ri

nc
ip

al
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

r 
A

cc
re

te
d 

V
al

ue
 o

f 
th

e 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 B

on
ds

 w
ho

se
 c

on
tr

ac
t w

it
h 

th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

w
il

l b
e 

al
te

re
d 

by
 s

uc
h 

am
en

dm
en

t;
 p

ro
vi

de
d,

 h
ow

ev
er

, t
ha

t:
 

(1
) 

N
o 

su
ch

 
re

so
lu

ti
on

 
am

en
di

ng
 

or
 

su
pp

le
m

en
ti

ng
 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 h

er
eo

f 
or

 o
f 

an
y 

S
er

ie
s 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

sh
al

l 
(A

) 
pe

rm
it

 t
he

 c
re

at
io

n 
of

 a
 l

ie
n 

or
 c

ha
rg

e 
on

 t
he

 G
ro

ss
 R

ev
en

ue
 s

up
er

io
r 

or
 p

ri
or

 t
o 

th
e 

pa
ym

en
t 

of
 t

he
 B

on
ds

; 
(B

) 
re

du
ce

 t
he

 a
fo

re
sa

id
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 B
on

ds
, t

he
 o

w
ne

rs
 o

f 
w

hi
ch

 
ar

e 
re

qu
ir

ed
 

to
 

co
ns

en
t 

to
 

an
y 

su
ch

 
re

so
lu

ti
on

 
am

en
di

ng
 

or
 

su
pp

le
m

en
ti

ng
 t

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
he

re
of

; 
or

 (
C

) 
gi

ve
 t

o 
an

y 
B

on
d 

or
 B

on
ds
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an
y 

pr
ef

er
en

ce
 o

ve
r 

an
y 

ot
he

r 
B

on
d 

or
 B

on
ds

 s
ec

ur
ed

 h
er

eb
y,

 w
it

ho
ut

 t
he

 
sp

ec
if

ic
 c

on
se

nt
 o

f 
th

e 
ow

ne
r 

of
 e

ac
h 

B
on

d;
 

(2
) 

N
o 

su
ch

 
re

so
lu

ti
on

 
am

en
di

ng
 

or
 

su
pp

le
m

en
ti

ng
 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 h

er
eo

f 
or

 a
ny

 S
er

ie
s 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

sh
al

l 
(A

) 
ch

an
ge

 t
he

 d
at

e 
of

 
pa

ym
en

t 
of

 t
he

 p
ri

nc
ip

al
 o

f 
an

y 
B

on
d,

 (
B

) 
re

du
ce

 t
he

 p
ri

nc
ip

al
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f 
an

y 
B

on
d,

 (
C

) 
ch

an
ge

 t
he

 r
at

e 
or

 e
xt

en
d 

th
e 

ti
m

e 
of

 p
ay

m
en

t 
of

 i
nt

er
es

t 
th

er
eo

n,
 

(D
) 

re
du

ce
 

an
y 

pr
em

iu
m

 
pa

ya
bl

e 
up

on
 

th
e 

re
de

m
pt

io
n 

or
 

pr
ep

ay
m

en
t 

th
er

eo
f,

 o
r 

(E
) 

ad
va

nc
e 

th
e 

da
te

 u
po

n 
w

hi
ch

 a
ny

 B
on

d 
m

ay
 

fi
rs

t 
be

 c
al

le
d 

fo
r 

re
de

m
pt

io
n 

pr
io

r 
to

 i
ts

 f
ix

ed
 m

at
ur

it
y 

da
te

 (
ex

ce
pt

 a
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

S
er

ie
s 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

au
th

or
iz

in
g 

th
e 

is
su

an
ce

 o
f 

su
ch

 B
on

d)
 

w
it

ho
ut

 th
e 

sp
ec

if
ic

 c
on

se
nt

 o
f 

th
e 

ow
ne

r 
of

 th
at

 B
on

d;
 a

nd
 

(3
) 

N
o 

su
ch

 a
m

en
dm

en
t 

sh
al

l 
ch

an
ge

 o
r 

m
od

if
y 

an
y 

of
 t

he
 

ri
gh

ts
 o

r 
ob

li
ga

ti
on

s 
of

 a
ny

 R
eg

is
tr

ar
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

ag
en

t 
fo

r 
a 

se
ri

es
 o

f 
B

on
ds

 
w

it
ho

ut
 it

s 
w

ri
tt

en
 a

ss
en

t t
he

re
to

. 

N
ot

hi
ng

 h
er

ei
n 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
sh

al
l 

be
 c

on
st

ru
ed

 a
s 

m
ak

in
g 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
th

e 
ap

pr
ov

al
 b

y 
th

e 
ow

ne
rs

 o
f 

th
e 

B
on

ds
 o

f 
an

y 
se

ri
es

 o
f 

th
e 

ad
op

ti
on

 o
f 

an
y 

su
pp

le
m

en
ta

l 
re

so
lu

ti
on

 a
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

by
 S

ec
ti

on
 1

4 
of

 th
is

 r
es

ol
ut

io
n 

or
 a

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
by

 a
ny

 S
er

ie
s 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n.

 

S
ec

ti
on

 2
0.

 
O

bt
ai

ni
ng

 
A

pp
ro

va
l 

of
 

A
m

en
dm

en
ts

 
at

 
B

on
do

w
ne

rs
 

M
ee

ti
ng

s.
 

 
T

he
 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

m
ay

 a
t 

an
y 

ti
m

e 
ad

op
t 

a 
re

so
lu

ti
on

 a
m

en
di

ng
 t

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
of

 t
hi

s 
re

so
lu

ti
on

 o
r 

an
y 

S
er

ie
s 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

to
 th

e 
ex

te
nt

 th
at

 s
uc

h 
am

en
dm

en
t i

s 
pe

rm
it

te
d 

by
 th

is
 r

es
ol

ut
io

n,
 to

 ta
ke

 e
ff

ec
t 

w
he

n 
an

d 
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 t
hi

s 
S

ec
ti

on
 2

0.
  

A
t 

an
y 

ti
m

e 
th

er
ea

ft
er

 s
uc

h 
re

so
lu

ti
on

 m
ay

 b
e 

su
bm

it
te

d 
by

 t
he

 U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

fo
r 

ap
pr

ov
al

 t
o 

a 
m

ee
ti

ng
 o

f 
th

e 
ow

ne
rs

 o
f 

ea
ch

 s
er

ie
s 

of
 B

on
ds

 
w

ho
se

 c
on

tr
ac

t w
it

h 
th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 w
il

l b
e 

al
te

re
d 

by
 s

uc
h 

re
so

lu
ti

on
, d

ul
y 

co
nv

en
ed

 a
nd

 h
el

d 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f 

th
is

 r
es

ol
ut

io
n.

  
A

ny
 r

ec
or

d 
so

 s
ig

ne
d 

an
d 

ve
ri

fi
ed

 s
ha

ll
 b

e 
pr

oo
f 

of
 t

he
 m

at
te

rs
 t

he
re

in
 s

ta
te

d.
  

If
 t

he
 r

es
ol

ut
io

n 
of

 t
he

 U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

m
ak

in
g 

su
ch

 a
m

en
dm

en
t 

sh
al

l 
be

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 a
 r

es
ol

ut
io

n 
du

ly
 a

do
pt

ed
 a

t 
su

ch
 m

ee
ti

ng
 o

f 
B

on
do

w
ne

rs
 p

ur
su

an
t 

to
 t

he
 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f 
S

ec
ti

on
 1

9 
he

re
of

, a
 n

ot
ic

e 
st

at
in

g 
th

at
 a

 r
es

ol
ut

io
n 

ap
pr

ov
in

g 
su

ch
 a

m
en

dm
en

t h
as

 
be

en
 s

o 
ad

op
te

d 
an

d 
br

ie
fl

y 
su

m
m

ar
iz

in
g 

su
ch

 a
m

en
dm

en
t 

sh
al

l 
be

 m
ai

le
d 

by
 t

he
 U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
to

 
th

e 
ow

ne
rs

 o
f 

B
on

ds
 a

ff
ec

te
d 

th
er

eb
y 

(b
ut

 f
ai

lu
re

 s
o 

to
 m

ai
l 

co
pi

es
 o

f 
su

ch
 r

es
ol

ut
io

n 
sh

al
l 

no
t 

af
fe

ct
 t

he
 v

al
id

it
y 

of
 s

uc
h 

re
so

lu
ti

on
.)

  
P

ro
of

 o
f 

su
ch

 m
ai

li
ng

 b
y 

th
e 

af
fi

da
vi

t 
or

 a
ff

id
av

it
s 

of
 a

 
pe

rs
on

 o
r 

pe
rs

on
s 

ha
vi

ng
 k

no
w

le
dg

e 
of

 t
he

 f
ac

ts
 s

ha
ll

 b
e 

fi
le

d 
w

it
h 

th
e 

B
on

do
w

ne
rs

’ 
T

ru
st

ee
, i

f 
th

er
et

of
or

e 
ap

po
in

te
d 

fo
r 

th
at

 s
er

ie
s,

 a
nd

 w
it

h 
th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
it

y.
  

S
uc

h 
am

en
da

to
ry

 r
es

ol
ut

io
n 

sh
al

l 
be

 d
ee
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 m
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 d
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 d
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 b
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 p
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d 

R
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A
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B
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w
ne
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U
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 d
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e 

co
nt

in
uo

us
 o

pe
ra

ti
on

 o
f 

th
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 d
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 o
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at
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 p
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 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
of

 t
he

 o
w

ne
rs

 f
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 c
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 p
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 b
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 m
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 o
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 o
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 c
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 p
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 D
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 o
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 d
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 p
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 f
ee

s 
an

d 
ex

pe
ns

es
 o

f 
a 

B
on

do
w

ne
rs

’ 
T

ru
st

ee
 s

ha
ll

 b
e 

bo
rn

e 
by

 t
he

 B
on

do
w

ne
rs

 
an

d 
no

t 
by

 t
he

 U
ni

ve
rs

it
y.

  
T

he
 b

an
k 

or
 t

ru
st

 c
om

pa
ny

 a
ct

in
g 

as
 a

 B
on

do
w

ne
rs

’ 
T

ru
st

ee
 m

ay
 b
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 b
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 p
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 o
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 c
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 b
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t d
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 p
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 d
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 b
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 o
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in

 
co

nf
er

re
d 

on
 th
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nd

 i
ns

ti
tu

te
 s

uc
h 

su
it

s,
 a

ct
io

ns
 o
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 r
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e 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
fu

nd
s t
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l b
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l b
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 d
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r d
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l m
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 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

da
te

 o
f 

sa
le

 a
nd

 f
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 d
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 b
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l b
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l b
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 f
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 b
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r r
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 d
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 b
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 f
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 o
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at
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 d
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t c
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l p
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R
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 o
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r c
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l c
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 re
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R
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is

 a
ut

ho
riz

ed
, o

n 
be

ha
lf 

of
 th
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ra
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 o
f t

he
 S

er
ie

s 
20

13
 B

on
ds

 a
nd

 th
is

 S
er

ie
s 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n,

 to
 s

er
ve

 a
s 

th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
’s

 p
ay

in
g 

ag
en

t f
or

 th
e 

Se
rie

s 
20

13
 B

on
ds

 a
nd

 to
 c

ar
ry

 o
ut

 a
ll 

of
 th

e 
R

eg
is

tra
r’

s 

po
w

er
s 

an
d 

du
tie

s 
un

de
r t

hi
s 

Se
rie

s 
R
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l b
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 b
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 D
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 b
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 p
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 D
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 f
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 b
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 p
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 p
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 b
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 b
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he

 R
eg

is
tra

r 
to

 t
he

 S
ec

ur
iti

es
 

D
ep

os
ito

ry
.

Se
ct

io
n 

6.
Fo

rm
 a

nd
 E

xe
cu

tio
n 

of
 S

er
ie

s 2
01

3
B

on
ds

(a
)

.

Fo
rm

 o
f S

er
ie

s 
20

13
 B

on
ds

; S
ig

na
tu

re
s 

an
d 

Se
al

. T
he

 S
er

ie
s 

20
13

 B
on

ds
 

sh
al

l b
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 in
 a

 f
or

m
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f 
th

e 
M

as
te

r 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n,
 th

is
 S

er
ie

s 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n,

 th
e 

B
on

d 
Sa

le
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
an

d 
St

at
e 

la
w

.  
Th

e 
Se

rie
s 

20
13

B
on

ds
sh

al
l b

e 
si

gn
ed

 in
 

th
e 

co
rp

or
at

e 
na

m
e 

of
 th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ha

ir 
of

 it
s B

oa
rd

 a
nd

 a
tte

st
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Se
cr

et
ar

y 
of

 it
s 

B
oa

rd
, e

ith
er

 o
r 

bo
th

 o
f 

w
ho

se
 s

ig
na

tu
re

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
m

an
ua

l 
or

 i
n 

fa
cs

im
ile

, a
nd

 t
he

 s
ea

l 
of

 t
he

 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 o

r 
a 

fa
cs

im
ile

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
th

er
eo

f 
sh

al
l 

be
 i

m
pr

es
se

d 
or

 p
rin

te
d 

th
er

eo
n.

  
If 

an
y 

of
fic

er
 w

ho
se

 m
an

ua
l 

or
 f

ac
si

m
ile

 s
ig

na
tu

re
 a

pp
ea

rs
 o

n 
a

Se
rie

s 
20

13
 B

on
d 

ce
as

es
 t

o 
be

 a
n 
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of
fic

er
 o

f t
he

 U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 a

ut
ho

riz
ed

 to
 s

ig
n 

bo
nd

s 
be

fo
re

 th
e 

Se
rie

s 
20

13
 B

on
d 

be
ar

in
g 

hi
s 

or
 h

er
 

m
an

ua
l 

or
 f

ac
si

m
ile

 s
ig

na
tu

re
 i

s
au

th
en

tic
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
R

eg
is

tra
r 

or
 i

ss
ue

d 
or

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 b

y 
th

e 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
, t

ha
tS

er
ie

s 
20

13
 B

on
d 

ne
ve

rth
el

es
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

au
th

en
tic

at
ed

, i
ss

ue
d 

an
d 

de
liv

er
ed

 a
nd

, 

w
he

n 
au

th
en

tic
at

ed
, i

ss
ue

d 
an

d 
de

liv
er

ed
, s

ha
ll 

be
 a

s 
bi

nd
in

g 
on

 th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 a

s 
th

ou
gh

 th
at

 

pe
rs

on
 h

ad
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

to
 b

e 
an

 o
ff

ic
er

 o
f 

th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 a

ut
ho

riz
ed

 to
 s

ig
n 

bo
nd

s. 
 A

ny
 S

er
ie

s 

20
13

 B
on

d 
al

so
 m

ay
 b

e 
si

gn
ed

 o
n 

be
ha

lf 
of

 th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 b

y 
an

y 
pe

rs
on

 w
ho

, o
n 

th
e 

ac
tu

al
 d

at
e 

of
 s

ig
ni

ng
 o

f 
th

e 
Se

rie
s 

20
13

 B
on

d,
 i

s 
an

 o
ff

ic
er

 o
f 

th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 a

ut
ho

riz
ed

 t
o 

si
gn

 b
on

ds
, 

al
th

ou
gh

 h
e 

or
 s

he
 d

id
 n

ot
 h

ol
d 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

of
fic

e 
on

 th
e 

da
te

 o
f 

is
su

an
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

Se
rie

s 
20

13
 

B
on

d.

(b
)

A
ut

he
nt

ic
at

io
n

Se
ct

io
n 

7.

.
O

nl
y 

Se
rie

s 
20

13
 

B
on

ds
 

be
ar

in
g 

a 
C

er
tif

ic
at

e 
of

 

A
ut

he
nt

ic
at

io
n 

in
 t

he
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
fo

rm
, 

m
an

ua
lly

si
gn

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
R

eg
is

tra
r, 

sh
al

l 
be

 v
al

id
 o

r 

ob
lig

at
or

y 
fo

r 
an

y 
pu

rp
os

e 
or

 e
nt

itl
ed

 to
 th

e 
be

ne
fit

s 
of

 th
is

 S
er

ie
s 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n:

  
“C

er
tif

ic
at

e 
of

 

A
ut

he
nt

ic
at

io
n.

Th
is

 S
er

ie
s 

20
13

 B
on

d 
is

 o
ne

 o
f 

th
e 

fu
lly

 r
eg

is
te

re
d 

C
en

tra
l 

W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 S

ys
te

m
 R

ev
en

ue
 R

ef
un

di
ng

 B
on

ds
, S

er
ie

s 
20

13
, d

es
cr

ib
ed

 in
 th

e 
Se

rie
s 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n.

” 
 

Th
e 

au
th

or
iz

ed
 s

ig
ni

ng
 o

f 
a 

C
er

tif
ic

at
e 

of
 A

ut
he

nt
ic

at
io

n 
sh

al
l b

e 
co

nc
lu

si
ve

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
th

at
 th

e 

Se
rie

s 
20

13
 B

on
d 

so
 a

ut
he

nt
ic

at
ed

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
du

ly
 e

xe
cu

te
d,

 a
ut

he
nt

ic
at

ed
 a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 a
nd

 is
 

en
tit

le
d 

to
 th

e 
be

ne
fit

s o
f t

hi
s S

er
ie

s R
es

ol
ut

io
n.

Pa
ym

en
t 

of
 S

er
ie

s 
20

13
B

on
ds

. 
 P

rin
ci

pa
l 

of
 a

nd
 i

nt
er

es
t 

on
 t

he
 S

er
ie

s 

20
13

 B
on

ds
 s

ha
ll 

be
 p

ay
ab

le
 in

 la
w

fu
l m

on
ey

 o
f t

he
 U

ni
te

d 
St

at
es

 o
f A

m
er

ic
a.

 F
or

 a
s 

lo
ng

 a
s 

a 

Se
rie

s 
20

13
 B

on
d 

is
 h

el
d 

in
 b

oo
k-

en
try

 f
or

m
 b

y 
th

e 
Se

cu
rit

ie
s 

D
ep

os
ito

ry
 o

r 
its

 n
om

in
ee

, 

pa
ym

en
t o

f 
pr

in
ci

pa
l o

f 
an

d 
in

te
re

st
 o

n 
th

at
 S

er
ie

s 
20

13
 B

on
d 

sh
al

l b
e 

m
ad

e 
in

 th
e 

m
an

ne
r 

se
t 

fo
rth

 in
 th

e 
Le

tte
r 

of
 R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
. 

If 
a 

Se
rie

s 
20

13
 B

on
d 

ce
as

es
 to

 b
e 

in
 b

oo
k 

en
try

 f
or

m
, 

in
te

re
st

 o
n

th
at

 S
er

ie
s 

20
13

 B
on

d 
sh

al
l 

be
 p

ai
d 

by
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
tra

ns
fe

r 
on

 t
he

 i
nt

er
es

t 
pa

ym
en

t 

12

da
te

, o
r b

y 
ch

ec
k 

or
 d

ra
ft 

of
 th

e 
R

eg
is

tra
r m

ai
le

d 
on

 th
e 

in
te

re
st

 p
ay

m
en

t d
at

e 
to

 th
e 

R
eg

is
te

re
d 

O
w

ne
r 

at
 t

he
 a

dd
re

ss
 a

pp
ea

rin
g 

on
 t

he
 B

on
d 

R
eg

is
te

r 
as

 o
f 

th
e 

R
ec

or
d 

D
at

e.
H

ow
ev

er
, 

th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
is

 n
ot

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 m
ak

e 
el

ec
tro

ni
c 

tra
ns

fe
rs

 e
xc

ep
t 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 t
o 

a 
re

qu
es

t 
by

 a
 

R
eg

is
te

re
d 

O
w

ne
r i

n 
w

rit
in

g 
re

ce
iv

ed
 a

t l
ea

st
 1

0 
da

ys
 b

ef
or

e 
an

 in
te

re
st

 p
ay

m
en

t d
at

e 
an

d 
at

 th
e 

so
le

 e
xp

en
se

 o
f 

th
e 

re
qu

es
tin

g 
R

eg
is

te
re

d 
O

w
ne

r. 
Pr

in
ci

pa
l 

of
 a

 S
er

ie
s 

20
13

 B
on

d 
sh

al
l 

be
 

pa
ya

bl
e 

up
on

 p
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
an

d 
su

rr
en

de
r o

f t
he

 S
er

ie
s 2

01
3 

B
on

d 
by

 th
e 

R
eg

is
te

re
d 

O
w

ne
r t

o 
th

e 

R
eg

is
tra

r. 
Th

e 
Se

rie
s 2

01
3 

B
on

ds
 a

re
 n

ot
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

ac
ce

le
ra

tio
n 

un
de

r a
ny

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s.

Se
ct

io
n 

8.
R

ed
em

pt
io

n 
Pr

ov
is

io
ns

an
d

O
pe

n 
M

ar
ke

t P
ur

ch
as

e 
of

 S
er

ie
s 2

01
3

B
on

ds
 

(a
)

.

O
pt

io
na

l R
ed

em
pt

io
n

(b
)

.
Th

e 
Se

rie
s 

20
13

 B
on

ds
 s

ha
ll 

be
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 o
pt

io
na

l 

re
de

m
pt

io
n 

as
 s

et
 f

or
th

 in
 th

e 
B

on
d 

Sa
le

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n.

  
A

ny
 S

er
ie

s 
20

13
 B

on
d 

th
at

 is
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 

op
tio

na
l r

ed
em

pt
io

n 
m

ay
 b

e 
se

le
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

, i
n 

its
 s

ol
e 

di
sc

re
tio

n,
 f

or
 r

ed
em

pt
io

n 
in

 

w
ho

le
 o

r 
in

 p
ar

t 
at

 a
ny

 t
im

e 
at

 w
hi

ch
 r

ed
em

pt
io

n 
is

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 a

s 
se

t 
fo

rth
 i

n 
th

e 
B

on
d 

Sa
le

 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n.

M
an

da
to

ry
 R

ed
em

pt
io

n.
Se

rie
s 

20
13

 B
on

ds
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
as

 T
er

m
 B

on
ds

 in
 

th
e 

B
on

d 
Sa

le
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n,
 if

 n
ot

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 re

de
em

ed
 u

nd
er

 a
ny

 o
pt

io
na

l r
ed

em
pt

io
n 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 

or
 p

ur
ch

as
ed

 a
nd

 s
ur

re
nd

er
ed

 f
or

 c
an

ce
lla

tio
n 

un
de

r 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 s
et

 f
or

th
 b

el
ow

, 
sh

al
l 

be
 

ca
lle

d 
fo

r r
ed

em
pt

io
n 

at
 a

 p
ric

e 
eq

ua
l t

o 
th

e 
st

at
ed

 p
rin

ci
pa

l a
m

ou
nt

 to
 b

e 
re

de
em

ed
, p

lu
s a

cc
ru

ed
 

in
te

re
st

, o
n 

th
e 

re
de

m
pt

io
n 

da
te

s 
an

d 
in

 th
e 

re
de

m
pt

io
n 

am
ou

nt
s 

as
 s

et
 f

or
th

 in
 th

e 
B

on
d 

Sa
le

 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n.

If 
th

er
e 

is
 m

or
e 

th
an

 o
ne

 T
er

m
 B

on
d 

m
at

ur
ity

, t
he

 T
er

m
 B

on
ds

 sh
al

l b
e 

re
de

em
ed

 in
 

ch
ro

no
lo

gi
ca

l 
or

de
r 

of
 m

at
ur

ity
.  

If 
Te

rm
 B

on
ds

 a
re

 r
ed

ee
m

ed
 u

nd
er

 t
he

op
tio

na
l 

re
de

m
pt

io
n 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
, p

ur
ch

as
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 a

nd
 c

an
ce

lle
d,

 o
r d

ef
ea

se
d,

 th
e 

pr
in

ci
pa

l a
m

ou
nt

 o
f 

th
e 

Te
rm

 B
on

ds
 s

o 
re

de
em

ed
, 

pu
rc

ha
se

d 
or

 d
ef

ea
se

d 
(ir

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
of

 t
he

ir 
ac

tu
al

 r
ed

em
pt

io
n 

or
 

pu
rc

ha
se

 p
ric

es
) s

ha
ll 

be
 c

re
di

te
d 

ag
ai

ns
t o

ne
 o

r m
or

e 
sc

he
du

le
d 

m
an

da
to

ry
 re

de
m

pt
io

n 
am

ou
nt

s 

E-25
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fo
r 

th
os

e 
Te

rm
 B

on
ds

.  
Th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 s
ha

ll 
de

te
rm

in
e 

th
e 

m
an

ne
r 

in
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

cr
ed

it 
is

 to
 b

e 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
an

d 
sh

al
l n

ot
ify

 th
e 

R
eg

is
tra

r i
n 

w
rit

in
g 

of
 it

s 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

pr
io

r t
o 

th
e 

ea
rli

es
t m

an
da

to
ry

 

re
de

m
pt

io
n 

da
te

 fo
r t

ha
t m

at
ur

ity
 o

f T
er

m
 B

on
ds

 fo
rw

hi
ch

 n
ot

ic
e 

of
 re

de
m

pt
io

n 
ha

s 
no

t a
lre

ad
y 

be
en

 g
iv

en
.  

(c
)

Se
le

ct
io

n 
of

 S
er

ie
s 

20
13

 B
on

ds
 fo

r R
ed

em
pt

io
n;

 P
ar

tia
l R

ed
em

pt
io

ns

(d
)

.
A

ll 

or
 a

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 p

rin
ci

pa
l 

am
ou

nt
 o

f 
an

y 
Se

rie
s 

20
13

 B
on

d 
th

at
 i

s 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 o
pt

io
na

l
or

 

m
an

da
to

ry
 re

de
m

pt
io

n 
m

ay
 b

e 
re

de
em

ed
 in

 a
ny

 A
ut

ho
riz

ed
 D

en
om

in
at

io
n.

 I
f l

es
s 

th
an

 a
ll 

of
 th

e 

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g 

pr
in

ci
pa

l a
m

ou
nt

 o
f a

ny
 S

er
ie

s 
20

13
 B

on
d 

is
 re

de
em

ed
, u

po
n 

su
rr

en
de

r o
f t

ha
t B

on
d 

to
 t

he
 R

eg
is

tra
r, 

th
er

e 
sh

al
l 

be
 i

ss
ue

d 
to

 t
he

 R
eg

is
te

re
d 

O
w

ne
r,

w
ith

ou
t 

ch
ar

ge
, 

a 
ne

w
 S

er
ie

s 

20
13

B
on

d 
(o

r S
er

ie
s 

20
13

 B
on

ds
, a

t t
he

 o
pt

io
n 

of
 th

e 
R

eg
is

te
re

d 
O

w
ne

r)
 o

f t
he

 s
am

e 
m

at
ur

ity
 

an
d 

in
te

re
st

 r
at

e 
in

 a
ny

 A
ut

ho
riz

ed
 D

en
om

in
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
ag

gr
eg

at
e 

pr
in

ci
pa

l a
m

ou
nt

 r
em

ai
ni

ng
 

un
re

de
em

ed
. 

W
hi

le
 a

 S
er

ie
s 

20
13

 B
on

d 
is

he
ld

 in
 b

oo
k-

en
try

 fo
rm

 b
y 

th
e 

Se
cu

rit
ie

s 
D

ep
os

ito
ry

 

or
 i

ts
 n

om
in

ee
, 

se
le

ct
io

n 
of

 t
he

 p
rin

ci
pa

l 
po

rti
on

 o
f 

an
y 

Se
rie

s 
20

13
 B

on
d 

to
 b

e 
pa

rti
al

ly
 

re
de

em
ed

 s
ha

ll 
be

 d
on

e 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

Le
tte

r o
f R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
. 

If
 a

 S
er

ie
s 

20
13

 B
on

d 

ce
as

es
 to

 b
e 

he
ld

 in
 b

oo
k-

en
try

 fo
rm

 b
y 

th
e 

Se
cu

rit
ie

s 
D

ep
os

ito
ry

 o
r i

ts
 n

om
in

ee
, t

he
 p

or
tio

n 
to

 

be
 p

ar
tia

lly
 r

ed
ee

m
ed

 s
ha

ll 
be

 s
el

ec
te

d 
ra

nd
om

ly
 i

n 
su

ch
 m

an
ne

r 
as

 t
he

 R
eg

is
tra

r 
sh

al
l 

de
te

rm
in

e.

N
ot

ic
e 

of
 R

ed
em

pt
io

n.
W

hi
le

 a
Se

rie
s 2

01
3

B
on

d
is

 h
el

d 
by

th
e 

Se
cu

rit
ie

s 

D
ep

os
ito

ry
 o

r i
ts

 n
om

in
ee

, n
ot

ic
e 

of
 re

de
m

pt
io

n 
sh

al
l b

e 
gi

ve
n 

as
 re

qu
ire

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

Le
tte

r 
of

 R
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
ns

, 
an

d 
th

e 
R

eg
is

tra
r 

sh
al

l 
no

t 
be

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 g
iv

e 
an

y 
ot

he
r 

no
tic

e 
of
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ve

rs
ity

 o
ff

ic
ia

ls
 a

re
 a

ut
ho

riz
ed

 a
nd

 d
ire

ct
ed

 to
 d

o 
ev

er
yt

hi
ng

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 fo

r 

th
e 

pr
om

pt
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
Se

rie
s 

20
13

B
on

ds
 to

 th
e 

U
nd

er
w

rit
er

an
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

pr
op

er
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 

an
d 

us
e 

of
 th

e 
pr

oc
ee

ds
 o

f t
he

 sa
le

 th
er

eo
f.

Se
ct

io
n 

17
.

O
ff

ic
ia

l S
ta

te
m

en
t

Th
e 

B
oa

rd
 a

ut
ho

riz
es

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
ve

s 
th

e 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n,
 e

xe
cu

tio
n 

by
 t

he
 T

re
as

ur
er

 a
nd

 

de
liv

er
y 

to
 th

e 
U

nd
er

w
rit

er
 o

f a
 fi

na
l o

ff
ic

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

t f
or

 th
e 

Se
rie

s 
20

13
B

on
ds

, i
n 

th
e 

fo
rm

 o
f 

th
e 

pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

of
fic

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

t, 
w

ith
 s

uc
h 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 a
nd

 a
m

en
dm

en
ts

 th
er

et
o 

as
 s

ha
ll 

be
 

de
em

ed
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 o
r 

de
si

ra
bl

e 
by

 t
he

 T
re

as
ur

er
. 

 T
he

 B
oa

rd
 a

ut
ho

riz
es

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
ve

s 
th

e 

.
Th

e 
Tr

ea
su

re
r s

ha
ll 

re
vi

ew
 th

e 
fo

rm
 o

f t
he

 p
re

lim
in

ar
y 

of
fic

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

t p
re

pa
re

d 
in

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

sa
le

 o
f 

th
e 

Se
rie

s 
20

13
 B

on
ds

 to
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

.  

Fo
r 

th
e 

so
le

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f 

th
e 

U
nd

er
w

rit
er

’s
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 S

ec
tio

n 
(b

)(
1)

 o
f 

R
ul

e
15

c2
-1

2,
th

e 

B
oa

rd
he

re
by

 a
ut

ho
riz

es
 th

e 
Tr

ea
su

re
r t

o 
“d

ee
m

 fi
na

l”
th

at
pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
of

fic
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
t a

s o
f i

ts
 

da
te

, 
ex

ce
pt

 f
or

 t
he

 o
m

is
si

on
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 t

o 
be

 o
m

itt
ed

 b
y 

R
ul

e
15

c2
-1

2.
Th

e 

B
oa

rd
 a

ut
ho

riz
es

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
ve

s
th

e 
di

st
rib

ut
io

n 
by

 t
he

 U
nd

er
w

rit
er

 o
f 

th
e 

pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

of
fic

ia
l 

st
at

em
en

t t
ha

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
“d

ee
m

ed
 fi

na
l”

 to
 p

ot
en

tia
l p

ur
ch

as
er

s o
f t

he
 S

er
ie

s 2
01

3 
B

on
ds

.
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di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

by
 t

he
 U

nd
er

w
rit

er
 o

f 
th

e 
fin

al
 o

ff
ic

ia
l 

st
at

em
en

t 
to

 p
ot

en
tia

l 
pu

rc
ha

se
rs

 a
nd

 

pu
rc

ha
se

rs
 o

f t
he

 S
er

ie
s 2

01
3 

B
on

ds
.

Se
ct

io
n 

18
.

U
nd

er
ta

ki
ng

 to
 P

ro
vi

de
 C

on
tin

ui
ng

 D
is

cl
os

ur
e

(a
)

.  
To

 m
ee

t t
he

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

of
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

(b
)(

5)
of

 R
ul

e 
15

c2
-1

2,
as

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 to

 a
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

in
g 

un
de

rw
rit

er
 f

or
 th

e 
Se

rie
s 

20
13

B
on

ds
, t

he
 U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 m
ak

es
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

w
rit

te
n 

U
nd

er
ta

ki
ng

 f
or

 th
e 

be
ne

fit
 o

f 
ho

ld
er

s 

of
 th

e 
Se

rie
s 2

01
3

B
on

ds
:

U
nd

er
ta

ki
ng

 t
o 

Pr
ov

id
e 

A
nn

ua
l 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
N

ot
ic

e 
of

 

Li
st

ed
Ev

en
ts

(i)
A

nn
ua

l f
in

an
ci

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
op

er
at

in
g 

da
ta

 o
f t

he
 ty

pe
 

in
cl

ud
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

fin
al

 o
ff

ic
ia

l 
st

at
em

en
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

Se
rie

s 
20

13
B

on
ds

 a
nd

 
de

sc
rib

ed
 

in
 

su
bs

ec
tio

n
(b

) 
of

 
th

is
 

se
ct

io
n 

(“
an

nu
al

 
fin

an
ci

al
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n”

);

.  
Th

e
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 o

r c
au

se
 to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

, e
ith

er
 d

ire
ct

ly
 o

r 

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 a
ge

nt
, t

o 
th

e 
M

SR
B

, i
n 

an
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
fo

rm
at

 a
s 

pr
es

cr
ib

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
M

SR
B

, 

ac
co

m
pa

ni
ed

 b
y 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
as

 p
re

sc
rib

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
M

SR
B

:

(ii
)

Ti
m

el
y 

no
tic

e 
(n

ot
 in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 1

0 
bu

si
ne

ss
 d

ay
s 

af
te

r
th

e 
oc

cu
rr

en
ce

 o
f t

he
 e

ve
nt

) 
of

 th
e 

oc
cu

rr
en

ce
 o

f a
ny

 o
f t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

ev
en

ts
 

w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
Se

rie
s 

20
13

B
on

ds
:  

(1
) p

rin
ci

pa
l a

nd
 in

te
re

st
 p

ay
m

en
t 

de
lin

qu
en

ci
es

; 
(2

) 
no

n-
pa

ym
en

t 
re

la
te

d 
de

fa
ul

ts
, 

if 
m

at
er

ia
l; 

(3
) 

un
sc

he
du

le
d 

dr
aw

s 
on

 
de

bt
 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
se

rv
es

 
re

fle
ct

in
g 

fin
an

ci
al

 
di

ff
ic

ul
tie

s;
 (

4)
 u

ns
ch

ed
ul

ed
 d

ra
w

s 
on

 c
re

di
t 

en
ha

nc
em

en
ts

 r
ef

le
ct

in
g 

fin
an

ci
al

 d
iff

ic
ul

tie
s;

 (
5)

 s
ub

st
itu

tio
n 

of
 c

re
di

t 
or

 l
iq

ui
di

ty
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

, 
or

 
th

ei
r 

fa
ilu

re
 t

o 
pe

rf
or

m
; 

(6
) 

ad
ve

rs
e 

ta
x 

op
in

io
ns

, 
th

e 
is

su
an

ce
 b

y 
th

e 
In

te
rn

al
R

ev
en

ue
 S

er
vi

ce
 o

f p
ro

po
se

d 
or

 fi
na

l d
et

er
m

in
at

io
ns

 o
f t

ax
ab

ili
ty

, 
N

ot
ic

e 
of

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Is

su
e 

(IR
S 

Fo
rm

 5
70

1 
–

TE
B

) 
or

 o
th

er
 m

at
er

ia
l 

no
tic

es
 o

r d
et

er
m

in
at

io
ns

 w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
ta

x 
st

at
us

 o
f t

he
 S

er
ie

s 
20

13
B

on
ds

; (
7)

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 to
 ri

gh
ts

 o
f h

ol
de

rs
 o

f t
he

 S
er

ie
s 

20
13

B
on

ds
, i

f 
m

at
er

ia
l; 

(8
) 

bo
nd

 c
al

ls
 (

ot
he

r 
th

an
 s

ch
ed

ul
ed

 m
an

da
to

ry
 r

ed
em

pt
io

ns
 o

f 
Te

rm
 B

on
ds

), 
if 

m
at

er
ia

l, 
an

d 
te

nd
er

 o
ff

er
s;

 (9
) d

ef
ea

sa
nc

es
; (

10
) r

el
ea

se
, 

su
bs

tit
ut

io
n,

 o
r 

sa
le

 o
f 

pr
op

er
ty

 s
ec

ur
in

g 
re

pa
ym

en
t 

of
 t

he
 S

er
ie

s 
20

13
B

on
ds

, 
if 

m
at

er
ia

l; 
(1

1)
 r

at
in

g 
ch

an
ge

s;
 (

12
) 

ba
nk

ru
pt

cy
, 

in
so

lv
en

cy
, 

re
ce

iv
er

sh
ip

 o
r 

si
m

ila
r 

ev
en

t 
of

 t
he

 U
ni

ve
rs

ity
, 

as
 s

uc
h 

“B
an

kr
up

tc
y 

Ev
en

ts
” 

ar
e 

de
fin

ed
 in

 R
ul

e 
15

c2
-1

2;
 (1

3)
 th

e 
co

ns
um

m
at

io
n 

of
 a

 m
er

ge
r, 

co
ns

ol
id

at
io

n,
 o

r 
ac

qu
is

iti
on

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

or
 th

e 
sa

le
 o

f 
al

l o
r 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 a
ll 

of
 th

e 
as

se
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
ot

he
r 

th
an

 in
 th

e 
or

di
na

ry
 

co
ur

se
 o

f b
us

in
es

s, 
th

e 
en

try
 in

to
 a

 d
ef

in
iti

ve
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t t
o 

un
de

rta
ke

 s
uc

h 

26

an
 a

ct
io

n 
or

 th
e 

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

of
 a

 d
ef

in
iti

ve
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t r
el

at
in

g 
to

 a
ny

 s
uc

h 
ac

tio
ns

, o
th

er
 th

an
 p

ur
su

an
t t

o 
its

 te
rm

s, 
if 

m
at

er
ia

l; 
an

d 
(1

4)
 a

pp
oi

nt
m

en
t 

of
 a

 s
uc

ce
ss

or
 o

r 
ad

di
tio

na
l t

ru
st

ee
 o

r 
th

e 
ch

an
ge

 o
f 

na
m

e 
of

 a
 tr

us
te

e,
 if

 
m

at
er

ia
l. 

 

(ii
i)

Ti
m

el
y 

no
tic

e 
of

 a
 f

ai
lu

re
 b

y 
th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

an
nu

al
 f

in
an

ci
al

 i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
on

 o
r 

be
fo

re
 t

he
 d

at
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

 i
n 

su
bs

ec
tio

n 
(b

) o
f t

hi
s s

ec
tio

n.

(b
)

Ty
pe

 o
f 

A
nn

ua
l 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
U

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
to

 b
e 

Pr
ov

id
ed

(i)
Sh

al
l 

co
ns

is
t 

of
 (

1)
 a

nn
ua

l 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 p

re
pa

re
d 

(e
xc

ep
t a

s 
no

te
d 

in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
) i

n 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 p

ro
m

ul
ga

te
d 

by
 th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
St

an
da

rd
s 

B
oa

rd
 

(“
G

A
SB

”)
, 

as
 s

uc
h 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 m

ay
 b

e 
ch

an
ge

d 
fr

om
 ti

m
e 

to
 ti

m
e,

 w
hi

ch
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 s

ha
ll 

no
t b

e 
au

di
te

d,
 e

xc
ep

t, 
ho

w
ev

er
, 

th
at

 i
f 

an
d 

w
he

n 
au

di
te

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

re
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 a

nd
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 t

he
 U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 t
he

y 
w

ill
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
; 

(2
) 

th
e 

ta
bl

es
 i

n 
th

e 
fin

al
 o

ff
ic

ia
l 

st
at

em
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
Se

rie
s 

20
13

B
on

ds
 t

ha
t 

ar
e 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Tr

ea
su

re
r a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

in
 th

e 
B

on
d 

Sa
le

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n;

.  
Th

e 

an
nu

al
 f

in
an

ci
al

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

th
at

 th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 in
 s

ub
se

ct
io

n 
(a

) 
of

 th
is

 

se
ct

io
n:

(ii
)

Sh
al

l 
be

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
no

t 
la

te
r 

th
an

 t
he

 l
as

t 
da

y 
of

 t
he

 n
in

th
 

m
on

th
 a

fte
r t

he
 e

nd
 o

f e
ac

h 
fis

ca
l y

ea
r o

f t
he

 U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 (c

ur
re

nt
ly

, a
 fi

sc
al

 
ye

ar
 e

nd
in

g 
Ju

ne
 3

0)
, a

s 
su

ch
 f

is
ca

l y
ea

r 
m

ay
 b

e 
ch

an
ge

d 
as

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
or

 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 b

y 
St

at
e 

la
w

, 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 w

ith
 t

he
 U

ni
ve

rs
ity

’s
 f

is
ca

l 
ye

ar
 

en
di

ng
 Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
2;

 a
nd

(ii
i)

M
ay

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 i
n 

a 
si

ng
le

 o
r 

m
ul

tip
le

 d
oc

um
en

ts
, 

an
d 

m
ay

 b
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 b
y

sp
ec

ifi
c 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 o
n 

th
e 

In
te

rn
et

 w
eb

si
te

 o
f t

he
 M

SR
B

 o
r f

ile
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

SE
C

.

(c
)

A
m

en
dm

en
t 

of
 U

nd
er

ta
ki

ng
.  

Th
e 

U
nd

er
ta

ki
ng

 i
s 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 a

m
en

dm
en

t 

af
te

r 
th

e 
pr

im
ar

y 
of

fe
rin

g 
of

 t
he

 S
er

ie
s 

20
13

B
on

ds
 w

ith
ou

t t
he

 c
on

se
nt

of
 a

ny
 h

ol
de

r 
of

 a
ny

 

Se
rie

s 2
01

3
B

on
d,

 o
r o

f a
ny

 b
ro

ke
r, 

de
al

er
, m

un
ic

ip
al

 se
cu

rit
ie

s d
ea

le
r, 

pa
rti

ci
pa

tin
g 

un
de

rw
rit

er
, 

ra
tin

g 
ag

en
cy

, 
or

 t
he

 M
SR

B
, 

un
de

r 
th

e 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s 

an
d 

in
 t

he
 m

an
ne

r 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 b

y 

R
ul

e
15

c2
-1

2.
Th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 w
ill

 g
iv

e 
no

tic
e 

to
 th

e 
M

SR
B

 o
f t

he
 su

bs
ta

nc
e 

(o
r p

ro
vi

de
 a

 c
op

y)
 

of
 a

ny
 a

m
en

dm
en

t t
o 

th
e 

U
nd

er
ta

ki
ng

 a
nd

 a
 b

rie
f s

ta
te

m
en

t o
f t

he
 re

as
on

s f
or

 th
e 

am
en

dm
en

t. 
 If
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th
e 

am
en

dm
en

t 
ch

an
ge

s 
th

e 
ty

pe
 o

f 
an

nu
al

 f
in

an
ci

al
 i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
, 

th
e 

an
nu

al
 

fin
an

ci
al

 i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
co

nt
ai

ni
ng

 t
he

 a
m

en
de

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

w
ill

 i
nc

lu
de

 a
 n

ar
ra

tiv
e 

ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f t

ha
t c

ha
ng

e 
on

 th
e 

ty
pe

 o
f i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
.

(d
)

B
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s

(e
)

.  
Th

e 
U

nd
er

ta
ki

ng
 e

vi
de

nc
ed

 b
y 

th
is

 s
ec

tio
n 

sh
al

l 
in

ur
e 

to
 

th
e 

be
ne

fit
 o

f 
th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 a
nd

 a
ny

 h
ol

de
r 

of
 S

er
ie

s 
20

13
B

on
ds
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